
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and receive information about it.   
 
North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the information you need.  
We are able to provide our documents in alternative formats including Braille, audiotape, large 
print and alternative languages.  
 
For further information about the meeting please call (0191) 643 5320. 

 
 

 

Cabinet 
 
12 May 2022 
 
Monday, 23 May 2022 Room 0.02, Chamber, Quadrant, The Silverlink North, Cobalt 
Business Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at 6.00 pm. 
 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page(s) 
 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

 

 
2.   To Receive any Declarations of Interest and Notification of 

any Dispensations Granted 
 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-
registerable interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the 
nature of that interest. 
  
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation in relation to 
any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have been 
granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda. 
  
Please complete the Declarations of Interests card available at the 
meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer before 
leaving the meeting. 
  

 

 
3.   Minutes 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2022 
(previously circulated). 
  

 

 
4.   Report of the Young Mayor 

 
To receive a verbal report on the latest activities of the Young 
Mayor and Young Cabinet. 
 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page(s) 
 

5.   The Home Care Scrutiny Study Group 
 
To consider a report of the Home Care Study Group which was 
appointed by the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-
committee of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committee. 
  

5 - 30 

 
6.   Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs Sub-Group 

To consider a report of the Green Skills Retrofit Jobs Sub-Group 
which was appointed by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee 
of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee. 
 

31 - 54 

 
7.   Land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton 

 
To consider public representations that have been made to the 
Authority in relation to a statutory advertisement confirming the 
Authority’s intention to dispose an area of land within its 
ownership at Newsteads Drive in Monkseaton, as shown on the 
site plan at Appendix 1, and which is classed as public open 
space. 
  

55 - 66 

 
8.   Review of the North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private 

Hire Licensing Policy 
 
To seek approval to the adoption of the revised North Tyneside 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy at Appendix 1 
to the report which has been developed following the conclusion 
of a six-week consultation period; and that the Policy comes into 
effect on the 24 May 2022 save for the Age/Emissions standards.  
  

67 - 192 

 
9.   North Shields Cultural Quarter - North of Tyne Combined 

Authority Culture and Creative Zones Acceptance of Grant 
 
To seek approval to accept £1,695,000 grant funding from the 
North of Tyne Combined Authority to enable the establishment of 
North Shields Cultural Quarter in line with the North Shields 
Master Plan aspiration and Our North Tyneside Plan; and to enter 
into a Grant Funding Agreement; and procure any goods, works of 
services to deliver to the investment plans detailed in the report. 
  

193 - 200 

 
10.   Exclusion Resolution 

 
This is to give further notice in accordance with paragraphs 5(4) 
and 5(5) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 
of the intention to consider item (11) below in private. 
  
 
 

 



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page(s) 
 

Cabinet is requested to consider passing the following resolution: 
  
Resolved that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) and having applied a public interest test 
as defined in Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
  
Reasons for taking the item in private: The report in item (11) 
below contains information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding the 
information). 
   

11.   Corporate Risk Management Summary Report 
 
To consider the latest review of key corporate risks undertaken by 
the Senior Leadership Team. 
 

201 - 264 

 
12.   Date and Time of Next Meeting 

 
Monday 27 June 2022 at 6.00pm. 
 

 

Circulation overleaf …



 
 

 Circulated to Members of Cabinet: - 
 
N Redfearn (Elected Mayor) 
Councillor C Johnson (Deputy Mayor) 
Councillor C Burdis 
Councillor K Clark 
Councillor S Day 
Councillor S Graham 
Councillor A McMullen 
Councillor M Rankin 
 

 

 Young and Older People’s Representatives and Partners of  
North Tyneside Council. 
 

 



 
North Tyneside Council 
Report to Cabinet 
Date: 23 May 2022 
 
Title: Home Care Study Group 
 
 
Portfolio(s): 

 
Adult Social Care 

 
Cabinet Member(s): 
 

 
Cllr A McMullen 

 
Report from: 

 
Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee 
 

   
Wards affected: 
 

All 
 

 

 
PART 1 
 
1.1 Executive Summary: 
 

The purpose of this report is to present the findings of the Home Care Study Group which 
carried out an in-depth review of Home Care in the Borough on behalf of the Adult Social 
Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee, a sub-committee of the Overview, Scrutiny 
and Policy Development Committee.     

 
The recommendations for Cabinet to consider are set out in the report of the Home Care 
Study Group attached to this report at Appendix 1 and summarised in paragraph 1.5.5 
below. 
 
In accordance with section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet is required 
to provide a response to the recommendations of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee within two months. In providing this response Cabinet is 
required to indicate what (if any) action it proposes to take, and because the Sub-
Committee’s report has been published, Cabinet’s response must be published. 
 

1.2 Recommendation(s): 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 
a) receive the report and recommendations of the Home Care Study Group of the 

Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee as attached as Appendix 
1; and 

b) agree to receive a further report in June 2022 setting out Cabinet’s proposed 
response to the report and recommendations of the Home Care Study Group 
setting out what (if any) action Cabinet proposes to take. 

. 
1.3 Forward Plan: 
 

The report was included in the Forward Plan published in April 2022 under the heading 
“Matters arising from Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee and its 
 sub-committees”. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
 

1.4 Council Plan and Policy Framework  
 

The report relates to the following priority in the 2021/2025 Our North Tyneside Plan: 
 

           A Caring North Tyneside: 
 

  We will provide great care to all who need it, with extra support available all the 
way through to the end of the pandemic  

  We will work with the care provision sector to improve the working conditions of 
care workers;  

  People will be cared for, protected and supported if they become vulnerable, 
including if they become homeless. 

            
1.5 Information: 

 
Background 

 
1.5.1 The Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-Committee originally established a 

study group in early 2020 to review home care provision in the Borough.  The Study 
Group began the review, but the review was suspended at the beginning of the Covid 19 
pandemic in March 2020.  In July 2021, the Sub-Committee agreed to re-establish the 
Study Group with a revised remit and membership, and the Study Group began meeting 
in early October 2021. 
 

1.5.2 The remit of the Study Group was agreed as follows: 
 

To review the current provision of home care in North Tyneside and monitor the 
introduction and progress of the Home Care Pilot, with a view to: 
 
  Understanding whether the provision of Home Care in the borough is currently 

meeting the needs of residents; 
  Identifying those things that are working well and any areas of concern; 
  Monitoring the implementation of the Health and Care Pilot. 
 

1.5.3 The Study Group received information from officers from the Commissioning Team and 
other teams within the Authority, as well as a range of interested parties including home 
care providers, front line staff, carers, North Tyneside Carers’ Centre, North Tyneside 
Healthwatch, UNISON and the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care.  
 

1.5.4 The full report and recommendations of the review is attached at Appendix 1. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 6



1.5.5 The recommendations for Cabinet, as set out in the report, are: 
 

Commissioning  
 
1 Review the commissioning process to identify any areas where the 

allocation of care packages can be streamlined to be more efficient for 
providers and to allow packages to be put in place more quickly.   

2 Assess whether the budget for home care can be increased to allow the 
Authority to pay a higher rate to providers, and to link this to a requirement 
for providers to pay staff the Real Living Wage.  
 

3 Integrate the following into the next commission/tender process which is due 
to take place in 2023: 
 

- Stronger requirements around ‘quality of care’ 
- the payment of an enhanced rate for providers who pay staff the Real 

Living Wage (subject to the outcome of recommendation 2).  
- Support for the provision of specialist care services through an 

increased rate for these services, including a requirement for an 
increased rate for staff pay 

- Support innovations in the use of enabling technologies to 
supplement and enhance in-person care services. 

 
4 Review innovations in other Local Authority areas to develop a longer-term 

plan for the commissioning of home care over the next 4-year procurement 
cycle.  This should include re-visiting business models for alternative 
options for the delivery of home care services, including in-house provision, 
to consider whether any would now be viable. 
 

5 Review training for social work teams to ensure there is consistency across 
the commissioning process and on-going support and advice provided to 
clients and their families/ informal carers.   
 

 
Support for Recruitment, Retention and Training 
 
6 Review the impact of the current marketing campaign in support of 

recruitment to the Care Sector and to continue to review the support the 
Council is able to provide in this area. 
 

7 Work with further education colleges, care providers and the North of Tyne 
Combined Authority to develop the Care Academy model to provide a route 
for trained and job-ready applicants to enter the care sector. 
 

8 Develop a longer- term work force strategy in support of the care sector.  
 

Support for those in receipt of Home Care 
 
9 Review the ‘My Care’ website to enhance the information available to 

families, particularly self-funders, to help them to navigate the system, 
including signposting information on private care providers. 
 

Page 7



10 Promote the ‘My Care’ website across the community and in clinical settings 
to raise the profile and increase awareness of the website. 
 

11 Improve the support and information that is made available to families about 
finances, costs and benefit entitlements at an early stage of the process. 
 

Support for carers 
 
12 Promote the on-line training material provided by the North Tyneside 

Carers’ Centre to all relevant council staff and social workers. 
 

13 Work with care providers to promote information around the role of carers 
and provide access to the training developed by North Tyneside Carers’ 
Centre. 
 

14 Review the availability of respite care for those who were eligible but unable 
to access respite care during the pandemic, but who may now need it. 
 

 
 

1.5.6 The report was considered and agreed by the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing 
Sub-Committee on 30 March 2022.  The Chair of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee has given approval for the report to be submitted to Cabinet.   
 

1.6 Decision options: 
 

In considering the report and recommendations, and formulating a response, the following 
decision options will be available for consideration by Cabinet: 

 
Option 1 

 
Cabinet accepts the recommendations in paragraph 1.2 above 

 
Option 2 

 
Cabinet does not accept the recommendations in paragraph 1.2 above. 

 
Option 1 is the preferred option because under the provisions of the Local Government Act 
2000 Cabinet has a duty to provide a response to the report and recommendations 
presented to it by the Home Care Study Group of the Adult Social Care, Health and 
Wellbeing Sub-committee. 

 
1.7 Appendices: 
 

Appendix 1 – Home Care Study Group Report 
 
1.8 Contact officers: 
 

Joanne Holmes, Democratic Services Officer Tel. (0191) 643 5315 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



1.9 Background information: 
 

The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this 
report and are available at the office of the author: 

 
  Minutes of the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee – July 

2021 - link 
  Local Government Act 2000 - link 
 

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 
 
2.1 Finance and other resources 
 
The financial implications associated with each recommendation will be included in Cabinet’s 
response to this report. 
 
2.2 Legal 
 
The legal requirement for Cabinet to respond to the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development 
Committee’s Study Group report and recommendations under the Local Government Act 2000  
are dealt with in the report. 
 
2.3 Consultation/community engagement 
 
2.3.1 Internal Consultation 
 
The Study Group met with officers from the Commissioning Team and other teams within the 
Council, as well as some front-line staff from the Reablement Team and the Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care. 
 
2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement 
 
The Study Group met with a range of interested parties from outside of the Council, including 
home care providers, individual carers, North Tyneside Carers’ Centre, North Tyneside 
Healthwatch, and UNISON. 
 
2.4 Human rights 
 
There are no direct issues relating to human rights arising from this report.   
 
2.5 Equalities and diversity 
 
There are no direct issues relating to equalities and diversity arising from this report.   
 
2.6 Risk management 
 
There are no direct issues relating to risk arising from this report. 
 
2.7 Crime and disorder 
 
There are no direct issues relating to crime and disorder arising from this report. 
 
 
 

Page 9

https://democracy.northtyneside.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=139&Year=0
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents


2.8 Environment and sustainability 
 
There are no direct issues relating to environment and sustainability arising from this report. 
 
 
PART 3  
 
As a report from a Scrutiny Committee, the report has been circulated to the following officers 
for information. 
 

  Chief Executive  
 

   Directors(s) of Service  
 

  Mayor/Cabinet Member(s) 
 

  Chief Finance Officer  
 

  Monitoring Officer 
 

  Asistant Chief Executive   

Page 10



  

 
Overview and Scrutiny Report 
 
 
Home Care Study Group 
 

                                  
 
 
 
 
 
March 2022 
 
 
  

Page 11



2 

Summary and Recommendations 
 
The Home Care Study Group has undertaken a review of home care in the borough, 
including a review of progress with the joint pilot with Northumbria Healthcare NHS 
Trust. 
 
On the basis of the information it has received, the Study Group has significant 
concerns about the current situation with home care in the borough, which mirrors the 
nationwide situation, and which appears to be at a point of crisis.  Providers are not 
able to meet the current level of demand for care, and the number of people on the 
brokerage list waiting for a care package has doubled from pre-pandemic levels.  This 
is resulting in many people being without adequate care for a significant period of time 
and is putting unsustainable pressure on families and carers. 
 
The Study Group recognise that one of the key issues facing the sector is retention 
and recruitment of staff.  Neither home care providers, or the Local Authority, are 
easily able to expand services to meet unmet demand given current staffing 
difficulties.  The situation is likely to deteriorate further due to the rising cost of living 
and increases to the price of petrol which is putting additional pressures on low paid 
care staff.   
 
The Study Group recognises that many of the problems with home care are reflected 
on a national level and are complex issues that require root and branch reform.  
Although increased funding for the care sector is crucial, increased resources on their 
own will not address these many issues.  In addition, actions by the Local Authority at 
a local level, within current constraints, can only have a limited impact. 
 
The Study Group is aware of forthcoming changes set out by the Government in the 
recent Social Care White Paper - People at the Heart of Care (published December 
2021).  The White Paper sets out a number of proposed reforms to adult social care 
and importantly the role that families and friends have in caring for and supporting 
each other.  Specifically in relation to home care delivery, the White Paper includes: 
 

  Use of technology to support people to remain independent; 
  Workforce initiatives to recognise the role of the social care workforce, ensure 

staff have the right training and qualifications and that staff feel valued;  
  Support for family and other unpaid carers; 
  Requirement for local authorities to undertake a fair cost of care exercise to 

understand the cost of delivery of home care (and other services) locally and 
that a sustainability plan is in place to secure local provision 

 
The Study Group has identified a number of recommendations for Cabinet and the 
Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee.  These relate to the 
commissioning process, future commissioning, support for training and recruitment to 
the care sector, and improved support for those seeking care and their family and 
carers.   
 
The Study Group notes that the relationship between the Council and home care 
providers is generally good, with systems in place for sharing information and agreeing 
care packages.  The Study Group also notes that the Council is working with providers 

Page 12



3 

and other agencies to find ways to support recruitment and retention via the Care 
Academy.   
 
The Study Group also reviewed the development of the Health and Care Pilot with 
Northumbria Healthcare Trust.  The Study Group welcomed progress with the Pilot to 
date and the plans to improve the coordination and quality of health and social care 
services for those involved in the Pilot.   
 
 
 
  

Page 13



4 

Recommendations: 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 
Commissioning  
 
1 Review the commissioning process to identify any areas where the 

allocation of care packages can be streamlined to be more efficient for 
providers and to allow packages to be put in place more quickly.   

2 Assess whether the budget for home care can be increased to allow the 
Authority to pay a higher rate to providers, and to link this to a requirement 
for providers to pay staff the Real Living Wage.  
 

3 Integrate the following into the next commission/tender process which is due 
to take place in 2023: 
 

- Stronger requirements around ‘quality of care’ 
- the payment of an enhanced rate for providers who pay staff the Real 

Living Wage (subject to the outcome of recommendation 2).  
- Support for the provision of specialist care services through an 

increased rate for these services, including a requirement for an 
increased rate for staff pay 

- Support innovations in the use of enabling technologies to 
supplement and enhance in-person care services. 

 
4 Review innovations in other Local Authority areas to develop a longer-term 

plan for the commissioning of home care over the next 4-year procurement 
cycle.  This should include re-visiting business models for alternative 
options for the delivery of home care services, including in-house provision, 
to consider whether any would now be viable. 
 

5 Review training for social work teams to ensure there is consistency across 
the commissioning process and on-going support and advice provided to 
clients and their families/ informal carers.   
 

 
Support for Recruitment, Retention and Training 
 
6 Review the impact of the current marketing campaign in support of 

recruitment to the Care Sector and to continue to review the support the 
Council is able to provide in this area. 
 

7 Work with further education colleges, care providers and the North of Tyne 
Combined Authority to develop the Care Academy model to provide a route 
for trained and job-ready applicants to enter the care sector. 
 

8 Develop a longer- term work force strategy in support of the care sector.  
 

Page 14



5 

Support for those in receipt of Home Care 
 
9 Review the ‘My Care’ website to enhance the information available to 

families, particularly self-funders, to help them to navigate the system, 
including signposting information on private care providers. 
 

10 Promote the ‘My Care’ website across the community and in clinical settings 
to raise the profile and increase awareness of the website. 
 

11 Improve the support and information that is made available to families about 
finances, costs and benefit entitlements at an early stage of the process. 
 

Support for carers 
 
12 Promote the on-line training material provided by the North Tyneside 

Carers’ Centre to all relevant council staff and social workers. 
 

13 Work with care providers to promote information around the role of carers 
and provide access to the training developed by North Tyneside Carers’ 
Centre. 
 

14 Review the availability of respite care for those who were eligible but unable 
to access respite care during the pandemic, but who may now need it. 
 

 
 
It is recommended that the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-
committee: 
 
 
Health and Care Pilot 
 
15 - Continues to receive updates on the development of the Health and 

Care Pilot; 
 

- Requests updates from Northumbria Healthcare Trust on the 
homecare service they are developing outside of the pilot.  
 

 
 
 
  

Page 15



6 

1. Reason for the Study 

1.1 The Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee originally 
established a study group in early 2020 to review home care provision in the 
Borough.  The Study Group began the review, but this was put on hold at the 
beginning of the Covid pandemic.  In July 2021, the Sub-committee agreed to 
re-establish the Study Group with a revised remit and membership, and the 
Study Group began meeting in early October 2021.  

 
1.2 The remit of the Study Group was agreed as follows: 
 
1.3 To review the current provision of home care in North Tyneside and monitor the 

introduction and progress of the Home Care Pilot, with a view to: 
 

  Understanding whether the provision of Home Care in the borough is 
currently meeting the needs of residents; 

  Identifying those things that are working well and areas of concern; 
  Monitoring the implementation of the Health and Care Pilot. 

 
 
2. Methodology 

2.1 Members of the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee were 
invited to express an interest in joining this group.  In addition, Cllr O’Shea 
requested to remain as a member of the Study Group as he was part of the 
original group.  The following Members volunteered to take part and were 
appointed to the Study Group:  

Cllr Jim Allan 
Cllr Trish Brady 
Cllr Maureen Madden 
Cllr Tommy Mulvenna 
Cllr John O’Shea 
Cllr Jane Shaw 
 

2.2 The Study Group has met on ten occasions. 

2.3 The Sub-group received information from officers from the Commissioning 
Team and other teams within the Council, as well as a range of interested 
parties including home care providers, front line staff, carers, North Tyneside 
Carers’ Centre, North Tyneside Healthwatch, UNISON and the Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care. 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



7 

3. Findings and Evidence  

3.1 The summary of the information gathered by the Study Group is set out below. 
 
Commissioning, Quality Assurance and Support for Providers 
 
3.2 As background to the review, the Sub-group received information from officers 

on Home Care in the Borough, including commissioning arrangements and 
quality assurance processes. 

 
Commissioning Services 
 
3.3 The Study Group was provided with background information on how home care 

services are commissioned.   It was noted that all long-term care packages are 
commissioned from external providers, with the re-ablement function the only 
internal provision provided by the local authority.  During the time of the review 
the Authority has recruited a number of additional internal staff to address 
growing demand for home care services that are not being met by the market.  
The Council has also brought back a contract from a private provider who was 
unable to deliver the contract.   

 
3.4 It was noted that the Council is currently in the third year of a four-year contract 

period with providers.  The current contract had been designed to provide more 
flexibility and incorporates some changes to the previous arrangements, 
including the introduction of time slots for care, a higher payment in the 
northwest of the Borough to address increased travel requirements, an 
accreditation process to bring in new providers, and the introduction of assistive 
technology.   
 

3.5 The Study Group was advised that the average unit cost paid in North Tyneside 
was slightly below the average when compared to other authorities in the 
region. 
 

Current Demand for Services 
 
3.6 The Study Group was advised that in March 2020 the impact of the Covid-19 

pandemic led to a reduction in demand for care packages as many families 
sought to reduce contacts with external carers and took on more care due to 
lock down and furlough arrangements.  However, since April 2021, there has 
been a large increase in demand for services and there is now a significant 
brokerage list with many people waiting for home care packages to be put in 
place.  Although care providers are continually picking up new packages, more 
people have been joining the list than leaving, leading to net increases.  At the 
time of the report there are around 170 people on the brokerage list seeking 
care packages. 

 
3.7 For all people on the brokerage waiting list there will be regular contact with 

them to assess any additional or increasing risk factors and to support people 
with some temporary alternative arrangements where this is needed. 

 

Page 17



8 

 
3.8 It was noted that the Authority offers a service to commission home care 

services on behalf of self-funding customers via the brokerage list, and 
therefore at the local authority rate.  This was introduced in response to the 
Care Act, although it is not the approach taken by all authorities.  A fee of £260 
is charged for this service.  The local authority rate for services is lower than the 
private rate. 

 
 
Understanding Quality and Quality Improvement 
 
3.9 The Study Group was advised that there are a range of processes that feed into 

the Council’s assessment of quality in relation to home care providers, including 
accreditation/contract award assessments, monitoring of delivery, safeguarding 
issues and CQC ratings. 

 
3.10 The Study Group was advised that, as part of the tender process for contracts 

or framework agreements, there is an evaluation quality, which includes an 
evaluation of responses in the method statement covering health and safety, 
financial viability, insurances, complaints, safeguarding and social value.  For 
the current homecare contract the Council set the rates and so cost was not 
included as part of the evaluation. 

 
3.11 As part of the contract providers are required to meet all statutory requirements, 

including national living wage requirements, although the Council is unable to 
impose terms and conditions on providers via the contract as part of the public 
procurement regulations.  The funding level paid by the Council is set at a level 
which is intended to cover travel costs and travel time for staff. 

 
3.12 It was noted that the Council undertakes annual quality monitoring 

visits/assessments which involve a provider self-assessment and a review 
against the contract specifications/standards in relation to the following areas: 
Well-led; Caring; Responsive; Safe; and Effective.   Additional quality 
assurance measures also feed into the system of monitoring. 

 
 
Recruitment and Retention of care Staff 

 
3.13 The Study Group was advised that there are issues with the recruitment and 

retention of care staff in the Borough.  This is a national problem impacting on 
all areas of the care sector and was highlighted as an issue by Council officers 
and also in the meeting with home care providers.   

 
3.14 The Study Group was advised that care work is skilled work, but is low paid and 

undervalued, and lacks an obvious career path to higher level roles.  Care 
workers are first responders who are often called upon to deal with difficult 
situations, including health emergencies and death, and the work can be both 
physically and emotionally challenging.  Recruitment is made more difficult by 
alternative employment options available in other sectors such as hospitality 
and retail.  In addition, some staff who joined the sector during the pandemic 

Page 18



9 

have returned to previous employment roles as restrictions have eased or have 
left the sector due to burn-out. 

 
3.15 Although recruitment and retention of staff has been an issue for a number of 

years, this has escalated in recent months across all areas of the care market.  
Providers are now reporting more incidences where they are not getting any 
response to recruitment advertisements or where individuals have accepted 
jobs but have not then taken them up.  This is costly for providers who are 
already running on tight margins.  In some instances, providers have returned 
packages as they are unable to staff them. 

 
3.16 Recruitment problems have been exacerbated by delays to Disclosure and 

Barring Service (DBS) checks.  These are currently taking longer than usual to 
complete and this has led to delays in getting staff in place and in some cases 
losing staff to alternative employment while waiting for the outcome of checks.  
A fast-track service is in place, but this is not always practical for home care 
staff who often have to work alone and unsupervised and are visiting vulnerable 
people in their own homes. 

 
3.17 Wage levels were identified as key factor in recruitment and retention problems.  

The Study Group was advised that providers are limited in the amount they can 
pay care staff by the rates paid by local authorities.  Increases to the National 
Living Wage (NLW) will be coming in this year and will be introduced earlier for 
care workers, but any increase to the NLW will also apply in other sectors such 
as hospitality where wages will also rise in line with this increase.  In addition, 
wage increases will have a budget impact on the Council by increasing rates for 
care.  Any increase in average rates of pay for care staff would have a 
significant impact on Council budgets.   

 
 
Workforce Planning in support of the Care Sector 

 
3.18 The Study Group was advised by officers that the council had provided support 

to providers during the pandemic, and it was part of the Council’s role to 
support the sector, including with recruitment and retention issues.   

 
3.19 Officers provided information to the Study Group on analysis that had been 

undertaken on the local labour market, including gaps and recruitment issues in 
relation to care services.  As well as issues highlighted above, the analysis 
identified a number of factors contributing to recruitment problems in the care 
sector, including the impact of Brexit on EU workers in the care sector, 
requirements to be able to drive/ have access to a car, travel costs, shift 
patterns that are difficult for those with children or other caring responsibilities, 
unclear work patterns, the need for up to date references that can be difficult for 
those who have been out of work for some time or have never  had 
employment, and the level and expectations of training comparative to pay. 

 
3.20 The Council is working across Adult Social Care and other areas of the Council 

and with other agencies to look at action that could be taken to address 
recruitment and retention issues in the medium and longer term.  This includes 

Page 19



10 

looking at a plan covering areas such as training and market supplements, but 
this will not address immediate issues. 

 
3.21 The Council has recently been engaged with a national marketing campaign to 

highlight the care sector and encourage recruitment into the sector.  Alongside 
this and to compliment the national campaign the Council has put in place a 
local strategy during February and March 2022 to encourage people into jobs in 
North Tyneside. 

 
3.22 The Council has developed the Social Care Academy to help social care 

providers to develop a valued and skilled adult social care workforce. There is 
an increasing need for adult social care services as people are living longer, 
and so we need to work with our local providers to help them to recruit and train 
staff to be able to respond to that.  

 
3.23 The Social Care Academy will act as an interface between employers and 

potential employees and aims to support more people to enter social care 
workforce and also support existing carers as part of training, development and 
potential career progression / pathways 

 
3.24 The Social Care Academy will be for both existing and potential workforce.  
 
3.25 For the potential workforce there is a routeway into adult social care which is a 

short training programme that gives people more information about people 
working in social care, some training that’s related to the care certificate and, 
also at the end of the programme they would have a guaranteed interview with 
a local care provider.  

 
3.26 For the existing workforce, there are lots of training and development 

opportunities for members of staff delivering a range of different care and 
support services and at different levels within their organisation. 

 
 
Evidence from Home Care Providers 
 
3.27 The Study Group approached home care providers who provide services in the 

Borough to ask if they would be willing to meet with the Study Group.  A 
number of providers initially expressed an interest in attending a meeting, and 
representatives of Castrian Group and Pinnacle Cares attended a meeting with 
Members via Teams.    

 
3.28 Members sought the views of providers on what they felt was working well and 

not so well and how the Council could improve how they work with providers.  
In addition to issues about recruitment and retention, they highlighted the 
following: 

 
3.29 The relationship between the Council and providers is generally good and many 

areas of the commissioning process work well, including the review process 
and the sharing of information on brokerage lists via the brokerage team.  
There may be some areas where the process for awarding packages could be 

Page 20



11 

streamlined and where there could be more consistency across social work 
teams.  A suggestion put forward by providers would be to allow the brokerage 
team to finalise packages without final approval from a social worker as this 
would speed up the process.  Providers also highlighted that there can be 
delays in finding out whether an offer for a package has been successful and 
this impacts on efficiency as holding time for a package means providers can’t 
take on others in the meantime. 

 
3.30 Both providers highlighted that there are complex structural problems within the 

care system that need addressing on a national level, and that everyone is 
working hard within this difficult context.  Providers are currently finding it 
difficult to grow their business due to funding rates and recruitment and 
retention issues, and this impacts on the ability of the market to meet current 
need.  The hourly rate paid by local authorities does not allow providers to 
increase pay rates as margins are already low.  Providers also raised concerns 
about the commissioning services offered by the Council which reduces the 
number of people paying the higher private rate. 

 
3.31 In relation to the tendering of care services, it was the view of the providers that 

the commissioning system should reward good performance, and therefore 
quality and performance related conditions should be built into the evaluation 
system.  Providers would also like to see a greater partnership arrangement 
between the local authority and providers to support a healthy market over the 
longer term. 

 
 
3.32 In relation to care workers, it was highlighted that many tasks undertaken by 

care teams would, in the recent past, have been undertaken by district nursing 
teams on higher rates of pay, eg. peg feeding and catheter care.  While there is 
an enhanced rate to reflect higher skilled tasks; it was felt that it would be 
helpful to have a clearer requirement when this should be paid and that there 
should be a route to higher rates of pay for more specialist services requiring 
higher skill levels.  

 
3.33 Providers also raised issues about the availability of training in the local areas 

in support of care work.  In particular, that local colleges do not offer longer 
level 2 and 3 courses for health and social care workers, although shorter 
courses of 12 weeks and under can be accessed by providers for free.  It was 
also felt that there is a need for more apprenticeship type courses to encourage 
staff to enter the sector.   

 
Evidence from Front Line Carers (The Reablement Service) 
 
3.34 The Study Group met with Sandra Luke and Kath Burns who are front line staff 

from the Reablement Service and who volunteered to meet with the Study 
Group.  They were accompanied by Elayn Miller from UNISON.  The study 
group had also sought to meet with front line carers from private sector 
providers but were unable to arrange this as part of the review. 

 

Page 21



12 

3.35 It was noted that the reablement team receives referrals from a range of 
agencies including GPs and hospitals.  The aim of the service is to support 
people as they move out of hospital into the home environment in order to help 
them towards independence.  Reablement support is generally available for up 
to six weeks, with the aim that individuals will gain the necessary confidence to 
enable them to manage independently at the end of this period, without a need 
for further support.  If more support is needed at the end of the reablement 
period this will be reported back to social work teams to consider needs for 
ongoing home care. 

 
3.36 It was noted that there has been a change in the clients coming through the 

reablement team in recent years, with the number of clients requiring follow on 
care services increasing, with around 80% now needing follow on home care 
services.  There are a number of reasons for this, including more clients coming 
through to the reablement service who have previously had care packages prior 
to a stay in hospital, and more clients being referred to reablement on 
discharge from hospital, even though there may not be a realistic chance of 
reablement.  It was also noted that recently the reablement team has had a 
longer involvement in some cases, sometimes for as long as 6 months, and this 
can have a knock-on effect on the capacity within the service to take on more 
clients.  Reablement have also been asked to take on more crisis care and 
carers relief due to capacity issues and availability of carers in the private 
sector.   

 
3.37 Come concerns were raised that follow-on home care services did not always 

meet the needs of clients and that, when undertaking 3-month reviews, clients 
were sometimes found to have cancelled home care services if they don’t feel 
services have been meeting their needs.  They may then be struggling to 
manage without help.   

 
3.38 The care workers outlined their experience of working for the Reablement 

Service and highlighted that feedback from clients is very good, with many 
people grateful for the service that has helped them to stay independent and in 
their own home.  Staff highlighted that prior to 2012 the Reablement Service 
also provided home care and many staff have years of experience to draw on.  
They were of the view that the terms and conditions of care workers in the 
public sector were generally better than in the private care sector, and that in 
the private sector there can be issues over payment of travel time, travel 
expenses, uniforms, mobile phones etc.  Staff were also of the view that the 
training available to the reablement team and the management of services was 
of a high quality and this fed into better quality services for clients.  

 
3.39 The UNISON representative highlighted that the crisis in care services is not 

new.  She highlighted that UNISON had introduced an Ethical Care Charter in 
2015 which they asked Councils to adopt.  North Tyneside Council has not 
signed up to the charter.  She highlighted that there are a number of problems 
facing the sector including lack of succession planning, low status of care 
workers, difficulties with recruitment and retention and an ageing workforce.  It 
was stated that UNISON believes that care services are best provided via the 
public sector and that it is difficult for local authorities to ensure high standards 

Page 22



13 

via tender processes given the large number of providers in the sector and 
current capacity issues. 

 
  
Evidence from North Tyneside Carers’ Centre 
 
3.40 Julie King from the North Tyneside Carers Centre attended a meeting to 

provide information on home care from the perspective of carers’ experiences 
of the system. 

3.41 She highlighted the following issues facing carers: 

  The biggest issue is capacity and many people are waiting a significant time 
for care arrangements to be put in place and this puts additional pressure on 
unpaid carers.  This is particularly an issue for mental health services. 

  Many unpaid carers have taken on more responsibility during the pandemic 
and are struggling to get help now they need it. 

  The experience of carers is patchy – some are valued and can access 
support but others have not had a good experience. 

  Confidentiality issues can be an issue if carers are unable to access 
information or be consulted properly on behalf of those they care for. 

 
3.42 It was noted that when a package of support is found many people have a 

positive experience of the package delivered.  However, this is not always the 
case.  Some of the issues experienced by carers are:   

 
  Communication and continuity of staff - where there are lots of different and 

changing staff there can be trust issues and this can be particularly difficult 
for those with dementia.  Staff continuity is becoming more of an issue due 
to the retention and recruitment issues in the sector. 

  Timing of care – people may not get care when they need it eg. visits that 
are too early in the evening or too late in the morning so they are unable to 
go to bed or get up at a time that they want to. 

  Inconsistencies of service - this can particularly impact on those who are 
working carers. 

  There is a shortage of respite care in support of carers, and those who had 
stopped respite during the pandemic are finding it difficult to have it 
reinstated. 

  Some people who self-finance their care can be reluctant to pay for respite 
care and this can be difficult for carers who are then unable to get a break.  

  Direct Payments can offer more flexibility but not everybody wants to take 
on the responsibility of employing staff and managing the whole process.   

  Many people prefer the Council to commission service on their behalf as 
they pay a cheaper rate and that can mean they receive more hours of care 
than if they pay the private rate. 

Page 23



14 

3.43 The following suggestions to improve services from the perspective of Carers.   

  To introduce a wellbeing approach to the arrangement of care packages 
which looks holistically at the life of an individual and is creative in working 
alongside the carer.  Carers should be given an opportunity to have their 
say from their perspective. 

  To increase the understanding of the role of carers among social workers, 
care staff and other professionals and ensure carers are included in the 
process. 

  The Carers’ Centre have provided on-line training material that is available 
to council staff via learning pool and they would also be happy to come in to 
the Council to provide training. 

  More support could be provided to families to help them to navigate the 
system and how to get support, particularly for those who are self-funders. 

  Provision of more benefit advice services as this is a gap in the system. 

 
Other issues: 
 
3.44 In conclusion, from the perspective of the Carers’ Centre: 
 

  Issues with Home Care are similar on a national level.  In the north-east 
there are specific issues linked to the proportion of people with life limiting 
illnesses and reduced levels of Council Tax income. 

  Services are doing their best but there are big gaps at the moment.  Overall, 
would say that Home Care services are not meeting all needs, but it is 
difficult to know how the issues could be resolved. 

  Individual families are on their knees waiting for a package of support that 
hasn’t materialised.  This is particularly an issue for working carers and is an 
increasing problem. 

  It is a worrying picture – there are a lot of big and difficult issues that are not 
easy to resolve. 

 
 
 
Evidence from North Tyneside HealthWatch 
 
3.45 Paul Jones from North Tyneside Healthwatch attended a meeting with the 

Study Group and highlighted the following based on feedback and research of 
Healthwatch into care services: 

 
  Feedback on the reablement service is always positive and the team are in 

a unique position as part of the assessment team but also working towards 
helping people to improve and move forward. 

Page 24



15 

  Most feedback to Healthwatch comes from family and carers of those in 
receipt of care, rather than those receiving care directly. 

  There is a mixed view of home care – a lot depends on relationships with 
carers.   

  Where relationships are good, views are more positive.   
  Sometimes relationships aren’t good and that can lead to issues.   
  There can also be teething issues when care arrangements are first put in 

place. 
  People are reluctant to continue with a service if they are not happy with it – 

unless they have no alternative. 
  People are often reluctant to complaint or criticise home care workers as 

they feel vulnerable.  They may also feel that a bad service is better than no 
service and may therefore be fearful of complaining. 

  Many people are happy with the service they receive. 

 
What is working well? 

 
- Where there is the involvement of an active social worker this can help to 

resolve any issues at an early stage 
- District nurses can also fill this care coordination gap. 
- There can be problems for self-funders who don’t have support of a social 

worker. 

- Care tends to work best if there is good communication between the family, 
client and the provider, but this is not always the case. 

- There may be some inconsistencies between social work teams.   

 
What could be improved? 
 

- Resolving uncertainty about money/costs at an early stage so clients and 
their family have clarity about how much they will be expected to contribute 
as this can be a cause of a lot of anxiety. 

- Greater clarity about what people can do if things aren’t going well – 
possibly through an individual advocacy service similar to PALS in the 
Health Service.  At the moment there is no similar service for adult social 
care to help resolve issues at an early stage. 

- More help to assist people in navigating providers when setting up care 
privately; 

- Need for a care coordination role to check arrangements are working and to 
sort out problems, especially for those who don’t have family and friends 
coming in and to ensure care is still meeting needs. 

- Ensuring that care packages meet the needs of the client. 

Page 25



16 

- There may be scope for some elements to be taken out of care packages 
and met through other services eg. help with befriending, picking up 
medications and with shopping. 

 
Is Home Care in North Tyneside meeting needs? 
 

- It is for some people and many people are happy with the service they 
receive. 

- There are clear issues at the moment around capacity with many people 
waiting for packages to be put in place. 

- Have heard from some that they have had problems in accessing specialist 
care services eg for dementia or feeding issues.  There may be scope to 
provide more training and support to providers for more advanced care 
needs. 

 
  

Page 26



17 

Evidence from Carers with experience of Home Care 
 
3.46 The Chair was pleased to welcome Lesley Laws and Ken Palmer to the 

meeting to share their experiences of home care from their perspective as 
carers of those in receipt of home care.   

 
3.47 Ken and Lesley provided detailed information about their experiences Home 

Care.  As a result of the information provided Members noted the following 
issues: 

 
- There are capacity issues within the system with some individuals waiting 

unacceptable periods of time for a care package to be put in place.  This is 
placing undue pressure on carers, and, as was evident in the meeting, can 
mean that carers are unable to continue their ordinary paid employment.      

- Families are under pressure to find their own care through the private 
system while remaining on the brokerage list and are struggling to find 
advice and guidance on how to do this; 

- Information on private providers is not easily available; 
- There is an option to consider employing carers via the direct payments 

system but this is a daunting process and not everybody is willing to take on 
the responsibility of becoming an employer, while also trying to undertake 
caring responsibilities; 

- Financial assessments aren’t always carried out, especially where it is 
assumed that people will be self-funding. 
 

– Experience of the care offered by private providers is not always good and 
issues have been experienced with basic care around eating, drinking and 
hygiene. 

– Carers often feel that they have to highlight issues and instigate 
improvements with care providers themselves and there are concerns for 
those who don’t have family and friends to raise issues on their behalf. 

– Experience of care staff not having basic skills and knowledge to 
successfully care for older people with dementia.  There are some quite 
simple techniques that can and should be taught to care staff that would 
make big improvements in the service provided and the care received. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



18 

Health and Care Pilot – North Tyneside Council and Northumbria Healthcare 
Trust 
 
3.48 The remit of the Study Group included a role in monitoring the implementation 

of the Health anc Care Pilot between North Tyneside and Northumbria 
Healthcare Trust. 

 
3.49 The pilot is a public sector led project aimed at providing an improved service 

for clients through a more coordinated approach to health and social care visits.  
The pilot is starting small but will develop over time. 

 
3.50 The pilot began in November 2021 and staff recruitment to the pilot is now 

underway.  The Study Group was informed that 5.6 FTE staff will be in place by 
the end of February 2022 and remaining posts are being re-advertised.  Posts 
are offered on public sector terms and condition, with training provided primarily 
by the Trust.  Services for individuals taking part in the pilot are commissioned 
by the Council in the same way as other homecare services.  There is no 
additional cost to the Council for the service, with health aspects funded from 
the Trust budget. 

 
3.51 The pilot also aims to manage some of the instability and fragility in the home 

care market by complimenting and supporting the private sector home care 
market at a challenging time when the market is struggling to meet need.   

 
3.52 Potential clients are currently being identified from a review of the brokerage 

list.  Only those who have a mix of regular (at least weekly) health care need 
and up to 7 days of social care need will be eligible for the pilot.  The pilot is 
creating capacity for district nurse staff to undertake some care elements that 
they are already doing and will also help to capture and relay information on 
client needs. 

 
3.53 Members welcomed the development of the pilot which is currently at an early 

stage. The Study Group was advised that the Authority and Trust have worked 
well together on the pilot and the pilot is improving the quality of service while 
reducing issues of handover between agencies.  It was noted that an officer 
working group has been established and will undertake a 3-month evaluation of 
the pilot as it develops.  There are plans to expand the pilot over time, but any 
expansion will be based on an assessment of how the care sector develops 
and how the pilot fits within the market in order to ensure demand is met. 

 
  

Page 28



19 

4.0 Background Information 

  Minutes of the Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Sub-committee – 
July 2021 

  Background Reports and notes of meetings of the Home Care Study Group 
 
 
5.0 Acknowledgements 
 
5.1 The Study Group would like to thank the following officers and volunteers who 

provided information to the Study Group: 
 

Scott Woodhouse – Strategic Commissioning Manager Adults 
Leanne Fairbairn - Commissioning Manager 
Mark Longstaff – Director of Commissioning and Asset Management 
Alison Tombs - Assistant Director Wellbeing and Assessment 
Eleanor Binks - Assistant Director for Service Integration 
Cllr Anthony McMullen – Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care 
Lisa Johnstone – Northumbria HealthCare NHS Trust 
Sandra Luke – Reablement Service 
Kath Burns – Reablement Service 
Elayn Miller - UNISON 
Kerry Graham - Castrian Group  
David Ferguson - Pinnacle Cares. 
Julie King – North Tyneside Carers’ Centre 
Paul Jones – North Tyneside Healthwatch 
Lesley Laws – Carer 
Ken Palmer – Carer 

 
 
 

   
 
 

Further information 
 
For further information about this review please contact: 
 
Democratic Support Officer:  Joanne Holmes 
Tel:  191 643 5315 
Email:  joanne.holmes@northtyneside.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 
North Tyneside Council 
Report to Cabinet 
Date: 23 May 2022 
 
Title: Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs 
 
 
Portfolio(s): 

 
Environment 
Regeneration & Economic 
Development 
Employment & Skills 
 

 
Cabinet Member(s): 
 

 
Cllr S Graham 
Cllr C Johnson 

 
Report from: 

 
Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee 
 

   
Wards affected: 
 

All 
 

 

 
PART 1 
 
1.1 Executive Summary: 
 

The purpose of this report is to present the findings of the Green Skills Sub Group 
which was appointed by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee of the Overview, 
Scrutiny and Development Committee to consider how the local training market could 
be stimulated to ensure local people have the skills and qualification required to 
deliver the retrofitting of energy efficient measures to homes and buildings.    

 
The recommendations for Cabinet to consider are set out in the report and 
recommendations of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee attached to this report 
at Appendix 1 and summarised in paragraph 1.5.5 below. 
 

In accordance with section 9FE of the Local Government Act 2000, Cabinet is required 
to provide a response to the recommendations of the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee within two months. In providing this response Cabinet is 
required to indicate what (if any) action it proposes to take, and because the Sub-
Committee’s report has been published, Cabinet’s response must be published. 

 
1.2 Recommendation(s): 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 
a) receive the report and recommendations of the Economic Prosperity Sub-

Committee’s Green Skills Sub Group attached as Appendix 1; and 
 
b) agree to receive a further report in June 2022 setting out Cabinet’s proposed 

response to the report and recommendations of the Economic Prosperity Sub-
Committee’s Green Skills Sub Group setting out what (if any) action Cabinet 
proposes to take. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



 
  

1.3 Forward Plan: 
 

The report was included in the Forward Plan published in April 2022 under the 
heading “Matters arising from Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee 
and its sub-committees”. 

 
1.4 Council Plan and Policy Framework  
 

The report relates to the following priorities contained in the 2021/2025 Our North 
Tyneside Plan: 
 
A thriving North Tyneside 

We will bring more good quality jobs to North Tyneside – by helping local businesses 
to grow and making it attractive for new businesses to set up or relocate in the 
borough 

We will invest in adult education and to support apprenticeships to make sure people 
have the right skills for the job       

A green North Tyneside 

We will publish an action plan of the steps we will take and the national investment 
we will seek to make North Tyneside carbon net-zero by 2030 

  
1.5 Information: 

 
Background 

 
1.5.1 In determining its work programme for 2021/22 the Economic Prosperity Sub-

Committee agreed to appoint a sub-group to examine the Authority’s approach to 
adapting to a green industrial revolution and ensuring people have the right skills for 
the future green jobs. 

 
1.5.2 The Sub-Committee subsequently appointed the Green Skills Sub Group, drawn from 

members of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee, Environment Sub Committee 
and Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee, to:  
a) consider the steps required to ensure residential, public, commercial and industrial 

buildings in the borough have the lowest possible carbon emissions to support the 
Council’s 2030 net zero ambition; 

b) analyse the skills, qualifications and accreditations that will need to be gained by 
the local workforce so that: 
i. they are equipped to deliver energy efficient buildings; 
ii. the need for imported skills is avoided; and 
iii. the borough benefits from the low carbon economic growth; 

c) identify sources of funding that could be accessed for skills and training from a 
variety of sources to support the local economy; and 

d) make recommendations to the Elected Mayor and Cabinet on how the Authority 
and its partners might stimulate the local training market so that the required skills, 
qualifications and accreditations can be taught to our residents by North Tyneside 
based providers. 

 

Page 32



1.5.3 The Sub Group held a series of evidence gathering meetings with officers and key 
stakeholders during January and February 2022 and also had regard to a wealth of 
policy documents and research papers which have been published in relation to 
decarbonising the built environment and the skills and jobs that will be required to 
deliver it.  
 

1.5.4 The Sub Group has prepared a report setting out its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations and this is attached at Appendix 1. The report was considered and 
agreed by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee on 10 May 2022.  The Chair of 
the Overview, Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee, Councillor Janet Hunter, 
has waived the requirement that the report be submitted to and approved by the 
Overview, Scrutiny and Development Committee because its next scheduled meeting 
is not until 13 June 2022. It is hoped that by presenting the report and 
recommendations to Cabinet at the earliest opportunity this will assist the Cabinet 
review and revise its Climate Emergency Action Plan.     

 
1.5.5 The Cabinet is recommended to consider: 
 

1.  Developing a Retrofit Strategy to stimulate the local retrofit market, including a 
phased approach to:  
a)  retrofitting of the Authority’s 14,000 council houses; 
b)  acceleration of energy efficiency retrofit in the 90,000 private homes; and 
c) development of industrial/commercial retrofit clusters. 

 
2 Integrating the above as a key area of focus within its existing Climate Emergency 

Action Plan. 
 
3 Establishing a Climate Emergency Partnership Board. Within this establish two 

retrofitting working groups, one focused on industrial/commercial property, the 
other on residential property. Membership of the groups should be extended to 
significant property owners in the borough who share our ambition to lower the 
carbon footprint of their buildings and are committed to sharing best practice.  

 
4 Developing a communications strategy to stimulate demand by creating and 

maintaining a sense of urgency regarding the twin benefits of energy efficiency 
and carbon reduction. Promote the opportunities and benefits of retrofitting homes 
and buildings, including cost savings in the light of energy price rises. 

 
5 Developing a set of scenarios (fast, medium, slow) for the retrofitting of various 

building types under various ownership. Consider undertaking this work in concert 
with colleagues at NTCA. 

 
6 Developing a Knowledge Bank for the sharing of locally relevant retrofitting 

information, evaluation and case studies.   
 
7 Ensuring that the relevant officers take up the challenge of enabling ‘Green 

Finance’, both grants and loans, to flow into the borough, through a variety of 
routes. 

 
8 Increasing the number of PAS2035 qualified professionals in North Tyneside by 

commissioning a Retrofit Academy in North Tyneside for the delivery of PAS2035 
qualifications. Recognise that this is likely to require the offer of some kind of 
financial incentive to professionals looking to upskill, to mitigate the risk to those 
professionals of shifting focus towards a newly emerging sector.  

Page 33



 
9 Commissioning pilots, trials and demonstrator projects that can be used to 

establish feasibility and grow the number of willing to invest in their properties, be 
they domestic or commercial.  

 
10 Working closely with North of Tyne Combined Authority on its retrofitting-related 

workstreams, to ensure that North Tyneside is an early adopter of any 
programmes to upskill in green construction skills and to accelerate the pace of 
retrofitting of local property. 

 
 

1.5 Decision options: 
 

The following decision options are available for consideration by Cabinet: 
 
Option 1 
Cabinet accepts the recommendations in paragraph 1.2 above 
 
Option 2 
Cabinet does not accept the recommendations in paragraph 1.2 above. 
 
Option 1 is the preferred option because under the provisions of the Local Government 
Act 2000 Cabinet has a duty to provide a response to the report and recommendations 
presented to it by the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee’s Green Skills Sub Group.  

 
1.6 Appendices: 
 

Appendix 1 – Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs – A Report from the Economic Prosperity 
Sub-Committee  

 
1.7 Contact officers: 
 

Michael Robson, Democratic Services Officer Tel. (0191) 643 5359 
 
1.8 Background information: 
 

The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of 
this report and are available at the office of the author: 

 
  Minutes of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee 
  Local Government Act 2000 
 

 
PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 
 
2.1 Finance and other resources 
 
The financial implications associated with each recommendation will be included in Cabinet’s 
response to this report. 
 
2.2 Legal 
 
The legal requirement for Cabinet to respond to the report and recommendations under the 
Local Government Act 2000 are dealt with in the report. 

Page 34

https://democracy.northtyneside.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=163&MId=611&Ver=4
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents


 
2.3 Consultation/community engagement 
 
2.3.1 Internal Consultation 
 
The Study Group met with those officers listed in Appendix A to the report. 
 
2.3.2 External Consultation/Engagement 
 
The Study Group met with a range of key stakeholders from outside of the Council, listed in 
Appendix A to the report. 
 
2.4 Human rights 
 
There are no direct issues relating to human rights arising from this report.   
 
2.5 Equalities and diversity 
 
There are no direct issues relating to equalities and diversity arising from this report.   
 
2.6 Risk management 
 
There are no direct issues relating to risk arising from this report. 
 
2.7 Crime and disorder 
 
There are no direct issues relating to crime and disorder arising from this report. 
 
2.8 Environment and sustainability 
 
The report is directly related to the Council’s decision to declare a climate emergency and to 
publish an action plan of the steps it will take and the national investment it will seek to make 
North Tyneside carbon net-zero by the earlier date of 2030.  
 
 
PART 3  
 
As a report from a Scrutiny Committee, the report has been circulated to the following officers 
for information. 
 

  Chief Executive  
 

  Directors(s) of Service  
 

  Mayor/Cabinet Member(s) 
 

  Chief Finance Officer  
 

  Monitoring Officer 
 

  Asistant Chief Executive  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee Report 
 

 

Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs   
 

 

 

April 2022  
  

Page 37



1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council’s Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee is a scrutiny committee. It 

has no decision making powers but it examines matters relating to the 
economy, transport and tourism in North Tyneside and makes 
recommendations to the Elected Mayor and her Cabinet to help shape the 
Council’s future policies, plans and strategies.  

 
1.2 In determining its work programme for 2021/22 the sub-committee agreed to 

appoint a sub-group to examine the Council’s approach to adapting to a green 
industrial revolution and ensuring people have the right skills for the future 
green jobs. 

 
1.3 At the same time the Chair of the Sub-Committee, Councillor Matt Wilson, as 

part of the Executive Leadership Academy, had studied the steps required to 
ensure buildings in the borough have the lowest possible carbon emissions 
and how the local workforce might be equipped with the required skills, 
qualifications and accreditations to upgrade building insulation and ventilation 
and switch energy source from gas to green electricity, via a process known 
as ‘retrofitting’. In response to this work the Elected Mayor, Norma Redfearn, 
asked Councillor Wilson to work with the Sub-Committee, in conjunction with 
the Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee, to do some further policy 
development work on this area to explore what opportunities are available and 
what the Council might do to support businesses and residents to take them. 

 
1.3 In response the sub-committee appointed a sub group, made up of members 

of the Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee, Environment Sub Committee and 
Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee. The following members 
agreed to serve on the sub group: 
Councillor Matt Wilson (Lead) 
Councillor Brian Burdis 
Councillor Bruce Pickard 
Councillor Margaret Hall 
Councillor Trish Brady 
Councillor Liam Bones 
Councillor Maureen Madden 

 
2. Objectives and Key Lines of Enquiry 
 
2.1 The Big Why: 
 At the outset of this sub group there were three main drivers;  

  To stimulate and support new economic activity that would be beneficial in 
terms of the quality of jobs available and the overall prosperity of the borough.   

  To make a difference in terms of reducing overall greenhouse gas emissions 
in North Tyneside.  

  To respond to the growing sense of alarm around energy costs which are 
affecting both households and businesses.  

 
As the work of the sub group progressed the third item on the list above was 
brought into ever-greater relief. It has quickly risen up the agenda nationally 
as a matter of critical importance.  

Page 38



2.2 In setting the objectives of the sub group, members were mindful that the 
transition to a low carbon economy will be an enormous and complex task and 
so they agreed to focus attention on one element of the agenda, namely the 
retrofitting of the building stock in North Tyneside. Retrofit is the process of 
upgrading existing homes and buildings to make them more energy efficient. 
This usually involves improving the fabric of the building through installing 
insulation, upgrading the building services and introducing renewable energy 
and heat sources such as solar panels and heat pumps.  

 
2.3 Accordingly, the sub-group were asked to: 

a) consider the steps required to ensure residential, public, commercial and 
industrial buildings in the borough have the lowest possible carbon 
emissions to support the Council’s 2030 net zero ambition; 

b) analyse the skills, qualifications and accreditations that will need to be 
gained by the local workforce so that: 
i. they are equipped to deliver energy efficient buildings; 
ii. the need for imported skills is avoided; and 
iii. the borough benefits from the low carbon economic growth; 

c) identify sources of funding that could be accessed for skills and training 
from a variety of sources to support the local economy; and 

d) make recommendations to the Elected Mayor and Cabinet on how the 
Council and its partners might stimulate the local training market so that 
the required skills, qualifications and accreditations can be taught to our 
residents by North Tyneside based providers. 

 
3. Methodology 
 
3.1 The sub group began by formulating a work programme in which it identified 

detailed key lines of enquiry and relevant sources of evidence. The sub group 
then held a series of evidence gathering meetings with officers and key 
stakeholders during January and February 2022 (listed in Appendix A).  The 
sub group have also had regard to a wealth of policy documents and research 
papers which have been published in relation to decarbonising the built 
environment and the skills and jobs that will be required to deliver it. These 
are also listed in Appendix A together with hyperlinks to the documents for 
reference purposes.  

 
4. What factors should be considered when seeking to cut greenhouse gas 

emissions from residential, public, commercial and industrial buildings 
in the borough to support the Council’s 2030 net zero ambition? 

 
4.1 National. In 2019, the UK Government set a target of achieving net zero 

emissions by 2050. In July 2019 the Council, like many other local authorities, 
agreed to declare a climate emergency, to seek to halve the Authority’s and 
the Borough’s carbon footprint by 2023 and commit that itself and the 
Borough will be carbon neutral by 2050 in line with the national target. Since 
then, and in acknowledging the gravity and urgency of the climate emergency, 
the Council agreed to publish an action plan of the steps it will take and the 
national investment it will seek to make North Tyneside carbon net-zero by 
the earlier date of 2030.  

 

Page 39



4.2 Local. In September 2020 the Council’s Climate Emergency Board formulated 
a range of policy proposals, aimed at achieving the Council’s carbon reduction 
targets. An action plan contained a series of strategic projects to decarbonise 
buildings, heating and electricity. These projects provide an indication of the 
scale of the retrofit challenge, as they included  
a)  the large scale roll out of an ambitious housing stock retrofit 

programme across the Council’s 14,000 council houses; 
b)  an acceleration of energy efficiency retrofit in the 90,000 owner 

occupied and private rented homes in North Tyneside; 
c) the promotion of industrial clusters to integrate and connect large 

industries within the Borough to deliver decarbonisation and energy 
savings; and 

d) the rollout of heat pumps in Council and wider public sector buildings 
across North Tyneside, including schools. 

Note: The group heard that in North Tyneside, electrifying heat via heat 
pumps can achieve 88% reduction in CO2 by 2030; 91% by 2050. 

 
4.3 Regional. Further evidence of the retrofit challenge has been produced for the 

North of Tyne Combined Authority1 to support the preparation of a business 
plan for a large scale housing retrofit programme designed to reduce fuel 
poverty and carbon emissions. This work concluded that: 
a) local retrofit rates will need to ramp up quickly. To achieve net zero 

emissions by 2030 will require over 80,000 homes to be retrofitted per 
year by 2027; more than 10 times the current rate; and 

b) the cost of achieving the net zero emissions by 2030 will require an 
estimated £13bn in funding, beyond known current and forthcoming grant 
funding. 

 
4.4 a) Sectoral - Housing. The sub group has also heard how other sectors are 

addressing retrofit. Registered Housing Providers such as Bernicia, who 
manage 1,000 properties in North Tyneside, are setting targets to improve 
energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions in their homes. They estimate 
that the net zero ambition will require approximately £20,000 of investment 
per property.  

 
 b) Sectoral – Commercial & Industrial. Many large industrial and commercial 

premises in the borough are dated and inefficient. Others, such as The 
Quorum Business Park, whilst fairly modern, no longer satisfy today’s higher 
standards. As corporate ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) 
responsibilities become more important, businesses are now beginning to give 
consideration to retrofit options and how they might be funded.  

 
The group found that both sectors described above were very positive 
towards working collaboratively with the Council to reduce overall emissions. 
There was a recognition that the issues are complex and the sharing of 
knowledge and learning is vital.  

 
4.5 The Council has made a start and is making progress in reducing carbon 

emissions from its buildings:  
 

1 Building the evidence base for retrofit in the North of Tyne – Energy Saving Trust 

Page 40



  Energy efficient air source heat pumps are being installed at Hadrian 
Leisure Centre, Tynemouth Swimming Pool, The Lakeside Centre and 
Waves.  

  Energy surveys are being undertaken of the Authority’s buildings with a 
view to developing a Renewable Heat and Energy Plan and the 
Council’s Estates Strategy will be reviewed and aligned to the aims and 
objectives of the Climate Emergency Plan.  

  The retrofitting of the Council’s 14,000 homes housing stock is starting 
from a strong position following the installation of solar PV and double 
glazing and provision has been included in the Capital Plan for high 
efficiency boilers, cavity wall insulation replacement and solar PV 
installation alongside roof replacements, supported with funding from 
the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery (LAD) but the overall 
cost of retrofitting the housing stock is estimated to be £280m.  

This work means the Council is leading by example and acting as a trailblazer 
in demonstrating the benefits of installing low carbon, energy efficient heating 
systems which may help persuade others to follow the Council’s lead.  

4.6 It is important that when the council embarks on and completes pathbreaking 
projects such as those listed above, detailed learning is shared widely with a 
range of stakeholders and interested parties. The development of some kind 
of Knowledge Bank containing case studies would be very helpful.  

 
4.7 Property owners are facing a range of risks and challenges associated with 

retrofit including: 
a)  uncertainties about the development of future technologies such as 

hydrogen and the risks of investment regret by adopting currently 
available solutions that are superseded by more efficient future systems; 

b)  avoiding additional repairs and maintenance burdens; 
c) avoiding increased fuel poverty; 
d) a lack of a supply chain and the skills required to deliver assessment, 

advice, design, installation and maintenance services; and  
f) the national infrastructure required to support some new technologies  

 
4.8 The Council will also face challenges in achieving its 2030 net zero ambition 

when national targets, schemes and funding frameworks are not synchronised 
because they are based on the 2050 target.  

 
5. How should we understand the opportunities and the costs of a large 

scale retrofitting initiative?  
 
5.1 The low carbon economy is predicted to grow four times faster than the rest of 

the economy over the next decade and the transition to this green economy 
provides a real opportunity for driving the post-pandemic economic recovery.   
The Government forecasts that the policies and proposals for heat and 
buildings set out in its Net Zero Strategy will support up to 100,000 jobs in the 
middle of the 2020s and up to 175,000 in 2030 and attract additional public 
and private investment of approximately £200 billion. 
Notably, as the sub group was concluding its work the Chancellor, in his 
spring statement, announced a new zero VAT rating for a range of retrofit 
products such as solar panels, heat pumps and insulation.  

Page 41



5.2 Research undertaken for the North of Tyne Combined Authority indicates that 
a large scale housing retrofit programme in the area to reach Net Zero by 
2050 has the potential to support between 1,500 and 3,500 FTEs in the 
retrofitting sector from 2022 up to 2030, and between 2,500 and 5,800 FTEs 
from 2030 to 2050. The scale of activity required to reach Net Zero by 2030 
will require a markedly higher labour input over the period 2022-2030. 

 
5.3 However, it is also true that the transition to a net zero economy and in 

particular the retrofitting of homes and buildings is often presented and 
perceived in terms of a significant cost to homeowners, landlords and other 
property owners. The sub group believe that it is important that the council 
carefully holds these two truths (opportunity and cost) in tension. The 
narrative around economic opportunity, in terms of stimulating new economic 
activity and increasing per worker productivity, appears underdeveloped.  

 
5.3 One key challenge will therefore involve enabling ‘Green Finance’, both grants 

and loans, to flow into the borough, through a variety of routes. This is 
essential in order to pay capital investments to be made into building fabric 
that will deliver a positive return over the medium and long term in terms of 
energy cost savings. 

 
5.4 With relation to the local economy and labour market retrofit therefore 

presents the borough with an opportunity to   
a. create new and better jobs within an inclusive economy that offers local 

people with a range of new and exciting career pathways;  
b. transition people currently working in carbon intensive industries (such 

as gas engineers) into the low carbon sector through retraining; 
c. attract millions of pounds of investment expected in low carbon 

technologies over the next decades. 
 
5.5 In summary, the sub group are aware that over the years there have been 

many policy initiatives to improve the energy efficiency of homes but consider 
that there is now a new and real sense of urgency and momentum created by 
the energy crisis, the climate emergency and the national and local net zero 
targets. 

 
6. What skills, qualifications and accreditations will need to be gained by 

the local workforce so that: 
i. they are equipped to deliver energy efficient buildings; 
ii. the need for imported skills is avoided; and 
iii. the borough benefits from the low carbon economic growth? 

 
6.1 In 2015 the government commissioned a review to identify and tackle the high 

level of failure present in domestic retrofit, and to determine a better process 
for the retrofit of energy efficiency and renewable energy measures. As a 
result of this review PAS 2035 was introduced to provide a set of standards 
and specifications for assessing domestic dwellings for energy retrofit and to 
provide a best practice framework for their implementation. The government 
has proposed to make compliance with PAS 2035 mandatory for all public 
funded projects.  

 

Page 42



6.2 PAS2035 has provided training organisations with the basis on which to 
develop and deliver new qualifications. Organisations like The Retrofit 
Academy CIC, a not for profit training company, have been set up to develop 
and deliver qualifications that equip people with the knowledge and skills to 
deliver retrofit excellence covering the different roles involved in the retrofit 
process. The Retrofit Academy have created and offered the following 
qualifications: 
Level 5: Diploma in Retrofit Coordination and Risk Management 
Level 4: Award in Domestic Retrofit Assessment 
Level 3: Certificate in Domestic Retrofit Advice 
Level 2: Award in Understanding Domestic Retrofit 
These are all based on the PAS 2035 standards/specification for assessing 
domestic dwellings for energy retrofit. 
 

6.3  The sub group spoke to David Pierpoint of the Retrofit Academy CIC, a 
recognised national expert, with experience of developing and delivering 
qualifications that equip people with the knowledge and skills to deliver retrofit 
excellence. He confirmed the scale of the retrofit challenge and the current 
lack of capacity and skills within the construction industry to deliver large scale 
retrofit programmes. He described how Retrofit Academy CIC had established 
the UK Retrofit Training Network to bring together local authorities, training 
providers, funding bodies, candidates and employers. Two pathfinder projects 
have been established with Essex and Devon County Councils. The schemes 
deliver the courses and qualifications developed by the Academy which are 
based on the PAS 2035 standards framework for energy retrofit measures 
and provides best practices for their implementation.  

6.4 Tyne Coast College (TyneMet) were involved in the meeting with Retrofit 
Academy CIC and afterwards confirmed the following:  

“Tyne Coast college is committed to ensuring that our curriculum is forward 
thinking, and that knowledge, skills, Personal development, attitudes and 
behaviours are developed in consultation with, and to meet the needs of, 
students, employers, the community needs and stakeholders. 
One aspect of this is equipping our Construction and Engineering students 
with ‘Green’ skills in areas such as sustainability, renewables, and retrofitting. 
This additionally supports our commitment to North Tyneside Council’s ‘Net 
Zero targets’ and our dedication to working with the local council ‘Green Skills 
Subgroup’ to develop our innovative and ambitious ‘green curriculum’.” 

 
6.5 Whilst many of the skills required for retrofit will be specific to the sector, the 

transition will require and support an array of skills not unique to retrofit. The 
NTCA2 has identified three categories of skills relating to: 
a) professional services; in relation to retrofit advice, design, compliance, 

and monitoring and verification services; and 
b) installation; such as air and ground source heat pumps, solar 

photovoltaic, insulation and energy efficient windows and doors. 
c)  project support; including marketing, customer service, estimation, 

procurement, contract management, quality management, 
commissioning, testing and performance monitoring; 

 
2 Developing a Delivery Framework for Climate Change Improvements Across Domestic and Non-
Domestic Properties Across the North of Tyne Authority 

Page 43



6.6 The sub group supports the NTCA’s commitment within its Skills Strategy 
2021-23 to deliver a skills system which will equip the local workforce with the 
right skills to build an inclusive and competitive low carbon economy and to 
work with providers to consider the technical qualifications that will be required 
in curriculum planning and development. This includes a recognition of the 
requirement to train young people and create apprenticeships, T-levels and 
similar pathways, in order to enable access to the emerging technologies of 
the future. 

 
6.7 There now needs to be a borough-wide retrofit skills assessment to identify in 

detail the skills needed and the phasing of training to meet expected demand 
across the area. Any assessment should: 
a) engage with local employers to assess and map existing demand and 
deliver training to match actual demand; 
b) identify the different interventions required to deliver the breadth of skills 
required as set out in paragraph 5.4; and 
c) include a monitoring and evaluation framework to capture learning.   

 
6.8 The sub group also noted risks associated with creating new jobs in the 

retrofit sector. There is the possibility of displacement (the increase in low 
carbon economic activity being offset by reductions in economic activity in 
other sectors) and substitution (employers meeting the demand for increased 
housing retrofit activity by switching away from other areas of their work 
without increasing overall employment.) The sub group is also concerned 
about the sustainability of employment created by a retrofit programme and 
the extent to which skills obtained for this purpose could be transferrable to 
other parts of the construction sector in the longer term. 

 
6.9  This concern has particular salience with respect to the pace at which retrofit 

takes place. A sudden rush to retrofit at scale may be needed from a Climate 
Emergency point of view, but could have unintended consequences in terms 
of producing a ‘boom and bust’ effect. This has been modelled by consultants 
working for NTCA, showing 2030 and 2050 scenarios. See below:  

 

Page 44



 
7. What sources of funding could be accessed for skills and training to 

support the local economy? 
 
7.1 Attracting ‘Green Finance’ into the borough will be critical. The sub group 

discovered various sources of funding and resources available to equip 
people with the skills required for retrofit. A portfolio of models is required, not 
a one-size-fits-all approach. Longevity of funding models is of key importance 
and private finance needs to be commercially attractive to investors i.e. a 
positive return-on-investment must be proven within a given time frame. 
Pilots, trials and demonstrator projects can be used to establish feasibility and 
grow the number of willing to invest in their properties, be they domestic or 
commercial.  

 
7.2 The NTCA has allocated £2m within its Skills for Growth Fund for innovative 

proposals that equip people with the skills they need to capitalise on the 
growing employment opportunities in the Low Carbon and Renewable Energy 
Economy. Two projects have received funding: 

i)  Geon Training Solutions Ltd have developed a project to address the 
skills shortage in the construction sector; in particular, green construction 
skills needed to deliver the domestic retrofit agenda. The objective is to 
increase local employment numbers and address the skills shortage 
through sustainable, meaningful employment opportunities tailored to 
individual learner needs, aptitudes and capabilities. Partnered with Re-
Geon, Karbon Homes, Shaw Construction, HS Scaffolding, MGM Ltd, 
Utility Team and Ovington Boats.  The programme consists of regulated 
and non-regulated qualifications in Domestic Retrofit & Environmental 
Sustainability in Construction. If approved they will begin delivery in May 
2022; 

ii)  Newcastle University Group are to work with the retrofit supply chain to 
identify the skills required to install heat pumps, smart meters etc and 
formulate a curriculum to be shared with colleges to plug the skills gaps. 
This work will consider training standards to ensure there is quality and 
consistency. It will also consider non-accredited areas outside formal 
qualifications such as licenses to practice. 

7.3 The NTCA has control of the £23m Adult Education Budget which to date has 
been targeted at entry level courses and Level 2 employability skills in relation 
to the construction sector and it is acknowledged that there will need to be a 
shift in emphasis towards low carbon, green technologies. 

7.4 Government funded Skills Boot Camps delivered as part of the Lifetime Skills 
Guarantee, offer free, flexible courses of up to 16 weeks aimed at giving 
people the opportunity to build up sector-specific skills and fast-track to an 
interview with a local employer. The NTCA has submitted a bid for £5m from 
the Government to deliver a Skills Boot Camp programme to include green 
construction skills and recognise retrofit. 

Page 45



7.5 European Social Funding for projects to provide training opportunities for 
unemployed and economically inactive people is coming to an end. It is hoped 
that the new UK Shared Prosperity Fund may go some way to plugging this 
gap. Details of UKSPF were not available at the time the Sub Group was 
considering evidence. Some details have subsequently been released by the 
Government revealing that funding is expected to align with the 12 ‘missions’ 
contained within the recent ‘Levelling Up’ white paper. North of Tyne 
Combined Authority (NTCA) have been allocated £51.2m to invest over three 
years which is significantly lower than the equivalent EU funding allocation. 
NTCA are developing a Local Investment Plan to be submitted to Government 
by 1 August 2022. The Plan will take account of the 3 themes set out by 
Government: communities and place, local businesses and people and skills. 

7.6 Funding for apprenticeships and the Apprenticeship Levy. There are however 
currently no apprenticeships directly related to retrofit or the PAS2035 
standards. Responsibility for the establishment of these programmes rests 
with major employers to work in conjunction with the Institute of 
Apprenticeships to create new apprenticeships standards as demand 
emerges. The sub group heard of inertia within the construction industry to 
engage with energy efficiency and decarbonisation programmes. Similarly, the 
process of creating new apprenticeship programmes takes a long time with 
the development of standards for the low carbon sector only just beginning. 

7.7 The Government has committed significant additional funding to the roll out of 
T Levels. T Levels are two-year courses that can be studied by 16-18 year 
olds and equivalent to 3 A Levels. They are technical-based qualifications 
developed in collaboration with employers and businesses so that the content 
meets the needs of industry and prepares students for work. T Levels will be 
offered in relation to engineering for construction, design, surveying and 
planning for construction and onsite construction. 

7.8 The Retrofit Academy reported that in its experience around 60% of its 
learners were self-funded and 40% either part or fully funded by a range of 
government sources including Adult Education Budgets (Manchester), DfE 
Innovation Fund (West Midlands) and the Community Renewal Fund (Devon 
& Essex). Offering a financial incentive to professionals looking to upskill is 
likely to help offset the risk to those professionals of shifting focus towards a 
newly emerging sector. This could be in the form of loan, grant, or a mix.   

7.10 The sub group also acknowledged the range of activities that are engaged in 
raising aspirations, changing perceptions and convincing young people that 
there are opportunities in the low carbon sector to build a successful career in 
the future. Whilst there is little reference to the impact of the climate 
emergency within the National Curriculum, schools in North Tyneside do 
address the topic with young people through a wide range of extra curricular 
activities. Careers advice and guidance within schools relating to retrofit is 
currently not well developed and needs work.  

7.11 There have been a range of Government, LEP and NTCA interventions to 
lever in private sector investment, but this is reliant on confidence within the 
sector. Uncertainties regarding future funding for retrofit programmes such as 
the Green Homes Grant have not helped. A portfolio of scalable, sustainable 
funding models for retrofit will stimulate demand and offer confidence to the 

Page 46



construction sector, which in turn will lead to greater investment in training 
people in the skills required. The NTCA3 have shortlisted funding models for a 
large scale retrofit programme but these models are yet to be fully evaluated. 

 
7.12 At the domestic level a number of Green Finance initiatives have been 

proposed to NTCA and could therefore present options for North Tyneside:  
  

Secured Loans 
  

• Secured loan allows homeowners to borrow money 
while using property as ‘security’ 

• May lead to better mortgage terms as house value 
increases with energy efficiency and because 
borrowers are less likely to default on their loans with 
lower energy bills 

Demand 
Aggregation 
Finance (DAF) 

• Online service, coupled with new financial products, 
that establishes ‘critical mass’ for a retrofit technology 
(eg heat pumps) in a local area 

• Lowers up-front and financing costs for property owners 
that register interest in scheme 

Pay as you save 

• Utility company pays for upfront cost of a distributed 
energy solution and recovers costs on the monthly bill 
with charge less than savings 

• Customer sees positive cash flow at start of the 
operation, and once the utility recovers its costs, the 
equipment belongs to the customer 

 
 
8. A North Tyneside Retrofit Strategy 

 
8.1 Offering a simple overview the retrofitting process is important in helping 

stakeholders to see the sequence of events required to develop and complete 
each individual project, whether domestic or commercial. The process can be 
seen as a chain linking 3 key elements:  
a) Assessing and advising. This is the design end of the process. Retrofit 

requires a set of assessment skills and qualifications to specify in detail, 
with costings, the appropriate works within any specific building. The skills 
are currently lacking in the borough and the wider area so training stimulus 
needed. Trust is vital, the advice people require is highly technical, specific 
and detailed with estimated costs that are realistic. An NTC approved list 
of advisors is needed. PAS2035 is an essential qualification. 

b) Securing Finance, which requires a range of financial products, for 
example, Homeowners may re-mortgage with a green mortgage product 
releasing equity to pay for work, thereby adding capital value to their home 
and also reducing monthly cost of energy. Grant funding could be offered 
towards pilot schemes that help to illuminate the costs, benefits and 
project delivery challenges. This may be best aimed at commercial 
projects and higher volume domestic work e.g. Housing Associations.  

c) Implementing the work on site. Retrofit requires a set of technical skills 
and qualifications to ultimately deliver on site whatever improvements 

 
3 Building the evidence base for retrofit in the North of Tyne – Energy Savings Trust 

Page 47



have been specified at the assess & advise stage. These skills are 
currently lacking in the borough and the wider area so training stimulus 
needed. Quality is essential, the highest standards must be achieved. 
Poor work risk reputational damage which could slow down progress, as 
was shown in previous poor quality cavity wall insulation schemes, many 
of which failed. Again, an NTC approved list of technical providers is 
needed. Projects should be followed up with case studies and impact 
evaluations.    

  
8.2  The sub group gave consideration as to how the Council must intervene to 

affect the prevailing market dynamics so that each stage of the retrofitting 
chain is in place and ready to hand on to the next. The model below shows 
that whilst the 3 main elements within the retrofitting process are delivered by 
the private sector*, the market is currently very fragile and requires the 
support of the council to ensure it functions effectively:  

 

    

 
*Note: The term ‘Private sector’ is used here loosely. For example, in Greater 
Manchester homeowners can obtain specialist retrofitting assessment and 
advice from People-Powered Retrofit, which is a Co-Operative enterprise.   

 
8.3 Leadership 

It was clear from the evidence submitted by The Retrofit Academy that the 
Council has a key leadership role to play in stimulating the local retrofit market 
in North Tyneside. In order to stimulate demand for retrofit activity, a 
communications strategy should be developed to create and maintain a sense 
of urgency regarding the climate emergency and promote the opportunities 
and benefits of retrofitting homes and buildings, including cost savings in the 
light of energy price rises. 

  
8.3 Partnership 

At such an early stage it is not sufficient to hope that the local retrofitting 
market will self-develop according to an ‘invisible hand’. Potential points of 
failure need to be anticipated which requires a 360 degree view. This will only 
be achieved through a co-ordinated approach working in collaboration with 
training providers, funding bodies, employers and local communities. The 
Climate Emergency Partnership Board will be key, if retrofit can be properly 
established as a Working Group within it. See below.  
 

  

LEADERSHIP 

ASSESSING 
& ADVISING

SECURING 
FINANCE

PROJECT 
IMPLEMENTATION

PARTNERSHIP 

NTC

NTC

Private 
sector

Page 48



9. A North Tyneside Retrofit Partnership 
9.1 The Authority cannot deliver this strategy alone. It will require co-ordinated 

action from a diverse range of stakeholders including the private sector, 
funding agencies, training providers, and communities too.  

 
9.2 The sub group found a desire from the private sector to advance more quickly 

against the carbon reduction goals and a recognition that retrofitting their 
buildings is an important part of this. For example, the operators of Quorum 
Business Park, Shelbourne Assets, are keen to work collaboratively with 
tenants, landlords and businesses on the Park to identify retrofit options and 
solutions. Whilst businesses located at Quorum have experience on how to 
make the Park more sustainable they do not have the knowledge or expertise 
to deliver net zero, particularly with reference to the fossil fuel consumption 
within existing buildings. They are therefore keen to collaborate with others in 
taking a lead on retrofit and may be willing to lead by example in contributing 
towards the delivering the Council’s net zero ambition. 

 
9.3  The sub group also heard from registered housing providers who would 

consider joining a net zero group. 
 
9.4 It is suggested that an external partnership board be established.  
 An aspirational retrofit engagement event could be used to test levels of 

interest and secure involvement. This could then be followed by a more detail 
oriented gathering of stakeholders to determine the terms of reference.  

 The Board could have 2 sub-groups: 
  Commercial/industrial property retrofit  
  Domestic property retrofit 

 
10. A North Tyneside Retrofit Academy 
 
10.1 To ensure that the North Tyneside economy takes full advantage of the 

opportunities presented by retrofit and that local people benefit from the jobs 
created, it will be necessary to create a local pipeline of training for the 
following groups: 
a) providing young people at school, during further education and 

apprenticeships with the aspirations, basic skills, technical skills and 
career pathways to work in the retrofit sector; 

b) upskilling those already working in construction sector and related trades 
and professions; and 

c) re-skilling those moving into this area from other sectors. 
 
10.2 The sub group believes there is an opportunity for North Tyneside to become 

a leader in the delivery of retrofit training regionally. The Retrofit Academy has 
demonstrated in places like Essex and Devon that it is possible to establish 
local partnerships, secure funding, and stimulate demand to deliver PAS2035 
based qualifications through local retrofit academies. The NTCA have also 
taken a lead locally in delivering retrofit training through its Skills for Growth 
Fund.  

10.3 The sub group concludes that the Council ought to commission a suitably 
qualified education/training institution to establish a Retrofit Academy in North 

Page 49



Tyneside to deliver PAS2035 compliant qualifications, according to the 
national Quality Assurance standards.   

 
 
11. Recommendations 
 
 The Cabinet is recommended to consider: 

11.1  Developing a Retrofit Strategy to stimulate the local retrofit market, including a 
phased approach to:  

a)  retrofitting of the Council’s 14,000 council houses 
b)  acceleration of energy efficiency retrofit in the 90,000 private homes 
c) development of industrial/commercial retrofit clusters  

 
11.2 Integrating the above as a key area of focus within its existing Climate 

Emergency Action Plan. 
 
11.3 Establishing the Climate Emergency Partnership Board. Within this establish 

two retrofitting working groups, one focused on industrial/commercial property, 
the other on residential property. Membership of the groups should be 
extended to significant property owners in the borough who share our 
ambition to lower the carbon footprint of their buildings and are committed to 
sharing best practice.  

 
11.4 Developing a communications strategy to stimulate demand by creating and 

maintaining a sense of urgency regarding the twin benefits of energy 
efficiency and carbon reduction. Promote the opportunities and benefits of 
retrofitting homes and buildings, including cost savings in the light of energy 
price rises. 

 
11.5 Developing a set of scenarios (fast, medium, slow) for the retrofitting of 

various building types under various ownership. Consider undertaking this 
work in concert with colleagues at NTCA. 

 
11.6 Developing a Knowledge Bank for the sharing of locally relevant retrofitting 

information, evaluation and case studies.   

11.7 Ensuring that the relevant officers take up the challenge of enabling ‘Green 
Finance’, both grants and loans, to flow into the borough, through a variety of 
routes. 

11.8 Increasing the number of PAS2035 qualified professionals in North Tyneside 
by commissioning a Retrofit Academy in North Tyneside for the delivery of 
PAS2035 qualifications. Recognise that this is likely to require the offer of 
some kind of financial incentive to professionals looking to upskill, to mitigate 
the risk to those professionals of shifting focus towards a newly emerging 
sector.  

11.9 Commissioning pilots, trials and demonstrator projects that can be used to 
establish feasibility and grow the number of willing to invest in their properties, 
be they domestic or commercial.  

Page 50



11.10 Working closely with the North of Tyne Combined Authority on its retrofitting-
related workstreams, to ensure that North Tyneside is an early adopter of any 
programmes to upskill in green construction skills and to accelerate the pace 
of retrofitting of local property.  

Page 51



Appendix A 
Sources of Evidence 

 
The following background documents have been considered in the course of the sub 
group’s investigation: 
 
North Tyneside Climate Emergency Action Plan 
UK Green Building Council 
Energy Efficiency Infrastructure Group 
National Energy Action 
North Tyneside General Hospital 
BREEAM - Sustainability Assessment Method 
Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery scheme, Phase 2: funding allocated to 
Local Energy Hubs - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
NTCA Green New Deal Fund 
 Retrofit Academy 
Salix Finance 
Local Climate Bonds 
Financing energy efficient buildings: the path to retrofit at scale 
Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme 
Skills for Jobs White Paper 
Government Green Jobs Taskforce 
CBI – Skills and Training for the Green Economy 
LGA – Local Green Jobs 
Skills for a Green Economy 
NTCA Green Growth Skills 
NTCA Strategic Skills Plan 
Green Jobs Barometer - PwC UK 
Place Based Climate Action Network 
Microgeneration Certification Scheme 
TrustMark & The Delivery of PAS 2035 
Net Zero in the North East of England: regional transition impacts  
Building Skills for Net Zero - CITB 
Retrofit Academy CIC 
GreenerSussex 
 
The sub group would like to place on record its thanks and appreciation to the 
following people for agreeing to meet with the sub group to discuss and consider the 
skills required to retrofit the building stock in North Tyneside: 
Councillor Sandra Graham 
Paul Nelson, Environmental Sustainability Manager 
John Sparkes, Head of Regeneration and Economic Development 
Niall Cathie, Strategic Property Manager 
Wayne Stark, Operational Manager   
Iain Betham, Senior Manager: Strategic Investment & Property 
Laura McGrath, Events and Sustainability Lead, Shelbourne Asset Management 
(Quorum Park) 
David Foster, Senior Manager Housing Property and Construction 
Robert Peach, Housing Strategy 
Sean Lemon, Energy Savings Trust  
Jess Baker & Kat Deyes, Frontier Economics 
Chris Fry, Accelar 
Michael Farr, Bernicia Homes 
Gareth McQuillan, School Improvement Advisor (Science)  

Page 52

https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/539/sustainability
https://www.ukgbc.org/
https://www.theeeig.co.uk/about/
https://www.nea.org.uk/
https://www.northumberlandgazette.co.uk/health/major-project-to-slash-carbon-emissions-at-north-tyneside-general-hospital-3501582
https://www.breeam.com/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/green-homes-grant-local-authority-delivery-scheme-phase-2-funding-allocated-to-local-energy-hubs
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/green-homes-grant-local-authority-delivery-scheme-phase-2-funding-allocated-to-local-energy-hubs
https://www.northoftyne-ca.gov.uk/projects/green-new-deal-fund-3/
https://www.retrofitacademy.org/
https://www.salixfinance.co.uk/
https://www.greenfinanceinstitute.co.uk/programmes/ceeb/lcbs/
https://www.greenfinanceinstitute.co.uk/news-and-insights/report-financing-energy-efficient-buildings-the-path-to-retrofit-at-scale/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/green-homes-grant-local-authority-delivery-scheme-phase-2-funding-allocated-to-local-energy-hubs
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/skills-for-jobs-lifelong-learning-for-opportunity-and-growth
https://www.gov.uk/government/groups/green-jobs-taskforce
https://www.cbi.org.uk/articles/skills-and-training-for-the-green-economy/
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-green-jobs-accelerating-sustainable-economic-recovery
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwjUyNbeh8LzAhUElFwKHTZHAZIQFnoECAMQAQ&url=https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/32373/11-1315-skills-for-a-green-economy.pdf&usg=AOvVaw08ATQ7naGoyNibGEDVRGSO
https://www.northoftyne-ca.gov.uk/documents/green-growth-skills-call-definition-document/
https://www.northoftyne-ca.gov.uk/documents/strategic-skills-plan/
https://www.pwc.co.uk/who-we-are/our-purpose/building-trust-in-the-climate-transition/supporting-a-fair-transition/green-jobs-barometer.html
https://pcancities.org.uk/
https://mcscertified.com/
https://www.trustmark.org.uk/tradespeople/pas-2035
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/net-zero-in-the-north-east-of-england-regional-transition-impacts
https://www.citb.co.uk/about-citb/construction-industry-research-reports/search-our-construction-industry-research-reports/building-skills-for-net-zero/
https://retrofitacademy.org/
https://greenersussex.co.uk/de-carbonisation-academies/


David Baldwin, North Tyneside Learning Trust 
Belinda Payne, Apprenticeship Manager 
Louise Robson, Senior Manager Organisational Development 
Graeme Barker, Head of Engineering, Manufacturing and IT, Tyne Met College 
Gregory Kirkbride, Head of Engineering, Tyne Met College 
Sam Ogle, Head of Construction and Digital, Tyne Met College  
David Pierpoint, Retrofit Academy CIC 
Michelle Stone, North of Tyne Combined Authority 
Mark Barrett, Senior Manager Employment and Skills 
Sarah Heslop, Strategic Manager Commercial and Procurement 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 
North Tyneside Council 
Report to Cabinet  
Date: 23 May 2022 
 
Title: Land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton 
 
Portfolio(s): Deputy Mayor 

Finance and Resources 
Cabinet 
Member(s): 

Councillor Carl Johnson 
Councillor Martin Rankin 

Report from Service 
Area:  

Commissioning and Asset Management 

Responsible Officer:  Mark Longstaff  
Director of Commissioning and Asset 
Management 

(Tel:(0191) 6438089) 

Wards affected: Monkseaton North  
 
PART 1 
 
1.1 Executive Summary: 
 

This report asks Cabinet to consider representations that have been made to Authority in 
relation to a statutory advertisement confirming the Authority’s intention to dispose an 
area of land within its ownership at Newsteads Drive in Monkseaton, (“the Land”), and 
which is classed as public open space. The Land is shown by dark outline on the 
Appendix Plan.  
 
Under section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972, there is a legal requirement for the 
Authority to advertise its intention to dispose of public open space within its boundaries 
for two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper circulating within the area, and to 
consider any objections or representations made.   
 
46 representations were made to the Authority in the response to the advertisements and 
Cabinet is asked to consider the main points of objection, and of support put forward in 
the representations as summarised in Section 1.5 of the report. 
 

1.2 Recommendation(s): 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet determine whether or not to set aside the objections 
received in relation to the disposal of the Land and, if appropriate, reaffirm authorisation 
to the disposal of the Land. 

 
1.3 Forward Plan: 
 

Twenty-eight days’ notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the 
Forward Plan that was published on 25 February 2022. 

 
  

Page 55

Agenda Item 7

tel:(0191)


1.4 Council Plan and Policy Framework  
 

This report relates to the following priority in the 2021-2025 Our North Tyneside Plan: 
 
A Secure North Tyneside 
 
We will tackle health and socio-economic inequalities across the borough. 

 
1.5 Information: 

 
1.5.1 Background 

 
The Land which is shown by dark outline on the Appendix Plan was declared surplus to 
the Authority’s requirements on 14 December 2021, in accordance with the Officer 
Delegation Scheme. Approval was also given for it to be made available for disposal by 
private treaty.  
 
The proposed disposal of the land is to facilitate the construction of a new medical centre 
to replace Beaumont Park Medical Centre. The existing building dates back to 1984 and 
no longer complies with current NHS design standards. The design of the building is 
prohibiting service delivery to patients as the building is 70% smaller than it should be 
based on the NHS size requirements for health care premises linked to the number of 
patients a practice has registered with it. 
 
Over the last ten years the Practice has modernised and reconfigured the existing 
building as much as possible, but it is no longer feasible for it to carry out any further 
work that will help to meet patient needs. 
 
Therefore, the only option currently available for the Practice is to relocate into a new 
purpose-built medical centre and the Land at Newsteads Drive has been identified as 
being capable of accommodating a building that can meet the latest NHS standards with 
improved accessibility for all patients.  

 
As the Land is classed as public open space it is subject to the relevant provisions of the 
Local Government Act 1972. The Authority must therefore advertise its intention to 
dispose of the Land in accordance with Section 123 of the Act and formally consider any 
representations made. 
 
This must be done by placing Notices advertising the proposed disposal for two 
consecutive weeks in a local newspaper. The Authority’s intentions were advertised in 
the Journal newspaper on 22 December 2021, and 29 December 2021, respectively. The 
closing date for the receipt of representations was set as 21 January 2022.  
 
Prior to the closing date, 46 representations were made to the Authority either by letter or 
email of which 42 were objections to the proposed disposal and 4 were in support of it. 
 
These are categorised below as follows: - 
 

  Representations objecting to the proposed disposal of the Land. 
 

  Representations in support of the proposed disposal of the Land. This includes 
details of a representation received from the North Tyneside Clinical 
Commissioning Group, (NTCCG), as the commissioner of NHS services for the 
local area. 

Page 56



 
In addition to this, details are also given regarding the outcome of consultation with the 
Ward Members for Monkseaton North. 
 
An additional 12 objections were received after the closing date for the receipt of 
representations referred to in the advertisements, namely 21 January 2022 and whilst 
these have not been formally considered, it was noted that the main points of objection 
are similar to those outlined in the objections received before the closing date of 21 
January 2022. 

 
1.5.2 Representations Objecting to the Proposed Disposal of the Land 
 

The main points of objection received by 21 January 2022, are summarised in bold type 
below together with responses provided by the agent acting on behalf of Beaumont Park 
Medical Practice and the Authority’s officers, where appropriate. 

 
The land is regularly used by residents for recreational purposes (children playing 
out, dog walking and fitness groups etc) the loss of this space will negatively 
affect the community. 
 
Loss of green space – negative impact on the visual amenity of the estate and 
potential biodiversity implications. 

 
Officer Response 
The total amount of public open space in this location is approximately 0.92 of a hectare. 
The land required for the medical centre is 0.13 of a hectare. This represents 14% loss of 
the total amount of public open space with 86% remaining available for recreational use. 
 
Traffic concerns – the road is already busy/congested due to the supermarket. It is 
also a popular bus route. It would not be safe to have a new junction in this 
location. 
 
Officer Response 
A Transport Statement (TS) will need to be submitted as part of any potential planning 
application. This will assess traffic generated by the proposal and its impact on the 
adjacent network to determine if the site is suitable and can be accommodated at this 
location without a severe impact on highway safety or congestion.  
 
The TS will also look at public transport provision and accessibility for pedestrians and 
cyclists and identify any improvements deemed necessary. The proposed site access is 
at the northern part of the site and as such, the approximate distances to nearby 
junctions are – Sainsbury’s service road (37m), Sainsbury’s main access (120m) and 
Newsteads Drive spur (72m), which all comply with recommended distances. 

 
Parking concerns – will there be enough spaces at the centre? Residents 
concerned that patients/visitors will park in the residential areas if can’t get space 
at the centre. 
 
Agent Response 
The number of parking spaces will be determined and assessed by the Local Planning 
Authority in order to provide sufficient car parking spaces for ambulatory and disabled 
users of any new medical centre in this location.  Page 57



 
A number of patients at the existing surgery walk to the practice and it is anticipated that 
this will continue. 

 
Officer Response 
Current parking requirements for this type of use are 5 spaces per consulting room plus 1 
disabled space per 20 spaces. 
 
A drop off and pick up area will be required close to the main entrance for ambulances 
and other vehicles and there will also be a requirement for Electric Vehicle (EV) charging 
points to be installed.  There is an expectation from the Local Highway Authority that 
these parking standards will be met 

 
Noise concerns - Residents already have the nightly noise from Sainsbury 
deliveries and building work. They do not want further noise/disturbance during 
the day. Noise from the construction of the centre. Noise from emergency vehicles 
too.  
 
Agent Response 
There will be some noise associated with the construction of the new building, but hours 
of work are expected to be limited by planning condition. The chosen building contractor 
will be expected to be comply with the Considerate Constructors Scheme under which it 
must respect the community, care for the environment and value its workforce. 
 
The site will not be used by emergency vehicles unless there is a patient emergency. The 
new centre is not an Accident and Emergency or similar facility. 

 
Already another medical centre nearby 
 
Agent Response 
The new centre is a replacement/relocation of the Beaumont Park Medical Centre which 
is the nearby medical centre. The new centre will enhance and improve the primary care 
medical facilities in the area for patients. 

 
Restrictive covenants – some residents are under the impression there are 
restrictive covenants on the land and that it must be used for recreational 
purposes. They had correspondence confirming when they first purchased their 
properties in the 90s. 

 
Officer Response 
A check of the Authority’s title to the Land has not revealed any onerous restrictive 
covenant. 
Centre user concerns – will this be an all hours walk in centre? Potential for 
“belligerent and/or drunk individuals demanding treatment. 

 
Agent Response 
The new centre will not be an all hours walk in centre. 
 
Light concerns – how will the building impact those directly adjacent? 

 
Agent Response 

Page 58



The building will be designed to very strict light pollution standards and no impact is 
expected to adjacent properties. 
 
Views – will impact the view from adjacent properties. 
 
Agent Response 
Views from adjacent properties of the new centre are a primary concern to the design 
team which will be fully considered and assessed by the Local Planning Authority and 
effects minimised. 

 
It will set a precedent for the loss of other green spaces across the borough. 
 
Officer Response 
The proposed disposal of this area of public open space will not set a precedent for the 
loss of other green spaces in the borough. Any proposal to dispose of an area of open 
space within the Borough will be considered on its individual merits and the Authority 
must follow the same procedure and advertise the potential disposal and consider any 
representations made. 

 
Security issues - residents will no longer feel safe at home with a public building 
located in close proximity to their homes. Feel that their health and security will be 
significantly compromised. 
 
Agent Response 
The Practice is not aware of any similar concerns from residents adjacent to the existing 
Beaumont Park Medical Centre. Medical centres are a community facility generally 
situated in residential areas within the populations that they serve. 
 
All activities associated with the proposed medical centre will take place inside the 
building. There will be some associated car movements, but these are not expected to be 
substantial.  

 
Concerns on biodiversity issues on the subject site. 
 
Officer Response 
The Authority’s Local Plan identifies the site as open space, and it is within a wildlife 
corridor. In considering any future planning application, the development proposals would 
be assessed against a range of national and local planning policies including those 
relating to the loss of green space and biodiversity. 

 
Concern as to lack of consideration of other sites for the Medical Centre 

 
Agent Response 
Work to try and identify a site for the relocation of Beaumont Park Medical Centre has 
been ongoing since 2019. 
  
Other areas of land that have been considered have had to be discounted for various 
reasons such as being too small to accommodate the size of building required, being too 
remote from the catchment area of the Practice or having access issues. 

 
Page 59



Concern that the area was previously Open Cast Mining 
 

Agent Response 
Ground investigation works will need to be carried out before any development takes 
place to check the suitability and stability of the land for the proposed development 
 

1.5.3 Representations in Support of the Proposed Disposal of the Land 
 
One of the representations in support of the proposed disposal of the Land was from the 
NTCCG and which included the following supporting statement: - 
 
“The Beaumont Park Medical Practice has comparatively the smallest floor area per 
patient on the NTCCG’s registered list of any practice in North Tyneside and is massively 
undersized compared to guidance for the recommended space for a practice of its size. 
 
The Practice is at the limit of any viable alterations that it can make to the premises. This 
coupled with the increasing population of the area with housing developments both 
underway and planned poses a real risk of the future ability of the Practice to support the 
local community. 
 
Put bluntly, the Practice will only be safely able to look after a certain amount of patients 
in their existing premises and will therefore need to close their list to new registrations 
once that happens. The Practice are close to that point and have made requests to close 
their list on safety grounds before. 
 
There is a clear strategic need for the practice to relocate” 
 
Other points of support from the representations are summarised below: - 

The current local practice building in the area is too small to accommodate the 
amount of patients. 
 
There have been two occasions in the last 5 years when Beaumont Park Medical 
Practice has had to apply to NHS England for a temporary closure of their patient 
list due to the lack of space and facilities to accommodate the increasing number 
of residents registering with the Practice 
 
No designated parking at existing local practice. 

 
The proposed new Practice building will be in close proximity to current local 
practice and so will not cause inconvenience for patients to travel to. 

 
1.5.4 Ward Member Consultation 

 
At its meeting held on 8 June 2021, the Authority’s Strategic Property Group asked 
officers to consult with the Monkseaton North Ward Members on the proposed disposal 
of the Land.  
 
The Ward Members subsequently confirmed that they were not in support of the 
proposed disposal and the following comments were provided by Councillor Joe Kirwin 
on behalf of all of the Ward Members: - 

 
The ward has very little green space. 

 
Page 60



The residents who live on the adjacent streets to Newstead’s Drive are statistically 
much older, have higher rate of physical disability and there is one care home and 
one assisted living facility. Building on this site would significantly reduce to 
amount of green space they currently have access to.  

 
The Practice could grow by adding an extra storey to the existing building, taking 
over an adjacent commercial property or reclaiming a bit of their existing car park. 

 
There is other land attached to the West Park development that would be possibly 
more appropriate and less controversial.  
 
Agent Response 
The Practice has considered options to expand or reconfigure the existing premises on 
several occasions, but this has proven to be unviable. The current building has been re-
configured as much as possible. The current footprint of the land that the building sits on 
is insufficient to expand the building enough to meet the needs of a rapidly growing 
practice 

 
The structure of the existing premises would not take an additional storey being added to 
the same structure without substantially demolishing of the majority of the existing 
building.   

 
Parking at the current site is a shared public space with no dedicated accessible 
spaces. The surgery has no allocated space for staff or patients. 
 
Officer Response 
If the proposed disposal of the Land proceeds, there will still be 0.79 of a hectare of land 
that will remain as public open space in this location which represents 86% of the total 
area of land currently available. This is considered to be a sufficient area of land to meet 
the recreational needs of the residents who live on the adjacent streets without impacting 
on their health and wellbeing. 
 
The older residents and those with disabilities will also have improved access to modern 
medical facilities in close proximity to their homes. 

 
1.5.5 Conclusion  

 
Cabinet is asked to consider all of the representations given in Sections 1.5.2 to 1.5.4 in 
respect of the proposed disposal of the Land at Newsteads Drive. 

 
1.6 Decision options: 
 

Following consideration of the representations Cabinet may decide: 
 

i) to set aside the objections received in relation to the proposed disposal of the 
Land at Newsteads Drive and allow the disposal of the Land to proceed; or 

 
ii) to uphold the objections received in relation to the proposed disposal of the Land 

at Newsteads Drive in which case the disposal cannot proceed. 
 
1.7 Reasons for recommended option: 
 

There is no recommended option. 
 

Page 61



1.8 Appendices: 
 

Appendix 1:  Land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton Site Plan 
 
1.9 Contact officers: 

 
Niall Cathie - Strategic Property Manager – Tel. 0191 643 6517 
Cathy Davison – Principal Accountant – Tel. 0191 643 5727 

 
1.10 Background information: 
 

The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this 
report and are available at the office of the author: 

 
(1) Advertisements in the Journal Newspaper (21 & 29 December 2021) 
(2) Representations Received 
(3) The Authority’s land ownership records 

 
 
PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 
 
2.1 Finance and other resources 
 

In the event that the disposal of the Land does not proceed then any potential General 
Fund capital receipt from that disposal would be lost. 

 
2.2  Legal 
 

Under section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972, there is a legal requirement for the 
Authority to advertise its intentions to dispose of public open space within its boundaries 
for two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper circulating within the area, and to 
consider any objections or representations made.  This advertising requirement is the 
means by which local public opinion regarding such proposals can be obtained. Cabinet 
is required to consider the representations made and to decide whether or not to proceed 
with the disposal of the land. 

 
2.3  Consultation/community engagement 
 
2.3.1  Internal Consultation 
 

The Strategic Property Group confirmed its final support for the disposal of the Land at a 
meeting of the Group held on 17 November 2021. 

 
2.3.2  External Consultation/Engagement 

 
Ward Members were consulted on the proposed disposal of the Land at the request of 
the Strategic Property Group when it met on 8 June 2021. 

 
External consultation has taken place in accordance with section 123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, by the placement of notices in the local press. 
 
The agent acting on behalf of the medical practice wrote to all members of the Patient 
Participation Group to confirm the proposal to relocate to a new medical centre and 
received only positive feedback from some members of the Group. 

Page 62



 
The local Primary Care Network were also informed of the proposal and all member 
practices confirmed their support for the relocation of the practice. 

 
2.4  Human rights 
 

There are no human rights implications directly arising from this report. 
 
2.5  Equalities and diversity 
 

Parking at the current medical centre is a shared public space with no dedicated 
accessible spaces.  
 
The existing building also has many other deficiencies and non-compliance issues and 
as such is deemed to be unsuitable for continuing health care provision. These include 
access issues such as doors not able to accommodate wheelchairs or pushchairs. 
 
These equality issues will be resolved if the medical centre can relocate to the site at 
Newsteads Drive. 
 

2.6  Risk management 
 

There are no risk management implications directly arising from this report. 
 
2.7  Crime and disorder 
 

Crime and disorder issues will be considered as part of the planning process for any 
proposed development of the land at Newsteads Drive. 

 
2.8  Environment and sustainability 
 

Environment and sustainability issues will be considered as part of the planning process 
for any proposed development of the land at Newsteads Drive. 

 
 
PART 3 - SIGN OFF 
 

  Chief Executive  
 

  Director(s) of Service  
 

  Mayor/Cabinet Member(s) 
 

  Chief Finance Officer  
 

  Monitoring Officer 
 

  Assistant Chief Executive 

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



7

2

2

5

1

4

9

8

5

8

8

1 2
3

7

1 to

23

10

11

20

34

10

44

58

14

21

21

37

55

27

19

22

41
12

12

33

25

19

34

38

24

36

16

35

17

24
14

53

26

36

11

22

20

18

Tank

FAIRWAYS

Court

Shelter

Shelter

Shelter

35 
to 4

3

14 to 17
18 to 23

39
 to

 44

15 to 20

45
 to

 50

FAIRWAYS

FAIRWAYS

Tomlinson

FA
IR

WA
YS

CH
AT

HI
LL

 C
LO

SE

NE
WS

TE
AD

S
DR

IVE

NEWSTEADS

CLOSE

KEY

Council Ownership
(Excluding RTB)

Adopted Highways
(copy only)
Adopted Footpaths
(copy only)

Adopted Verges
(copy only)

Strategic Property
Quadrant
The Silverlink North
Cobalt Business Park
North Tyneside
NE27 0BY
Tel: 0191 643 2142
Email:
strateg icproperty@northtyneside.gov.uk

²

Scale:              @A4
OS Ref: 
Date: 02/03/2022
KH

© Crown Copyright and database right 2022. Ordnance Survey Licence Number 0100016801

Appendix Plan
Newsteads Drive

1:1,250

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
North Tyneside Council 
Report to Cabinet  
Date: 23 May 2022 
 
Title: Review of the North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and  
Private Hire Licensing Policy 
 
 
Portfolio: 

 
Community Safety and 
Public Protection 
 

 
Cabinet Member: 
 

 
Councillor C 
Burdis 
 

 
Report from Service 
Area: 
 

 
Public Health 
 

Responsible Officer: Wendy Burke 
Director of Public Health 
 

Tel: (0191) 643 
2104 

Wards affected: All 
 

 

 
PART 1  
 
1.1 Executive Summary: 
   

At its meeting on 24 January 2022, Cabinet agreed that the North Tyneside 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (“the Policy”) should be 
reviewed. Cabinet authorised the former Director of Environment, Housing and 
Leisure to commence public consultation on the revised draft Policy and for 
Cabinet to receive this further report at the conclusion of the consultation process 
so that Cabinet could consider the adoption of the revised Policy.   
 
The review of the Policy took into account the statutory taxi and private hire 
vehicle minimum standards to licensing authorities published by the Department 
for Transport in July 2020 entitled,’Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle 
Standards’ (“the Standards”). The Standards outline how licensing authorities 
should carry out their licensing functions in relation to Hackney Carriage (taxis) 
and Private Hire vehicles, drivers and operators.  
 
This report presents to Cabinet a revised draft of the Policy which has been 
developed following the conclusion of a six week consultation period for its 
consideration and adoption if considered appropriate to do so.  

   
1.2 Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that the Cabinet:- 
 

a) approve the adoption of the revised North Tyneside Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Licensing Policy attached at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

 
b) agree that the Policy comes into effect on 24 May 2022 save for the 

Age/Emissions standards at pages 26 and 27 of the Hackney Carriage  
and Private Hire Licensing Policy which will come into force as prescribed 
in paragraph 1.5.6 below. 

 
1.3 Forward Plan: 
 

Twenty-eight day’s notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on 
the Forward Plan that was published on 25 February 2022. 

 
1.4 Council Plan and policy framework: 
 

This report relates to the following priorities in the 2021 – 2025 Our North 
Tyneside Plan: 
 
A thriving North Tyneside: 
  We will bring more good quality jobs to North Tyneside – by helping local 

businesses to sustain and grow, making it attractive for new businesses to set  
up or relocate in the borough. 

 
A caring North Tyneside: 
  People will be cared for, protected and supported if they become vulnerable, 

including if they become homeless. 
 

A secure North Tyneside: 
  Council wardens will work in partnership with Northumbria Police to prevent 

and tackle all forms of antisocial behaviour. 
 
1.5 Information: 
 
1.5.1 Local context 
 

The Authority is the licensing authority for hackney carriages (taxis) and private 
hire vehicles (PHVs), their drivers and their operators, for the Borough.  The 
overall aim of the licensing scheme is to ensure the safety of the public. 
 
The North Tyneside Transport Strategy 2017-32, revised in 2021, commits to 
managing North Tyneside’s transport network effectively, considering all forms of 
travel including taxis and PHVs and sets out how the Authority will support the 
safeguarding of vulnerable people, such as through hackney carriage and private 
hire licensing policies and the design of infrastructure. 
 
The North Tyneside Local Plan notes that taxis and PHVs will continue to play an 
important role in the wider transport network and that opportunities to integrate 
them with other modes of transport will be explored.  The regional North East 
Transport Manifesto sets out objectives to integrate taxis into the public transport 
network with better interchange and information, ensure high standards of 
licensing and provision, and encourage greater use of low emission technologies 
in taxi fleets. 

 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

1.5.2 Existing licenses in North Tyneside 
 

The Authority licenses up to 204 taxis, and around 712 PHVs, 965 drivers and 21 
operators in the Borough. These licenses have been granted in accordance with 
national legislation and consideration of the existing Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy. 
 
The licensing service is based at the Killingworth site and it is responsible for 
administrating and enforcing the licensing scheme. 
 
The Policy includes information on legal requirements, procedures and standards 
relevant to taxi and PHV licensing. 
 
The Policy was last reviewed in February 2020 prior to the release of the 
Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards.  

 
1.5.3   National context 
 

The legislation which governs taxi and PHV licensing has been in place for a 
considerable period of time.  This has been subject to previous review and 
amendment and in 2014 the Law Commission was asked by the Government to 
consider the legislation relating to taxis and PHVs.  Whilst the Law Commission’s 
report acknowledged that the licensing of taxis and PHVs is a “fiercely local” 
matter, it nevertheless recommended the introduction of national standards. 
 
Some of the recommended changes were introduced through the Deregulation 
Act 2015, for example: extending licences from one year to three years, and 
allowing sub-contracting between PHV operators. 
 
In July 2020 the Department for Transport (DfT) produced the Standards under 
the Policing and Crime Act 2017 which the Department expects to be 
implemented by all licensing authorities.    

 
1.5.4 Review of licensing policy  

 
It is in this context that a review of the Policy was commenced.  An officer 
working group was set up to commence the review of the Policy and make the 
required amendments to the Policy to reflect the new Statutory Standards.  
 
A report attaching a copy of the draft Policy was taken to Regulation and Review 
Committee on 24 February 2022 as part of the consultation process. The 
proposed key amendments to the Policy and the questions that were to be asked 
of the taxi/PHV trade, general public and Members were included in the report to 
the Committee. The Members of the Committee were asked to provide any 
comments on the Policy through the Chair of the Committee. No comments were 
received. 
 

1.5.5  Public engagement 
 
A comprehensive six week onsultation process was undertaken commencing on 
28 February 2022.  
 
An online survey was developed for respondees to make consultation responses 
as well as written responses. Information was made available on the 

Page 69



 

Engagement Hub in addition to members of the Residents Forum advised of the 
consultation exercise.  
 
The consultation was publicised using press and social media and 
correspondence to all licensed drivers and operators. 
 
In total, 64 responses were received with 58 made through the online survey and 
6 through written responses.  
 
The online survey asked for comments about the draft Policy. 
 

1.5.6 Considering the Responses 
 

The responses were considered with oversight by the Cabinet Member for 
Community Safety and Public Protection. 
 
A breakdown of the responses received are included in Appendix 2 to this report.  
 
The responses did not object to the new National Standards that have been 
introduced being incorporated into the Authority’s revised Policy. Some 
responses made comments about their impact however not about the revised 
Policy. 
 
Some comments were received about other areas of the Policy that had not been 
amended and these have been considered and where appropriate amendments 
have been made to the Policy. If it is not possible at this time to make suggested 
amendents because further work or additional views are required these 
suggestions will be considered when the Policy is next updated. 
 
It was anticipated that a number of responses would concern the age standards 
that were approved by Cabinet in February 2020 and which were to be become 
part of the Policy  on 1 April 2022. Of the 64 responses received, 45 specifically 
referred to the age standard and requested that it be delayed or removed. Of the 
45 responses relating to the age standard section of the Policy, 8 responses 
were from residents, 8 from Operators and 29 from licensed drivers. 
 
1 response from an Operator was in agreement with the age standards and the 
importance of an updated vehicle fleet.   
 
Following consideration of these responses the Policy has been updated and it is 
proposed that the age standards part of the draft Policy will not be implemented 
until 1 April 2024 for new vehicle licences and renewals. It is proposed that the 
timetable for the implementation of the age standards is as follows:- 

 
(i) From 1 April 2024 no new vehicle licence will be granted for the vehicle unless 
it is less than 4 years old 
(ii) From 1 April 2026 a vehicle licence will not be renewed unless the vehicle is 
less than 8 years old  
(iii) From 1 April 2027 a wheelchair accessible vehicle licence will not be renewed 
unless the vehicle is less than 8 years old. 
 
All ‘Full electric’ and ‘zero emission at source’ vehicles will be exempt from the age 
standards set out above.’ 
 Page 70



 

The consultation responses are summarised at Appendix 2.   
 
The amended draft Policy is set out at Appendix 1 to this report.    
 
The key amendments to the Policy include: 
 

  Introduction of Basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) criminal record 
check for vehicle proprietors  

  Requirement of operators to maintain a register of booking staff and 
confirmation they have had sight of a Basic DBS certificate for such staff 

  Periods for individuals to be free of convictions to be able to hold a licence 
have increased in line with the Standards  

  New Passenger Guidance document 
  The Authority making a referral to the DBS and the police following 

refusal/revocation of a driver’s licence where appropriate. 
  
1.6 Decision Options: 

 
The following decision options are available for consideration by Cabinet: 

 
Option 1 
Cabinet approves the recommendations at paragraph 1.2 of this report. 
 
Option 2 

 Cabinet does not approve the recommendations at paragraph 1.2 of this report. 
 
 Option 3 

 
 To instruct officers to make amendments to the Policy and to bring a further 

report to Cabinet for it to consider those amendments. 
 

Option 1 is the recommended option. 
 
1.7 Reasons for Recommended option: 
 

Option 1 is recommended to ensure that the existing Policy is updated in 
accordance with the statutory National Standards. This will also ensure that the 
Policy remains transparent, accountable, proportionate and consistent. 

 
1.8 Appendices: 
 

Appendix 1: Revised draft North Tyneside Council Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy 
 
Appendix 2: Summary of responses. 

 
1.9 Contact Officers: 
 

Colin MacDonald, Head of Technical & Regulatory Services, (0191) 643 6620 
Joanne Lee, Public Protection Manager, (0191) 643 6901 
Stephanie Graham, Senior Licensing Officer (0191) 643 6969 
John Barton, Principal Lawyer, (0191) 643 5354 
David Dunford, Senior Business Partner, (0191) 643 7027 

 
Page 71



 

 
1.10 Background Information: 
 

The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation 
of this report and are available at the office of the author: 
 

1) North Tyneside Local Plan 
 

2) North Tyneside Transport Strategy (approved by Cabinet on 8 May 2017) 
 

3) DfT consultation document – Taxi and private hire vehicle licensing – 
protecting users 

 
4) Written statement to Parliament 12 February 2019 – Government response 

and consultation on taxi and private hire vehicle licensing 
 

5) Review of the North Tyneside Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy, 
Cabinet Report, April 2019  

 
6) Guidance on Determining the Suitability of Applicants and Licensees in the 

Hackney and Private Hire Trades, Institute of Licensing, April 2018 
 

7) Equality Impact Assessment  
 

8) Review of the North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy Cabinet report 31 January 2022 

 
  

PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 
 
2.1  Finance and Other Resources: 
 

There are no financial implications directly arising from the report.  The costs of 
preparing the revised North Tyneside Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy and the associated consultation arrangements can be met from 
existing revenue budgets. 

  
2.2  Legal: 

 
Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle (PHV) legislation is primarily concentrated in the 
Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976.  The legislation provides a broad framework for the 
licensing of drivers, vehicles and operators whereas the detail of how this is 
done, including standards and conditions, is the responsibility of licensing 
authorities. 
 
There are a number of other Acts which are also relevant: for example, the 
Equalities Act 2010 places a duty on local authorities to take steps to meet the 
needs of disabled people such as the need for the Authority to provide a list of 
wheelchair accessible taxis and PHVs. 
 
Whereas Cabinet cannot make decisions in relation to the licensing of individual 
drivers, vehicles or opertors under the legislataion, it is permitted to adopt a 
Policy such as the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy. The 

Page 72

https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/1130/local-plan
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/1237/transport-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-protecting-users
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-protecting-users
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/government-response-and-consultation-on-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/government-response-and-consultation-on-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meeting/related-documents/6d%20Review%20of%20Taxi%20Licensing%20Policy%20Report.pdf
https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meeting/related-documents/6d%20Review%20of%20Taxi%20Licensing%20Policy%20Report.pdf
file://ntcdata/sharedresources$/Cultural%20&%20Customer%20Services%20-%20Cabinet%20Reports/Drafts/2020-02-24_Taxi%20Policy/7)%09https:/instituteoflicensing.org/documents/Guidance_on_Suitability_Web_Version_(16_May_2018).pdf
file://ntcdata/sharedresources$/Cultural%20&%20Customer%20Services%20-%20Cabinet%20Reports/Drafts/2020-02-24_Taxi%20Policy/7)%09https:/instituteoflicensing.org/documents/Guidance_on_Suitability_Web_Version_(16_May_2018).pdf
Speaking%2520Notes%2520-%2520Taxi%2520Licensing%2520Policy.docx


 

Policy will then be considered by the Regulation and Review Committee and 
officers when decisions need to be taken in relation to individual drivers, 
operators and vehicles.  
 

2.3  Consultation/Community Engagement: 
 
2.3.1  Internal Consultation 
 

Internal consultation has taken place with the Cabinet Members, Members and 
service areas as set out in the report.  
 

2.3.2  External Consultation 
 

As outlined in section 1.5.5 of the report, an engagement process was 
undertaken to allow the Policy to be updated. An online survey was available for 
respondees to make consultation responses as well as written responses.  

 
2.4  Human Rights: 
 

There are aspects of the administration of licences that may impact on the 
human rights of individuals residing in the Borough and licence holders.  Article 8 
of the European Convention of Human Rights entitles a person to the right to 
enjoy a private and family life.   
 
Article 6 of the European Convention also entitles an individual to a fair hearing.  
Any individual appearing before a Regulation and Review Panel will be given an 
opportunity to express their views. 
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol entitles a person to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions.  A possession may include the goodwill that such a Licence would 
generate.  However, balanced against that is the ability of the Licensing Authority 
to enforce such laws under the Act as is necessary to control the use of such 
property, including a licence. 

 
2.5  Equalities and Diversity: 
 

The Policy has been drafted having regard to the Authority’s Public Sector 
Equality Duty. An Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken to inform 
the consultation process and it has been updated to assess the potential impact 
of the Policy. The consultation process has been undertaken to ensure that all 
persons, groups and organisations have had an opportunity to participate, 
including those with protected characteristics. Individual decisions taken under 
the Policy will also have to be taken having regard to the Public Sector Equality 
Duty. 

 
2.6  Risk Management: 

 
There are no risk management implications directly arising from this report.  
Risks associated with delivery of the Authority’s Public Protection function are 
monitored via the Technical Services Partnership risk arrangements included 
within the strategic partnership governance framework. 

 
 
 

Page 73



 

2.7  Crime and Disorder: 
 

The North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy seeks to 
ensure the safety of the travelling public and therefore contributes to preventing 
crime and disorder. 

   
2.8  Environment and Sustainability: 
 

Journeys by taxis and private hire vehicles represent a significant number of daily 
trips on the local highway network both within the Borough and beyond.  The 
local authorities in the area are currently working on measures to tackle air 
quality caused by roadside pollution. 

 
 

PART 3 – SIGN OFF 
 

  Chief Executive  
 

  Director(s) of Service  
 

  Mayor/Cabinet Member 
 

  Chief Finance Officer  
 

  Monitoring Officer 
 

  Assistant Chief Executive  
 

 
 
 
 

X

X

X

X

X

X

Page 74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Cabinet on: 24th February 2020 
Policy to be effective from: 1st April 2020 
Further amendments approved by Cabinet on: xxxxxxxxxxxxxx 
 
 
  

HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
AND PRIVATE HIRE 
LICENSING POLICY

Page 75



2 

Executive Summary 
 
 

The aim of this Policy is to protect the public and ensure that drivers, vehicle owners / 
proprietors and operators are fit and proper persons for the role that they play in local 
transport provision. 
 
The Department for Transport recommends that all licensing authorities make publicly 
available a cohesive policy document which should include, but not be limited to, policies 
on convictions, a ‘fit and proper’ person test, licence conditions and vehicle standards. 
This is the Authority’s policy document. 
 
This Policy has been drafted having regard to the “Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle 
Standards” issued by the Department for Transport in July 2020 under section 177(1) of 
the Policing and Crime Act 2017 (“the Statutory Guidance”) and the recommendations 
contained therein. 
 
In the Introduction of the Statutory Guidance at paragraph 1.1 it states: - 
 
“There is evidence to support the view that taxis and private hire vehicles are a high-risk 
environment. In terms of risks to passengers, this can be seen in abuse and exploitation 
of children and vulnerable adults facilitated, and in some cases, perpetrated by the trade 
and the number of sexual crimes reported which involve taxi and private hire vehicle 
drivers. Links between the trade and child sexual abuse and exploitation have been 
established in many areas and other investigations continue. Data on reported sexual 
assaults by taxi and private hire vehicle drivers evidence the risk to passengers; data 
from Greater Manchester and Merseyside suggest that, if similar offence patterns are 
applied across England, 623 sexual assaults per year are reported. These figures do not 
however account for the under reporting of crime which is estimated to be as high as 83 
percent in the Crime Survey for England and Wales.” 
 
The Statutory Guidance makes it clear in paragraph 1.3 that the Department for 
Transport expects the recommendations contained in the Guidance “to be implemented 
unless there is a compelling local reason not to.” 
 
The objectives of this Policy are as follows: 
 
 a) The safety and protection of the public 

b) The protection of children and vulnerable adults from harm 
c) The promotion of environmental sustainability; and 
d) To provide clarity for licensees with respect to the Authority’s expectations 

of them and its decision-making process. 
 

  
North Tyneside Council (the Authority) is aware that the public should have reasonable 
access to hackney carriages and private hire vehicles because of the important role they 
play in local transport provision. 
 
 
 

Page 76



3 

Hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are a highly flexible form of public transport 
and play an increasingly important role in improving accessibility. Hackney carriage and 
private hire vehicles are used by all social groups and play an essential role in the 
provision of the Authority’s home to school transport provision. 
 
This Policy supports the Authority’s Transport Strategy for 2017-2032 and the principles 
within that Policy.  As well as seeking the protection of the public, the Authority aims to 
improve the safety, health and well-being outcomes for the people of the Borough and 
the sustainability of communities and the environment across the Borough. 
 
As the environmental and health impacts associated with emissions from transport 
operations are now more clearly understood, the Authority has an increased 
responsibility to ensure that drivers and passengers are protected as far as possible from 
the adverse impact of vehicle emissions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Version Control 
 
Version 2 
 
Approved by Cabinet on:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



4 

Contents 
 
Chapter                              Page  
 
 
1.      Introduction  5 
   
2.      Vehicles – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 13 
   
3.      Drivers  29 
   
4.      Operators 41 
   
5.      Fares  49 
   
6.      Fees 51 
   
7.      Convictions, Cautions, Conduct & Medical Fitness   53 
   
8.      Enforcement and Discipline 65 
   
9.      Regulation & Review Committee 71 
   
10.    Hackney Carriage Stands   78 
   
11.    Complaints Procedure  80 

        
 
 
Appendices 
 

A Hackney carriage and Private Hire Vehicle specifications 
 

B Conditions attached to a Hackney Carriage Proprietors Licence and 
Private Hire Vehicle Proprietors Licence 
 

C Vehicle testing arrangements 
 

D Standard ‘Exemption Notice’ conditions for executive hire vehicles 
 

E Private hire driver licence - Conditions of licence 
 

F Code of good conduct for licensed drivers 
 

G Drivers dress code 
 

H Private hire operator’s licence - Conditions of licence 
 

I 
 
J 

Byelaws 
 
Staying Safe: Guidance for Passengers 

  

  

Page 78



5 

Introduction 
  
 Contents 
  
 1.  1. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
  2. Powers and Duties 
  3. Objectives 
  4. Methods 
  5. Best Practice Guidance 
  6. Status 
  7. Implementation and Review 
  8. Consultation 
  9. Area and Impact 
  10. Partnership Working 
  11. Related Legislation and Strategies 
  12. Equality 

13. Duties and Obligations under Equality Act 2010 
  14. Right to live and work in the UK 
  
1. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
  
 The Authority is responsible for the licensing of hackney carriage and private hire 

vehicles, their drivers and in the case of private hire vehicles their operators, in the 
Borough of North Tyneside. 

  
 The Authority currently licences up to 204 hackney carriage vehicles, approximately 

712 private hire vehicles, 965 licensed drivers and 21 private hire operators. 
  
 A hackney carriage is a public transport vehicle with no more than 8 passenger 

seats, which is licensed to ‘ply for hire’. This means that it may stand at ranks or be 
hailed in the street whilst in the Borough of North Tyneside by members of the 
public.  A hackney carriage can also be pre-booked.  Private hire vehicles too must 
have no more than 8 passenger seats, but unlike hackney carriages, must be 
booked in advance through an operator and must not ply for hire in the street. 

  
2. Powers and Duties 
  
 In 1977, the Authority adopted Part ll of The Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976. By adopting Part II of the 1976 Act the Authority is given the 
powers and duties to carry out licensing functions in respect of hackney carriage 
and private hire licensing in the Borough of North Tyneside. As such the Authority 
is responsible for the licensing of private hire drivers, vehicles and operators and 
hackney carriage drivers and vehicles in the Borough.  This document sets out how 
the Authority will exercise its licensing functions when making decisions about new 
licence applications, renewal of licence applications and licences currently in force. 
 
The Authority is also obliged to have regard to the Statutory Taxi & Private Hire 
Vehicle Standards issued under section 177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017 
by the Department for Transport when exercising its licensing functions. 

  

Page 79



6 

3. Objectives 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In setting out this Policy, the Authority seeks to carry out its licensing functions with 
a view to promoting the following objectives:    
 

a) The safety and protection of the public  
b) The protection of children and vulnerable adults from harm 
c) The promotion of environmental sustainability 
d) To provide clarity for licensees with respect to the Authority’s expectations 

and its decision-making process. 
 
In the promotion of the above objectives the Authority will consider the following 
matters: 
 

a) The safety and protection of the public: 
 
  Ensuring that vehicles are safe, clean, reliable and accessible to meet the varying 

needs of the public 
  Providing confidence in the system for assessing whether a person is ‘fit and 

proper’ to drive a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle.  
 

b) The protection of children and vulnerable adults from harm. 
 
This Policy: 
 
  Puts protecting the safety and welfare of the public at its core 
  Specifically takes account of the Authority’s safeguarding responsibilities, 

particularly in relation to children, young people and vulnerable adults and 
reflects best practice 

  Makes it clear that the welfare of children and their protection from harm is 
everyone’s responsibility, in particular that prospective and licensed drivers and 
operators have a duty to promote good safeguarding practices, including 
awareness of Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation and trafficking. 

 
c) The promotion of environmental sustainability: 

 
  To encourage the uptake of zero and ultra-low emission vehicles 
  To only permit licenses for vehicles that comply with the particular age 

requirements as set out in Chapter 2 paragraph 19 of this Policy. 
 

d) To provide clarity for licensees with respect to the Authority’s expectations 
and the decision-making process: 

 
  Clarity of the Authority’s expectations with regards to convictions, cautions, fixed 

penalties and community resolutions. 
 

 This Policy shall apply in respect of new applications, renewals and other matters 
connected to the following licences: 

  

Page 80



7 

   Private hire vehicle proprietor 
  Private hire driver 
  Private hire operator 
  Hackney carriage driver 
  Hackney carriage proprietor. 

  
 This Policy shall also apply in respect of disciplinary and enforcement measures 

and includes a Code of Conduct to be followed by all drivers licensed by the 
Authority. 

  
4. Methods Used in Meeting the Objectives  
  
 The methods to be employed will be: 
  
   Setting the standards for the licensing of drivers, vehicles and operators 
   Periodical licensing and routine inspection of vehicles, with appropriate 

follow up action if necessary 
   Routine inspection of insurance policies, with appropriate follow up action if 

necessary 
   Checks of driver’s medical condition, criminal record (if any) and knowledge 

of the law 
   Investigation of complaints with appropriate follow up action 
   Liaison with the Police, the Home Office, HMRC, Safeguarding and other 

agencies regarding issues of mutual concern in relation to offences or the 
conduct of licensees 

   Taking enforcement and/or disciplinary action including prosecution, verbal 
and written warnings, advice, written cautions, notices, suspension or 
revocation of licences for breaches of legislation or licence conditions; 

   Conditions added to licences 
   Enforcement of the Byelaws 

  Liaison with the hackney carriage and private hire trade by way of open 
meetings 

  The issue of guidance notes. 
  

When considering applications and taking enforcement action the Authority as a 
Licensing Authority is also subject to the Regulators’ Code published by the 
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy and will have regard to the 
statutory principles of good regulation as required by the Legislative and Regulatory 
Reform Act 2006, the Authority’s Enforcement Policy and the ‘Statutory Taxi & 
Private Hire Vehicle Standards’ Guidance referred to above.  
 
Please see link below to the Authority’s Enforcement Policy. 
 
http://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/691/statement-enforcement-policy 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 81

http://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/691/statement-enforcement-policy


8 

The Authority is aware that under the Regulators’ Code the Authority should: 
 

   Carry out its activities in a way that supports those they regulate to comply 
and grow 

  Provide simple and straightforward ways to engage with those it regulates 
and hear their views 

  Base its regulatory activities on risk 
  Share information about compliance and risk 
  Ensure clear information, guidance and advice is available to help those it 

regulates to meet their responsibilities to comply with the law, statutory 
guidance and the Policy 

  Ensure that its approach to its regulatory activities is transparent 
  Avoid unnecessary regulatory burdens. 

  
5. Best Practice Guidance 
  
 In formulating this Policy consideration has been given to the available best practice 

guidance issued by the Department for Transport and the Department for Business, 
Energy & Industrial Strategy.  In addition, the Authority has had regard to the 
‘Statutory Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards’ referred to above which replaced 
relevant sections of the Best Practice Guidance published by the Department in 
2010. Where there is a conflict between the Statutory Guidance and the Best 
Practice Guidance the Statutory Guidance takes precedence. 

  
6. Status 
  
 In exercising its discretion in carrying out its regulatory functions, the Authority will 

have regard to this Policy and the objectives set out above as well as the ‘Statutory 
Taxi & Private Hire Vehicle Standards’ Guidance as it is obliged to do under section 
177(4) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017. 

  
 Notwithstanding the existence of this Policy and consideration of the Statutory 

Guidance issued under the Policing and Crime Act 2017, each application or 
enforcement measure will be considered on its own merits. Where it is considered 
necessary for the Authority to depart from the Policy and the Statutory Guidance, 
clear reasons will be given for doing so.    

  
7. Implementation and Review 
  
 This Policy will take effect on xxx 2022 save for the Age/Emissions standards 

paragraphs of the Policy which will come into force as detailed in Chapter 2, 
paragraph 20. 

  
 The Authority will keep this Policy under review and will consult where appropriate 

on proposed revisions. A full review of the Policy will be conducted every five years 
from the date of effect, but its performance will be reviewed annually. It may be 
necessary to revise the Policy within any five year period. Any changes made to the 
Policy may have immediate effect or be expressed as coming into effect on a given 
date.  

Page 82



9 

 
Amended copies of the Policy will be available from the Licensing Section and via 
the internet at https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/879/taxis-and-private-hire  
 

 Upon implementation of this Policy, the Authority requires licensees to comply with 
its terms immediately. Where it is not possible to comply with part of the Policy due 
to outstanding action required by the Authority, information will be provided as to an 
implementation date for that part of the Policy. 

  
 From the effective date, this Policy overrides and supersedes all existing 

policies in relation to private hire and hackney carriage licensing. 
  
8. Consultation 
  
 In preparing this Policy the Authority has consulted with and taken into account the 

views of amongst others: 
  
   Current licensees 
   Northumbria Police 
   Local businesses and their representatives 
   Residents and their representative bodies 
   Local transport providers 
   Disability Groups 
   Planning Authority 
   Service users 

  Environmental groups 
  Neighbouring Authorities (including the North East Combined Authority, 

North of Tyne Combined Authority and the Tees Valley Combined Authority) 
  Representatives from the charitable and voluntary sector 
  Members of the Authority 
  Chamber of Commerce 
  Campaign for Better Transport  
  Local traders 
  North Tyneside Safeguarding Children Partnership 
  Adult Social Care within the Authority 
  Pubwatch. 

  
 The views of all of these persons and bodies who provided a consultation response 

have been taken into account in determining this Policy. 
  
9. Area and Impact 
  
 
 
 
 
 

North Tyneside is one of the five metropolitan districts that comprise the county of 
Tyne and Wear. North Tyneside is bounded by Newcastle upon Tyne to the west, 
the North Sea to the east, the River Tyne to the south and Northumberland to the 
north.  The A19 runs from north to south and the A1058 Coast Road runs from east 
to west within the Borough.  Recent growth has come in the A19 corridor with new 
industrial estates and retail parks.  There is also an International Ferry Terminal at 
North Shields. 

Page 83

https://my.northtyneside.gov.uk/category/879/taxis-and-private-hire
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Newcastle_upon_Tyne
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/North_Sea
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/River_Tyne
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Northumberland


10 

  
 The late-night economy of the Borough is principally centred around Tynemouth 

and Whitley Bay where a number of hospitality and entertainment premises are 
situated. Activity is also centred on restaurants, public houses and takeaway 
establishments in areas such as North Shields and Wallsend.  

  
 The Authority recognises and welcomes the contribution that the hackney carriage 

and private hire trade makes to the transport and tourism industries. 
 
Hackney carriage and private hire vehicle journeys represent a significant number 
of daily trips on the local highway network both within North Tyneside and the wider 
area. Many of these journeys are made along key local and regional arterial routes 
on which air quality and in particular nitrogen dioxide (NO2) issues have manifested 
themselves on some of these routes. Local Authorities in the area are working on 
measures to address the issue of poor air quality in the areas identified as having 
an issue with poor air quality which may include some form of road user charging 
that would be applicable to hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. 
 
Improving local air quality forms part of the Authority’s Transport Strategy for 2017-
2032 and hackney carriage and private hire vehicles have an important role in 
helping the Authority deliver this outcome, particularly given the comparatively 
higher mileage undertaken by hackney carriages and private hire vehicles on local 
roads compared to other passenger vehicles.  

  
10. Partnership Working 
  
 The Authority will work in partnership with the following agencies and individuals to 

promote the licensing objectives and to safeguard the general public particularly 
vulnerable members of society when using the hackney carriage and private hire 
trade: 

  
   Local Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Trade 

  Safeguarding Services 
   Northumbria Police 
   Local Transport authorities and committees 
   Local residents 
   Disability Groups 
   Service users and their representatives 

  Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency (DVSA) 
  HM Revenue and Customs 
  Department for Work and Pensions 
  Other Council Departments 
  UK Visas & Immigration (Immigration Enforcement) 
  Other Government Departments and Agencies. 
  Neighbouring Licensing Authorities 

  
 The Authority will hold regular meetings with the hackney carriage and private hire 

trade to consider current and future licensing issues. 
  

Page 84



11 

 
 

11. Related Legislation and Strategies 
  
 This Policy will be integrated as far as possible with local planning, transport, 

tourism, equality cultural and environmental strategies, and other plans introduced 
for the management of the Borough and night-time economy.  

  
 The Authority will work in partnership with other agencies. 

 
As stated above, the Authority must also have regard to the Statutory Guidance 
issued by the Department for Transport in July 2020 (and any subsequent Guidance 
that may be issued) under section 177(1) of the Policing and Crime Act 2017.  

  
12. Equality 
  
 As an employer and service provider the Authority is committed to ensuring equality 

in employment and service delivery. To achieve the above standard the Authority is 
aware of its duties and obligations under the following legislation: 

  
   Human Rights Act 1998 
   Equality Act 2010. 
  
13. Duties and obligations under Equality Act 2010 
  
 The Authority will consult on and monitor the impact of this Policy to ensure that 

those making applications are treated in accordance with their needs.  The Authority 
also recognises the Public Sector Equality Duty as set out in section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 (the 2010 Act) which it must have regard to when exercising its 
licensing functions. 

  
In applying this Policy, the Authority will at all times endeavour to comply with its 
obligations under the 2010 Act and the Human Rights Act 1998. 
 
Providers of hackney carriage and private hire transport are deemed to be providers 
of services to the public for the purposes of Part 3 of the 2010 Act. A statutory Code 
of Practice has been published and provides guidance on specific issues associated 
with the 2010 Act. Licensees and applicants should read the Code of Practice and 
ensure that they operate having due regard to the Code and in compliance with the 
2010 Act. 
 

 It is a condition of a vehicle licence that wheelchair accessible vehicles must have 
appropriate equipment so as to be able to transport passengers in wheelchairs at 
all times. In instances where this is not the case the licence for the vehicle may be 
suspended until such time as the Authority considers the vehicle is fit for purpose. 
 
In accordance with the 2010 Act the Authority holds a list of wheelchair accessible 
vehicles (designated vehicles). The Act requires the drivers of such designated 
vehicles to carry passengers in wheelchairs and to provide assistance to such 

Page 85



12 

passengers and prohibits drivers from charging such passengers an additional 
charge. 
 
The Department for Transport has published statutory guidance called ‘Access for 
Wheelchair Users to Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles’ and drivers of wheelchair 
accessible vehicles are encouraged to read and understand that guidance. Further 
information can be found at Wheelchair access in taxis and private hire vehicles - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
 
It is a criminal offence for drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles to refuse to carry 
passengers in wheelchairs, to fail to provide them with appropriate assistance, or 
to charge them extra unless the driver has been issued with an exemption certificate 
by the Authority exempting them from performing the duties set out in section 165 
of the 2010 Act.  
 

 All licensed drivers are under a duty to carry guide, hearing and other prescribed 
assistance dogs in their vehicles and passengers with disabilities and to provide 
assistance to such passengers without additional charge. Drivers who have a 
medical condition that is aggravated by exposure to dogs may apply for an 
exemption from the duty on medical grounds. A medical certificate must be provided 
at the driver’s expense from the driver’s own GP or one who has had access to the 
drivers’ full medical records, stating the details of their medical condition to the 
satisfaction of the Licensing Authority. A register will be kept by the Authority of 
exempted drivers. 
 
Any drivers who consider that they should be exempt from the duties imposed on 
them by the 2010 Act in relation to carrying passengers in wheelchairs or 
passengers with assistance dogs should contact the Authority’s Licensing 
Department at www.northtyneside.gov.uk  

  
 Further information is available from the Equality and Human Rights Commission 

at www.equalityhumanrights.com. 
  
14. Right to live and work in the UK 

 
 Under the Immigration Act 2016 all individual applicants for private hire operator 

and private hire and hackney carriage driver licences are required to prove that they 
have a right to live and work in the UK before being considered for a licence.  A list 
of suitable documents that are required to be produced to prove a right to live and 
work in the UK is available from the Authority’s Licensing Section.   
 
Please see the following link (information is contained on pages 25/26 of the 
attachment) https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensing-authority-guide-
to-right-to-work-checks 

  
 A licence will not be granted until the applicant is able to prove that they have a right 

to live and work in the UK.  If an applicant has only limited leave to remain in the 
UK then any licence will only be issued for this period of time. 

  
 

Page 86

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/access-for-wheelchair-users-to-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/access-for-wheelchair-users-to-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles
http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensing-authority-guide-to-right-to-work-checks
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licensing-authority-guide-to-right-to-work-checks


13 

2.    Vehicles – Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
  
 Contents 
  
 1. Specifications 
 2. Private Hire Vehicles 
 3. Hackney Carriage Vehicles 
 4. Limitation of Numbers 
 5. Location of Applicant’s Home/Business 
 6. Insurance 
 7. Advertisements, signs, notices etc. 
 8. Accident notification 
 9. Vehicle testing 
 10. Application Procedure 
 11. Criminal Record Checks 
 12. 

13. 
14. 

Decision Making 
New applications and Replacement Vehicles 
Renewal applications 

 15. 
16. 

Grandfather Rights 
Change of address 

 17. 
18. 

Transfer of interest 
Limousines 

 19. Executive Hire Private Hire Vehicles 
 20. Tinted Windows 
 21. CCTV in vehicles 
 22. Environmental Considerations 
 23. Emission/Age standards 
 24. Insurance “Write Off” Vehicles 
 25. Licence Plate 
 26. Conditions 
  
1. Specifications 
  
 The Department for Transport Best Practice Guidance issued in 2010 recommends 

that licensing authorities should adopt the principle of specifying as many different 
types of vehicle as possible. They are, however, encouraged to make use of the 
‘type approval’ rules within any specifications they determine. 

  
 All vehicles, therefore, shall have an appropriate ‘type approval’ which is either: 
  
   European Whole Vehicle Type approval 
   British National Type approval or 
   British Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA). 
  
 As a guide, most large volume production vehicles produced in the UK and EU 

member states after 1987 will satisfy British and/or European Whole Type 
Approval.  Specialist vehicles or any vehicle that has been structurally modified, 
converted or imported from a non-EU member state since its original manufacture 
will require separate IVA and/or Department for Transport approval and such 

Page 87



14 

documentation must be submitted with an application for a hackney carriage or 
private hire vehicle licence. 

  
 The seating capacity of a vehicle will be determined by the Authority.  Vehicles will, 

in general, be licensed for the carriage of up to four passengers, but applications 
in relation to larger vehicles that can accommodate up to eight passengers will be 
accepted, provided that there is compliance with the specifications applicable to 
such vehicles.  
 
Where the seating in the vehicle does not conform with the specifications in this 
Policy or for other reasons associated with the safety and comfort of passengers, 
the Authority may reduce the permitted number of passengers that may be carried 
in the vehicle from that specified by the vehicle manufacturer. 

  
 Appendix A sets out the minimum standards which are expected in respect of 

licensed vehicles. 
  
2. Private Hire Vehicles 
  
 A private hire vehicle is a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat no more 

than 8 passengers which is provided for hire with the services of a driver for the 
purpose of carrying passengers. All hirings for a private hire vehicle must be pre-
booked through a licensed private hire operator. Any vehicle used as a private hire 
vehicle must be licensed under the provisions of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  In determining what vehicles fall within this 
definition the Authority will give consideration to the ‘Best Practice Guidance on 
Taxi and Private Hire Licensing’ issued by the Department of Transport in 2010. 

  
 The Authority must be satisfied that the following criteria are met before granting a 

licence: 
  
 That the vehicle is: 
  
   Suitable in type, size and design for use as a private hire vehicle 
   Not of such design and appearance as to lead any person to believe that the 

vehicle is a hackney carriage 
   In a suitable mechanical condition 
   Safe 
   Comfortable. 
  
 Conditions may be attached to the grant of a licence as are considered reasonably 

necessary.  Vehicles which are licensed with another Authority will not be licensed 
by this Authority. 

  
 In addition to the above legislative requirements the Authority has imposed 

conditions relating to the size and other specifications of the vehicle. These are 
attached at Appendix A. 
 
 
 

Page 88



15 

 All private hire vehicles must: 
  
   Not be black in colour; or be any colour, which, in the opinion of the Authority, 

closely resembles black  
   Not be fitted with a roof sign of any description 
   If the vehicle is fitted with a meter, it must be properly tested and sealed and 

be of a type approved by the Authority or an agent approved by the Authority 
   Display a yellow licence plate, which must be securely attached to the 

exterior rear of the vehicle as prescribed by a condition of the Authority 
  Display a yellow decal provided by the Authority and attached centrally to 

each front door of the vehicle as prescribed by a condition of the Authority 
  Display a disc in the top nearside corner of the front windscreen. 

  
 General conditions are attached to a private hire vehicle licence relating to the 

identification of the vehicle and safety issues. These are attached at Appendix B. 
  
3. Hackney Carriage Vehicles 
  
 A hackney carriage is a wheeled carriage used in standing or plying for hire that is 

required to have a numbered plate fixed upon it. The legal definition of a hackney 
carriage is contained in the Town Police Clauses Act 1847. 

  
 A hackney carriage can ply for hire within the Borough of North Tyneside and also 

wait at a hackney carriage stand within the Borough.  In addition, a hackney 
carriage may also undertake work on a pre-booked basis. 

  
 Conditions can be imposed upon the grant of a hackney carriage proprietor’s 

licence and the Authority has byelaws to control the conduct of both proprietors 
and drivers. These Byelaws are attached at Appendix I to this Policy.  

  
 The Authority has imposed requirements relating to the size and other 

specifications of the vehicles. These are attached at Appendix A. 
  
 General conditions are attached to a hackney carriage vehicle proprietor’s licence 

relating to the identification of the vehicle and safety issues. These are attached at 
Appendix B. 

  
 All hackney carriages must: 
  
   Be black in colour 
   Be fitted with an approved roof sign bearing the word “TAXI” as prescribed 

by the Authority 
   Be fitted with a meter of an approved type with the fares charged as 

determined by the Authority 
  Meters, after being checked for accuracy, must be sealed by Officers of the 

Authority or an agent approved by the Authority 
  Display a white licence plate, which must be securely attached to the exterior 

rear of the vehicle in the vicinity of the bumper 
   Display a white decal provided by the Authority and attached centrally to 

each front door of the vehicle as prescribed by a condition of the Authority 

Page 89



16 

   Display the current table of fares as prescribed by condition of the Authority 
   Display a disc in the top nearside corner of the front windscreen. 

 
4. Limitation of Numbers 
  
 No powers exist for licensing authorities to limit the number of private hire vehicles 

that they licence. 
  
 The present legal provisions on quantity restrictions for hackney carriages are set 

out in section 16 of the Transport Act 1985. This provides that the grant of a 
hackney carriage licence may be refused, for the purpose of limiting the number of 
licensed taxis “if, but only if, the person authorised to grant licences is satisfied that 
there is no significant demand for the services of hackney carriages (within the area 
to which the licence would apply) which is unmet”. 

  
 Any new application for a hackney carriage proprietor’s licence that would be in 

excess of that number will be refused if the Authority is satisfied that there is no 
significant unmet demand for taxi services within the area. An applicant whose 
licence is refused has a right of appeal to the Crown Court. 

  
 The Authority is satisfied that there is no significant unmet demand for hackney 

carriage services within this area. Therefore, it has placed a limit on the number of 
hackney carriage vehicle licences issued. This limit has been placed at 204 
following consideration of the results of an independent study. 

  
 The current limit includes grandfather rights granted to proprietors of saloon 

vehicles. These rights permit the continued use of a saloon vehicle by proprietors 
who were granted their hackney carriage proprietor’s licence prior to July 1992. 
These rights are to remain and encourage a mixed fleet of hackney carriage 
vehicles consisting of saloons and wheelchair accessible vehicles. It is recognised 
that users with some medical conditions will find saloons easier to access than 
wheelchair accessible vehicles.       

  
 This limitation of numbers will be periodically reviewed, and this Policy will be 

amended to take account of the results as required. 
 

5. Location of Applicant’s Home/Business 
 
When an applicant wishes to licence a vehicle as a hackney carriage the Authority 
will require information, pursuant to section 57 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, as to whether the applicant intends to use the 
vehicle to stand or ply for hire in the Authority’s area and also if the applicant intends 
to use the vehicle entirely or predominantly remotely from the Authority’s area on 
a pre-booked basis. 
 
Whilst each application will be considered on its own merits, the Authority will have 
regard to the geographic location of an applicant’s home and business address. 
 

 If the Authority believes that the hackney carriage is to be used entirely or 
predominantly remotely from the Authority’s area on a pre-booked basis, then the 
application for a licence will normally be refused.   

Page 90



17 

 
If the Authority believes that an existing hackney carriage is being used 
predominantly outside the Authority’s area on a pre-booked basis with an Operator 
who is not licensed by this Authority, then having regard to the judgment in R (on 
the application of Newcastle City Council) v Berwick-upon-Tweed Borough Council 
[2008] EHC 2369 (Admin) the matter will be referred to the Regulation and Review 
Committee. 

  
6. Insurance 
  
 All vehicles must have a current, valid policy of insurance at all times, appropriate 

to the use of the vehicle. The policy of insurance must be in place before a licence 
can be granted. 

  
 It is an offence to use a vehicle without the appropriate insurance in place. 
  
 Requests to produce evidence of the appropriate insurance may be made during 

the term of the licence. These requests must be complied with in accordance with 
the time scales stipulated in the request.   

  
 If a vehicle is off the road and uninsured the proprietor must advise the Licensing 

Section of the Authority in writing immediately or in any event within 72 hours. 
  
7. Advertisements, signs, notices etc. 
  
 No signs, notices, advertisements, digital or audio display etc. or other markings 

shall be displayed on, in or from the vehicle subject to the following exceptions: 
  
   Any sign, notice or other marking required to be displayed by legislation or 

any condition attached to this licence 
   Advertising on the rear doors, rear wings and boot area of the vehicle (of 

two-dimensional insignia type) approved by the Authority 
   Advertising along the top 8 cm strip of the windscreen of the vehicle provided 

that it is not illuminated, and it bears only the name and/or telephone number 
in block letters of the firm operating the vehicle 

  Some in car digital advertising.  
 

 Signs, notices or advertisements must not be of a content that the Authority deems 
to be offensive or abusive. Further guidance as to the content of the advert may be 
sought from the Advertisement Standards Authority, www.asa.org.uk. 
 

 The Director of Public Health can approve or refuse to allow advertisements in the 
areas permitted in this Policy. All advertisements must be approved by the Director 
of Public Health prior to being displayed on or in a vehicle. Any unauthorised 
advertisements will be required to be removed and appropriate action taken. 

  
 The Director of Public Health can approve or refuse requests for advertising on the 

lower area of the front doors of private hire and hackney carriage vehicles.  Such 
advertising to be for the purpose of promoting a private hire operator, a hackney 
carriage proprietor (or group of proprietors) licensed by the Authority.  

Page 91

http://www.asa.org.uk/


18 

Any queries regarding advertisements must be referred to the Licensing Section of 
the Authority. 

  
8. Accident notification 
  
 The proprietor shall notify the Licensing Section of the Authority in writing as soon 

as reasonably possible, or in any case within 72 hours, of any accident involving a 
licensed vehicle that results in damage materially affecting the safety, performance, 
or appearance of the vehicle or the comfort or convenience of potential customers.  
In certain cases, the vehicle licence will be suspended. 
 

 The proprietor must comply with any reasonable request to produce the vehicle for 
inspection at the Authority’s offices or other specified location so that its 
roadworthiness can be assessed. Any failure to do so is an offence and the 
appropriate action will be taken. Following the repair, the level of damage will be 
assessed, and the Authority may require an engineer’s report and / or the vehicle 
to be examined at the Authority’s Test Station. 

  
9. Vehicle testing 
  
 All vehicles must undergo and satisfy an inspection by the Authority’s vehicle 

examiners or at a place specified by the Director of Public Health prior to being 
licensed. 

  
 It is the proprietor’s responsibility to ensure that a licensed vehicle is roadworthy 

and fit for hire and reward purposes at all times. 
  
 Vehicles are to be tested in accordance with the Vehicle Testing Arrangements 

(attached at Appendix C). The Testing Station may also be directed to look at other 
issues identified by a Licensing Officer.  In the event of the Testing Station being 
unavailable the Authority will put alternative arrangements in place.  
 

 Vehicles that are 4 years old and over at the time of the licence being granted will 
require an interim test. Vehicle proprietors will be required to produce their vehicle 
for testing when requested. The fee for this interim test will form part of the annual 
licence fee. Vehicles that are 3 years old on the date the licence is granted but turn 
4 years old during the one-year term of the licence are excluded from the routine 
requirement to undertake an interim test. Such vehicles may still be requested to 
be presented for inspection and test in accordance with the statutory provisions. 

  
 Vehicles failing to be presented for a test or presented late for the test will be 

required to be re-tested and a re-test fee paid.  Where appropriate the licence will 
be suspended.  A further test appointment will only be made when the retest fee 
has been paid.   

  
 The Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998 (often abbreviated 

to LOLER) place duties on people and companies who own, operate or have 
control over lifting equipment. This includes all businesses and organisations 
whose employees use lifting equipment, whether owned by them or not.   
 

Page 92



19 

The regulations require that the inspection interval is 6 months, for lifting equipment 
and any associated accessories used to lift people. Any licensed vehicles 
containing this equipment should provide evidence of a LOLER inspection report 
every 6 months. 
 

10. Application Procedure 
  
 Applications are to be made in writing and may be made in person at a prescribed 

time, by post, online or e-mail.  The Authority will not be responsible for any 
documents that may be lost in the post. 
 
Applications will not be considered valid unless they contain all the relevant 
documentation and the appropriate licence fee has been paid. 

  
 For the purposes of licensing, a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence will 

be issued in the name of the registered keeper of the vehicle.  The registered 
keeper can be an individual or a company.  Where the registered keeper is a 
company, details of the person who will be responsible for the vehicle will be 
included on the licence. 

  
 The booking of vehicle tests may be done by telephone, in person at a prescribed 

time, online or by e-mail at taxi.licensing@northtyneside.gov.uk.  Postal or e-mail 
applications should be made at least 10 working days prior to the date of the vehicle 
test to allow for the application to be processed. 

  
 If the application is refused the fee will be refundable minus the proportion of the 

charge for the test fee.  
  
 The Director of Public Health has the discretion to attach, amend or remove a 

condition of licence. 
  
 
 
 
11. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Although applications may be made by post or e-mail, licence plates must be 
collected in person at a prescribed time. 
 
Criminal Record Checks 
 
The holder of a hackney carriage proprietor’s licence or private hire vehicle licence, 
as well as ensuring that the vehicles are well maintained to an acceptable standard, 
must also ensure that vehicles are not used for illegal or illicit purposes. The 
Authority’s objective when licensing hackney carriage and private hire vehicles is 
to protect the public.  
 
Hackney carriage proprietor licences and private hire vehicle licences will only be 
granted, or renewed, to persons that the Authority considers to be ‘fit and proper’ 
persons to hold such licences. This means that they must pose no threat to the 
public and have no links to serious criminal activity. 
 
To ascertain if an applicant for a hackney carriage proprietor’s licence or private 
hire vehicle licence is a fit and proper person to hold such a licence the Authority 
requires them on applying for such a licence, or an application for a renewal thereof, 

Page 93

mailto:taxi.licensing@northtyneside.gov.uk


20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

to produce to the Authority a Basic Disclosure of any criminal convictions obtained 
from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS). In addition to having regard to the 
Basic Disclosure the Authority will also have regard to the information contained in 
the application form and, any information obtained during any interview that may 
take place between the applicant/licence holder and a licensing officer. 
 
The Authority will check the Basic Disclosure of any criminal convictions annually.  
 
Before an application for a private hire vehicle licence or hackney carriage 
proprietor’s licence, or a renewal application, will be considered by the Authority, 
the applicant (whether this be an individual or the Director of a limited company) 
must provide a current (less than 1 month old) Basic Disclosure of criminal 
convictions from the DBS. If the applicant is currently licensed as a driver with this 
Authority, they will be exempt from this requirement as they will already have had 
a higher level of criminal record check. 
 
Where a vehicle licence is in force in the name of a limited company and a new 
director(s) is proposed to be appointed to that limited company, then each 
proposed director will be required to provide a Basic Disclosure of convictions from 
the DBS.  If the applicant is currently licensed as a driver with this Authority, they 
will be exempt from this requirement. 
 
In exceptional circumstances, the Authority may take relevant spent convictions 
into account having regard to the factors set out in the judgment of Adamson v 
Waveney District Council [1997] 2 All ER 898 when determining an individual’s 
suitability to hold a private hire vehicle licence or hackney carriage proprietor’s 
licence. In the case of a company, any relevant spent convictions of an officer of 
the company may be taken into account in exceptional circumstances when 
determining the suitability of the company to hold a licence. 
 
When determining if the applicant/licence holder is, or remains, a fit and proper 
person to hold a hackney carriage proprietor’s licence or private hire vehicle licence 
the Authority will apply the following test having regard to the information in its 
possession: - 
 
“Would I be comfortable allowing this person to have control of a licensed vehicle 
that can travel anywhere, at a time of the day or night without arousing suspicion, 
and be satisfied that he/she would not allow it to be used for criminal or other 
unacceptable purposes, and be confident that he/she would maintain it to an 
acceptable standard throughout the period of the licence?” 
 
If the answer to this question is an unqualified yes, then the test is satisfied.  If  
officers or Members have doubts then further consideration will be given as to  
whether the individual is a fit and proper person to hold vehicle licence. 
 
As the public must have trust and confidence in the safety and integrity of both the 
hackney carriage and private hire systems, the same standards will be applied to 
hackney carriage proprietors and private hire licence holders as to drivers outlined 
in this Policy. 

Page 94



21 

12. Decision Making 
 

 Refusal to licence an individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver licence 
does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or continue to 
hold a vehicle licence; this decision will be independent of a driver licence refusal 
and based on the appropriate information that is held. DBS certificate information 
can only be used for the specific purpose for which it was requested and for which 
the applicant’s full consent has been given. 
 

13. 
 

New Applications and Replacement Vehicles 

 The following documents are to be submitted for new/replacement vehicle 
applications: 
 

   Fully completed application form 
  Basic Disclosure of criminal convictions certificate (if not currently licensed 

as a driver) of the applicant(s) or in the case of a limited company, for each 
director of the company.  

  Pre-Test Inspection form (PTI) - approved  
   Vehicle test certificate - pass 
   Vehicle registration document in the applicant’s name (or proof of purchase 

identifying applicant as purchaser if newly purchased vehicle). (An order 
form is insufficient for this purpose) 

   Appropriate valid certificate of motor insurance for date of intended business 
use.   

  LOLER certificate (where applicable)  
  Conversion certificate (where applicable). 

Note: the Authority provides a service to carry out LOLER testing and 
conversion/installation inspections.  Additional fees apply.  Further 
information is available from the Licensing Office or on the Authority’s 
website. 

  Taximeter certificate (where applicable) 
  
 Fees: 
  
   Licence fee. Please note the fee differs depending on the age of the vehicle 

and the type of licence applied for. 
  
 If the application is withdrawn or refused the fee will be refunded minus any vehicle 

test fees and an administrative charge. Should the application be appealed, the 
administrative charge will be higher. 

  
14. Renewal Applications 
  
 The following documents are to be submitted for renewal vehicle applications prior 

to the expiry of the licence: 
 
 
 

Page 95



22 

  Fully completed vehicle renewal form 
  Basic Disclosure of criminal convictions certificate (if not currently licensed 

as a driver) of the applicant(s) or in the case of a limited company, for each 
director of the company 

   Vehicle test certificate – pass required 
   Appropriate valid certificate of motor insurance for date of intended business 

use.   
   LOLER certificate (where applicable). 

Note: The Authority provides a service to carry out LOLER testing.  An 
additional fee applies.  Further information is available from the Authority’s 
Licensing Office or on the Authority’s website 

   Taximeter certificate (where applicable). 
  
 Fees: 
  
   Licence fee. Please note the fee differs depending on the age of the vehicle 

and the type of licence applied for. 
 

 There is no legal requirement for the Authority to send out reminders for renewals 
for licences, but to aid vehicle proprietors the Authority’s Licensing Section will 
endeavour to do so. However, the responsibility rests with the proprietor to ensure 
documentation is provided within the appropriate timescales.  Where an application 
to renew a vehicle licence is not received prior to the expiry of the licence, the 
licence will not be renewed.  In such cases, a new application will be required, 
grandfather rights will apply and a higher licence fee will apply.   
 
For new and renewal applications the Basic Disclosure of criminal convictions 
certificate will be accepted for subsequent applications of additional vehicles within 
12 months from the date of issue of the certificate.    
 

 Incomplete applications 
  

An application to renew a licence that has been submitted with the appropriate 
licence fee prior to the expiry of that licence, but is incomplete, will not be 
processed.  
 
In such cases the Authority will issue a written request to the licensee for the 
additional information to be provided within 14 days of the expiry of the licence.  
During this time the licensee can continue to operate the vehicle for hire and reward 
purposes.   
 
If the licensee fails to provide the information within this time period the application 
will be refused, to which the licensee will have a right of appeal.  During this time 
the licensee can also continue to operate the vehicle.  If no appeal is received within 
21 days, then the vehicle must cease operating. 
 

 If the application is withdrawn or refused the fee will be refunded minus any vehicle 
test fees and an administrative charge. Should the application be appealed, the 
administrative charge will be higher. 
 

Page 96



23 

  
15 Grandfather Rights 
  
 The Authority will take account of the previous decision to licence a vehicle where 

a departure from the policy has been made providing the application is received 
within 2 months of the expiry date.   Applications made after this period will be 
considered as a new application and the Policy will be freshly applied. 
 

 The Authority will take account of the previous DBS check held of any proprietor 
who has not renewed their vehicle proprietor’s licence but re-applies within 6 
months of the expiry date.   
 

16. Change of address 
  
 The proprietor must advise the Authority in writing within 7 days of a change of 

business or home address during the period of the licence.  There is no fee for this 
process. 

  
17. Transfer of interest 
  
 The proprietor shall notify the Authority in writing, giving the name and address of 

the new proprietor, within 14 days if the interest in the vehicle is transferred to 
another person not currently named on the licence. 
 
Each proposed vehicle proprietor will be required to provide a Basic Disclosure of 
convictions from the Disclosure and Barring Service.  If the applicant is currently 
licensed as a driver with this Authority, they will be exempt from this requirement. 

  
 Where a proprietor wishes to be removed from the licence the Authority should be 

notified in writing within 14 days.  There is no fee for this process. 
 

18. Limousines 
  
 A stretch limousine is a luxury saloon car with a lengthened wheelbase and an 

extended chassis. 
  
 The Authority recognises the role limousines have to play in the private hire trade 

to meet a public demand and as such it is necessary for them to come under the 
licensing system and the controls that this will allow. The Authority, however, has 
not developed a separate licensing regime for such vehicles. Rather it has widened 
the criteria of the current vehicle specifications that licensed vehicles must meet. 
Please see Appendix A.   
 

 Most limousines are imported for commercial purposes and are required to take an 
individual vehicle type approval (IVA) test. This ensures that the vehicles meet 
modern safety standards and environmental standards before being used on public 
roads. 
 

 The Authority has no objection to licensing limousines that are safe and fit for the 
road.  

Page 97



24 

The Authority has given consideration to licensing left hand drive vehicles and 
vehicles with side facing seats, however, it believes that such vehicles are not 
suitable due to the safety issues that exist with such vehicles and as such will not 
licence them. 

  
 There shall be no sale or provision of alcohol from any vehicle without a current 

premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 being in force.  Under section 156 
of the Licensing Act 2003 it is an offence to sell alcohol from a moving vehicle. 

  
 Funerals and Weddings 
  
 There is no requirement for a vehicle to be licensed where it is being used in 

connection with a funeral or is being wholly or mainly used by a person carrying on 
the business of a Funeral Director for the purpose of funerals. 

  
 A vehicle does not need to be licensed while it is being used in connection with a 

wedding. 
  
19. Executive Hire Private Hire Vehicles 
  
 Private hire vehicles (not hackney carriages) used solely and exclusively for 

executive hire can be exempted under Section 75(3) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 from the requirement to display a licence plate 
and the driver from wearing a driver’s badge. 

  
 Any proprietor of a licensed private hire vehicle wishing to apply for this exemption 

should be engaged solely in the provision of an executive service.  
 
The applicant must satisfy the Director of Public Health that the specification of the 
vehicle and the overall level of service provision constitutes an executive hire 
service. This is initially done by way of submission of a business plan, inspection 
of the vehicle and the proprietor of the vehicle in question being interviewed by a 
Licensing Officer of the Authority. Guidance notes are available from the Licensing 
Section. 

  
 Applications for an exemption can be made in writing, in person at a prescribed 

time or by post or e-mail. 
 

 If granted, an Exemption Notice will be issued to the proprietor. The Exemption 
Notice shall not be granted for a period of more than one year and shall expire upon 
the expiry of the private hire vehicle licence. 

  
 The Exemption Notice is granted subject to the licensed private hire vehicle being 

operated in accordance with standard conditions attached at Appendix D and any 
additional conditions. Failure to comply with these conditions may result in the 
withdrawal of the Exemption Notice. The conditions are attached at Appendix D to 
this Policy. 

  
 

Page 98



25 

 The private hire operator, proprietor and driver operating under the provisions of 
an executive Exemption Notice, remain subject to the requirements of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 with regard to the respective 
licences and the conditions attached in each case. 

  
 Any vehicle operating under this exemption may also request in writing to be 

exempt from the condition limiting the tint on the rear passenger windows (two rear 
passenger windows, back window and any rear side windows if present). 
 

 Any vehicle granted an exemption, and which has tinted windows, must not be 
engaged at all in any contract or provision of vehicle for the carriage of school 
children or based around the carriage of unaccompanied children/young persons 
(under age 18 years). The driver must not act as the accompanying adult. Further, 
the Operator must, unless such a vehicle has been specifically requested, inform a 
hirer that such a vehicle with tinted windows will be supplied. 

  
20. Tinted Windows 
  
 In the case of vehicles where windows have been factory fitted as standard with a 

tint there will be no minimum light transmission requirement for all windows to the 
rear of the B pillar.   
 
The windows (excluding the windscreen which must have a minimum light 
transmission of 75% and 70% minimum light transmission for front side windows) 
of any vehicle shall not be adapted so that less than the percentages detailed below 
of light is transmitted through it: 
 

  34% for all windows to the rear of the B pillar. 
 
Licensing Officers are able to exercise their discretion as to the suitability of a 
vehicle where the light transmittance of the windows is below 34%. This discretion 
however does not apply to the front windscreen or the front side windows. 

  
In addition to above, if the following criteria can be met there will also be no 
minimum light transmission: 
 

   The vehicle is an executive hire vehicle operating under an Exemption 
Notice, and 

   The vehicle will not be engaged at all in any contract or provision of vehicle 
for the carriage of minors or based around the carriage of unaccompanied 
children/young persons (under age 18 years). The driver must not act as the 
accompanying adult, and 

   Approval has been given by the Director of Public Health. 
 

The Operator must, unless such a vehicle has been specifically requested, inform 
a hirer that a vehicle with tinted windows as detailed above will be used to fulfill the 
booking. 

  
 
 

Page 99



26 

21. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) in vehicles 
  
 The purpose of CCTV is to provide a safe environment for the benefit of the driver 

and passengers by: 
 

  Deterring and preventing the occurrence of crime 
  Reducing the fear of crime 
  Assisting the Police and Licensing Officers in investigating incidents of crime 

and/or complaints 
  Assisting insurance companies in investigating motor vehicle accidents. 

 
 Where a CCTV system or similar recording device is in place it is a requirement 

that the proprietor must register their use of a CCTV system with the Information 
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) in accordance with the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act 2018.  Further information is available at https://ico.org.uk/  

  
 Any vehicle fitted with CCTV must display a sign approved by the Licensing 

Authority advising passengers that a CCTV system is in operation in the vehicle. 
  
 Where CCTV is in place in a vehicle it must be in full working order when 

passengers are being carried. The CCTV system must be maintained to 
manufacturers’ standards. 

  
 The CCTV footage must be available for viewing by a Police Officer or an 

Authorised Officer of the Authority when a request to view the footage is made in 
compliance with the Data Protection Act 2018. Any failure to comply with such a 
request will be reported to the Licensing Section of the Authority for consideration 
of the appropriate action to be taken.   
 
Any reports of misuse of CCTV will be referred to the relevant authority, for 
example, the Surveillance Camera Commissioner and the Information 
Commissioner’s Office as well as the Authority. 

  
22. Environmental Considerations 
  

This Policy is listed in the Authority’s Transport Strategy for 2017-2032 as a Policy 
that supports the delivery of the Transport Strategy in the Borough. The North 
Tyneside Transport Strategy was approved by Cabinet in May 2017 and commits 
to managing the Borough’s transport network effectively having regard to all forms 
of transport including that provided by hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. 
This Policy has therefore been developed having regard to the Authority’s 
Transport Strategy. The Transport Strategy for 2017-32 can be found on the North 
Tyneside Council website. 
 
As detailed in Chapter 1, one of the objectives of this Policy is the promotion of 
environmental sustainability. To meet this objective the Policy seeks to promote the 
uptake of zero and ultra- low emission vehicles and to permit licenses to be granted 
only for those vehicles that comply with particular age requirements within this 
Policy. 
 

Page 100

https://ico.org.uk/


27 

 Emissions from hackney carriage and private hire vehicles can be immediately 
improved through encouraging the better maintenance of vehicles and by drivers 
switching off their vehicle’s engine when stationary and so preventing the idling of 
engines, including in particular hackney carriages parked at ranks or licensed 
vehicles waiting for a fare. Non-idling technology is becoming more prevalent in 
newer vehicles and over time all licensed vehicles should be able to make use of 
this technology.    
 

23. Emission/Age standards 
 
As part of the need to promote environmental sustainability and reducing pollution 
caused by road vehicles, this Policy introduces common requirements for 
emissions from hackney carriages and private hire vehicles. The age standards set 
out below aim to assist in meeting the need to improve air quality in the Borough 
and the wider region.  
 
The following age standards will be implemented over a four year period: 
 
(i) From 1 April 2024 no new vehicle licence will be granted for the vehicle unless 
it is less than 4 years old 
(ii) From 1 April 2026 a vehicle licence will not be renewed unless the vehicle is 
less than 8 years old  
(iii) From 1 April 2027 a wheelchair accessible vehicle licence will not be renewed 
unless the vehicle is less than 8 years old. 
 
All ‘Full electric’ and ‘zero emission at source’ vehicles will be exempt from the age 
standards set out above. 
  
If any application is refused due to a vehicle failing to meet the age standard the 
licensee/applicant can appeal to Regulation and Review Committee against the 
decision to refuse to grant a licence or to the Magistrates’ Court or Crown Court as 
appropriate. 

 
24. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Insurance write offs 
 
Car insurance assessors use various categories of car insurance write off to rank 
the seriousness of accident damage.  Two categories (A & B) represent very 
serious damage, but the remaining two categories (S & N) are for ‘economic write 
offs’ where the damage is considered too expensive to fix but does not necessarily 
amount to damage that is considered to be dangerous.  Vehicles that have been 
declared to be an insurance write off in category A & B will not be licensed.  
 
Vehicles that have been declared either category S or N write off may be licensed 
providing the standard of repairs can be verified and that the vehicle is considered 
to be safe in all regards.  This can be done by either the applicant providing an 
appropriate Engineer’s report, approved by the Authority, or by inspection of the 
vehicle at the Authority’s test station.    
 
 
 

Page 101



28 

25. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
26. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Licence Plate, Windscreen Disc and Door Decals 
 
Where a licence is issued, a licence plate, windscreen disc and door decals 
identifying the vehicle as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle will be issued. 
 
The licence plate displays the licence number, registration number and make, 
model and colour of the vehicle along with the maximum number of passengers 
that can be conveyed.  
 
The plate must be securely fixed externally on or about the off-side area of the rear 
bodywork or rear bumper of the vehicle.  The plate must be attached at all times.  
The plate always remains the property of the Authority and must be returned upon 
expiry, surrender, suspension or revocation of the licence. 
 
The windscreen disc displays the licence number, expiry date of the licence and 
the maximum number of passengers that can be conveyed in the vehicle and must 
be displayed at all times in the upper corner of the nearside part of the windscreen.  
 
The decals display the licence number of the vehicle and must be attached centrally 
to each front door of the vehicle.  In the case of a private hire vehicle they must be 
securely affixed and in the case of Hackney Carriage Vehicle permanently affixed 
to the vehicle.   
 
Unless a private hire vehicle has been issued with an Exemption Notice to operate 
as an Executive style vehicle (please refer to the relevant section above) the decals 
must remain affixed at all times the vehicle is operating and cannot be removed on 
an ad hoc basis. 
 
Conditions 
 
It is the responsibility of hackney carriage proprietor licence holders and private 
hire vehicle licence holders to ensure that they have read and fully understood the 
conditions that form part of their licence and fully understand the requirements 
imposed on them by such conditions. Failure to adhere to the conditions could 
result in disciplinary action being taken against the licence holder. Any proprietor 
of a licensed vehicle who claims not to be aware of the existence of a licence 
condition will be considered as not having taken sufficient care to ensure the safety 
and care of their passengers.  

 

Page 102



29 

3. Drivers 
  
 Contents 
  

1. Licences 
2. Experience 
3. Right to work 
4. Driver Knowledge/Test 
5. DBS Check 
6. DBS Process 
7. Manual DBS Certificate 
8. Applicants who have spent time abroad 
9. Relevance of Convictions and Cautions 
10. National Register of Taxi Licence Refusals and Revocations (NR3) 
11. Referrals to the Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) 
12. Medical Assessment 
13. Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation (CSAE) (Including ‘County Lines’) 
14. Tax Conditionality (HMRC) 
15. Three Year Driving Licences 
16. Application Procedure 
17. New Applications 
18. Renewal Applications 
19. Incomplete Applications  
20. Grandfather Rights 
21. Driver Identity Badge 
22. Conditions of Licence 
23. Code of Good Conduct 
24. Driver’s Dress Code 

 
   
1. Licences 
  
 The Authority issues the following driver licences: 
  
   Hackney carriage driver 
   Private hire driver 
  
 Licences are issued subject to proof of eligibility – driving licence, knowledge test, 

criminal records check, medical assessment, eligibility to live and work in the UK 
and awareness of Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation, including “County Lines”. 

  
 The statutory and practical criteria and qualifications for each licence are almost 

identical and therefore this chapter will apply to all driver licences. However, where 
differences exist between the licensing regimes, reference will be made to it in this 
Policy. 

  
 Decision making in relation to licensing of drivers is an onerous duty requiring the 

Authority to take decisions in the interests of the wider community and not in the 
interests of the licensee or applicant. The safety of the public is the paramount 
objective of the Authority. 

Page 103



30 

 
The Authority is aware that in respect of an application for an initial grant of a 
licence, it is for the applicant to satisfy the Authority on the balance of probabilities 
that he/she is a fit and proper person to be granted a licence.   
 
An applicant or licensee should not be ‘given the benefit of doubt’ and if the 
committee or delegated officer is only “50/50” as to whether the applicant or 
licensee is a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a licence, they should not hold a licence. 
The threshold used here is lower than for a criminal conviction (that being ‘beyond 
reasonable doubt’) and the Authority can take into consideration, amongst other 
things, conduct that has not resulted in a criminal conviction for whatever reason. 
 
Once a person is licensed they shall be presumed to remain a fit and proper person 
to be licensed unless evidence satisfies the committee or delegated officer that the 
licensee is no longer a fit and proper person as a result of a conviction, caution, 
fixed penalty or community resolution, complaint, other non-conviction information 
or medical evidence that comes to the Authority’s attention. 

  
2. Experience 
  
 All applicants must have held a full UK or European Economic Area (EEA) driving 

licence or that from a Designated Country for at least 12 months before the date of 
the application.  A full list of EEA Countries is available from the Licensing Section 
of the Authority. 

  
3. Right to work 
  
 Applicants for a licence will be required to prove that they have a right to live and 

work in the UK before being considered for a licence and no licence will be granted/ 
renewed until the applicant is able to prove this requirement.  If leave to remain in 
the country is for a period of less than 3 years a shorter licence will be issued. 
 
All new applicants a Right to Live and Work in the UK check will be carried out. 

  
4. Driver Knowledge/ Test 
  
 In order to determine the fitness of a person to hold a licence, all new applicants 

are required to sit and pass a test on their knowledge of driver conduct, licensing 
legislation, awareness of Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation, including ‘County 
Lines’ and the highway code. Applicants for a hackney carriage driver’s licence will 
also be tested on their knowledge of the local geography.   
 
Applicants will be permitted to have 3 attempts at passing the knowledge test. If an 
applicant fails to pass the test after 3 attempts, they will be required to wait for a 
period of at least 1 month from the date of the last test taken by them before being 
permitted to sit the test again.  

  
 
 

Page 104



31 

 No driver’s licence will be issued without the applicant first gaining a knowledge 
test pass certificate. If an applicant does not apply for the initial licence and 12 
months elapses before an application for a licence is made the applicant will be 
required to sit a further knowledge test.  
 
The Authority views candidates who cheat or attempt to cheat during the test to be 
acting dishonestly.  Any candidate found cheating will be disqualified and the test 
fee will be forfeited.  In addition, in such cases, the candidate’s conduct will be 
taken into consideration when determining their application for a licence. 

  
5. Disclosure and Barring Service Check 
  
 Given the role of a hackney carriage or private hire driver the Authority has 

determined that an Enhanced Disclosure provided by the Disclosure and Barring 
Service (DBS) is required by all new applicants for a licence.  Once licensed, drivers 
will be required to undergo a further enhanced criminal record check at each three- 
yearly renewal of their licence. A DBS check on a driver is an important measure 
in assessing whether or not an applicant is suitable to hold a hackney carriage, 
private hire or dual hackney carriage/private driver’s licence. 

 The Enhanced Disclosure provides details of all convictions, cautions, fixed 
penalties and community resolutions held on the Police National Computer.  The 
Enhanced Check will include information held on the DBS’s Children and Adult 
Barred Lists of those individuals considered unsuitable or banned from working 
with children or vulnerable adults.   
 
In addition, where appropriate the Disclosure Unit of the Police will share with the 
Authority other relevant information disclosed at the Chief Officer of Police’s 
discretion. 

  
 These disclosures include details of spent and unspent convictions, cautions and 

intelligence. By virtue of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exception) Order 
1975, the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 does not apply to applicants for 
hackney carriage or private hire driving licences and convictions of such drivers are 
never spent. 

  
6. DBS Process 
  
 The Authority does not accept paper applications for Disclosures from the 

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS).  Applicants applying for a hackney carriage 
or private hire driver’s licence must complete an on-line DBS form and this must be 
done before submitting the application for the licence to the Licensing Section of 
the Authority. 
 
To complete an on-line DBS form, applicants will need access to the internet.  
There are Customer First Centres located in the Borough where computer facilities 
are offered.  Additional guidance on completing the online application is available 
from the Licensing Section or on the Authority website at 
www.northtyneside.gov.uk 

  

Page 105

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


32 

 DBS checks are not portable and only DBS checks applied for through North East 
Regional Employers Organisation (NEREO), the Authority’s service provider, will 
be accepted.  After completing the on-line application applicants will be given a 
submission reference number.  Applicants will need to make a note of this 
reference number as the Licensing Section will require this at the time of 
submission of the application for the Licence. Where an applicant is already signed 
up to the Update Service the acceptance of this will be considered on a case by 
case basis. 

  
 A minimum of three forms of identity will be required in order to verify the 

identification of an applicant. The full list of approved documentation is available 
from the Licensing Section of the Authority or on the Authority’s website at 
www.northtyneside.gov.uk.  

  
 The Authority requires applicants and existing drivers to subscribe to the DBS 

Update Service. An additional fee payable to the DBS will be required in relation to 
this service. The Update Service will allow criminal record certificates to be kept up 
to date.   

  
 Licensees will need to provide the Authority with their Disclosure Certificate when 

applying for a licence or renewal of a licence and complete and sign a Mandate 
confirming that they consent to the Authority carrying out online checks. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. 

The Update Service will then allow the Authority to carry out free, instant online 
checks of an individual’s certificate to check it is up to date.  Such checks will be 
carried out at six monthly intervals and, if otherwise appropriate, at any other time.  
The Authority will only have to seek a new criminal record check if the DBS advises 
that something has changed.  Further information is available on the Disclosure 
and Barring Service website at www.gov.uk/dbs. Failure to subscribe to the Update 
Service will result in the driver’s licence being suspended 
 
Manual DBS Certificates 
 
The Disclosure and Barring Service occasionally are unable to issue a normal 
Enhanced Disclosure and instead issue a Manual Certificate which prevents an 
individual from subscribing to the Update Service. 
 
In such cases the Authority will require the driver to complete an Annual Declaration 
for the period their hackney carriage/private hire driver’s licence remains in force 
confirming they have not been cautioned by the police or other regulatory body, 
have not been convicted of any offence(s) including motoring offences and that 
there are no ongoing criminal investigations or court proceedings in their name.  
Failure to complete the Annual Declaration will result in the driver’s licence being 
suspended.   
 

8. Applicants who have spent time abroad 
  
 If an applicant is newly resident in the UK, they must still apply for an enhanced 

DBS check regardless of the period of time they have spent in the UK. 
  

Page 106

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/dbs


33 

 Where an applicant has been continually absent from the United Kingdom and 
Channel Islands for 3 months or more an enhanced DBS disclosure in itself will be 
insufficient to satisfy the Authority that the applicant is a fit and proper person, as 
the DBS does not routinely provide criminal record information from non-UK 
countries.  Such applicants should provide a Certificate of Good Conduct or 
equivalent document from each country where they have been resident/ domiciled.   

  
 A Certificate of Good Conduct or equivalent document is an extract from the judicial 

record or administrative authority in the relevant country testifying to good conduct 
and/or to any criminal convictions recorded against the individual.   

  
 The Director of Public Health may approach the relevant Embassy or appropriate 

body directly to verify documents provided.  The applicant will be advised of any 
costs involved (e.g. in relation to translation) and these costs must be met by the 
applicant. 

  
 The Authority may require the applicant to submit additional information and 

references. 
  
 At all times, the Authority’s aim is to protect members of the public who are using 

vehicles and drivers licensed by the Authority and thus if the documentation 
produced does not satisfy the Authority, then the application will be refused.   

  
 Asylum seekers or persons granted asylum/refugee status will not be required to 

produce a Certificate of Good Conduct from the country they are claiming asylum 
from. To gain this exemption the applicant must provide a Certificate of Registration 
or a letter issued by UK Visas and Immigration confirming the above and must 
submit a written request to the Authority for the exemption to apply.  A DBS check 
for time spent in the UK will still be required. 

  
 The Director of Environment, Housing & Leisure may determine such applications 

or refer them to the Regulation & Review Committee. 
  
9. Relevance of Convictions, Fixed Penalties, Community Resolutions, 

Cautions and Conduct 
  
 In relation to the consideration of convictions, cautions, fixed penalties and 

community resolutions recorded against a person and concerns about their conduct 
please refer to Section A of Chapter 7 of this Policy – Guidance as to the Relevance 
of Convictions, Cautions, Fixed Penalties and Community Resolutions and Section 
B of Chapter 7 - Conduct. 

  
 In assessing whether the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence, or if 

an existing driver continues to be a fit and proper person the Authority will consider 
each case on its own merits. 
 

 In some cases, the Authority may require additional DBS checks at a cost to the 
licensee. 
 
 

Page 107



34 

 
 

10. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11. 

National Register of Taxi Licence Refusals and Revocations (NR3) 
 
The Authority has signed up to the National Register of Taxi Licence Refusals and 
Revocations (NR3).  On receipt of an application for a hackney carriage or private 
hire driver’s licence this register will be checked for any information concerning the 
applicant. In addition, should an application for a hackney carriage or private hire 
driver’s licence (new and renewal) be refused, or when an existing drivers’ licence 
is revoked, that information will be placed upon the register.   
 
The Policy that covers the use by the Authority of the information contained on the 
NR3 register can be found at www.nortytyneside.gov.uk 
 
Referrals to the Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS)  
 
In some circumstances it may be appropriate under the Safeguarding Vulnerable 
Groups Act 2006 for the Authority to make a referral to the DBS and the police. A 
decision to refuse or revoke a driver’s licence because they are considered to pose 
a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult will be referred to the DBS. 
 
A referral by the Authority to the DBS will be made when it is thought that: 
 

a) A person has harmed or poses a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult 
b) A person has satisfied the ‘harm test’ set out in section 39(3) of the 

Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 or 
c) A person has received a caution or conviction for a relevant offence; and 
d) The person being referred is, or might in the future be, working in regulated 

activity. 
  
 Following the referral, if the conditions in a) to d) are satisfied the DBS may consider 

it appropriate for the person to be added to the ‘barred list’. 
 
Information on the DBS service and referrals made to them is available here 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-barring-referrals-to-the-dbs 
 

12. Medical Assessment 
  
 Upon an initial application for a driver’s licence the applicant shall produce a 

completed Medical Certificate Form MC1. This must be completed by the 
applicants own G.P or a Medical Practitioner with access to the applicant’s full 
medical history. The applicant is responsible for paying the fee for the examination. 
If necessary, the G.P. may return the completed form direct to the Licensing 
Section. 

  
 Group 2 Medical Standard of Fitness applies. Please refer to Chapter 7 for more 

details with regard to medical fitness. 
  

Page 108

http://www.nortytyneside.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/making-barring-referrals-to-the-dbs


35 

 Applicants attaining 45 years of age must provide evidence of their medical fitness 
to hold a licence every five years up until the age of 65 years, after which a medical 
examination is required every year. 

  
 Where a medical examination is due within the term of the licence, the Authority 

will contact the driver in writing to advise of this. Should the medical certificate not 
be provided within the relevant timescale, the driver’s licence will be suspended 
until such time as a medical certificate is provided and in certain cases the 
suspension will be with immediate effect. 

  
 Holders of DVLA Group 2 Licences will not be required to provide a medical 

certificate provided their licences are valid and evidence is produced to confirm 
this.   
 
In other cases where a more in depth medical has been undertaken for a specific 
profession (e.g. pilot’s licence) then this will be considered on a case by case basis 
by the Licensing Section. 
 

13. Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation (CSAE) (Including ‘County Lines’) 
 
The Authority understands that it must ensure that the hackney carriage and private 
hire licensing regime protects the vulnerable including children and that Child 
Sexual Abuse and Exploitation can have a long-term devastating effect.   

  
 Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation (CSAE) is ‘everybody’s business’ and the 

Authority is committed to working in partnership with and supporting local 
businesses and the community to raise awareness of this issue. Licensed drivers 
may see, hear or recognise situations or behaviour that may be of concern to them. 
As well as being in a position of trust drivers play an important role in helping to 
safeguard vulnerable people.  It is important therefore that licensed drivers and 
applicants undergo awareness training to assist in the prevention of sexual abuse 
and exploitation and to know how to report it.  By key agencies working together 
and sharing information sexual abuse and exploitation can be prevented, children 
and young people are protected, and perpetrators of sexual offences prosecuted.  
 
It is a requirement that all new applicants for a hackney carriage/private hire driver’s 
licence to undertake Child Sexual Abuse and Exploitation awareness training prior 
to being issued a licence, including ‘county lines’ exploitation. 
 
All existing drivers are required to undertake sexual exploitation awareness 
refresher training every three years, with regular updated information leaflets 
circulated to drivers when required.  If refresher training is not completed the driver 
will be referred to Regulation and Review Committee. 

  
14. Tax Conditionality (HMRC) 
  
 From 4 April 2022 all individuals applying to renew their licence to drive a hackney 

carriage or private hire vehicle will need to complete a tax check. Drivers will need 
a tax check reference number which can be obtained by submitting their details 
into an online service.  

Page 109



36 

The licensing authority will use this to confirm with HMRC that a tax check has been 
completed.  If a tax check is not completed, the licensing authority will be unable to 
consider your application to renew your licence and your current licence will expire. 
 
New applicants for a licence will be required to confirm they understand their tax 
responsibilities and are aware of the guidance in order to be properly registered for 
tax in the future.  If new applicants do not confirm that they are aware of the 
guidance they will not be issued with a licence. 
 
Further information on is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licence-application-tax-check-
communications-resources/tax-check-factsheet 
 

  
15. Three Year Driving Licences 
  
 In the majority of cases the Authority will issue driver licences for up to three years.  

In certain cases, a three-year licence will not be appropriate but the Licensing 
Section will advise if this is the case. 
 

16. Application Procedure 
  
17. New Applications 
  
 The following documents are to be submitted in person at a prescribed time or 

online as applicable for a new application: 
  
   Fully completed application form 
   Medical Certificate Form (MC1) completed by applicant’s own GP or one 

who has had access to the applicant’s full medical history and/or any 
relevant electronic medical records held or evidence provided that a DVLA 
Group 2 licence is held.  A suitable alternative medical will be considered on 
a case by case basis 

   DBS Submission Reference Number together with appropriate identity 
documents or evidence provided to confirm subscription to the DBS Update 
Service, or if already subscribed to the Service, a current DBS Certificate  

   Fully completed DBS Update Service Mandate form (if required) 
   Knowledge Test pass certificate 
   Driving Licence  
   Fully completed mandate for DVLA licence check 

  Evidence of a right to reside and work in the UK  
  Evidence of completion of CSAE awareness training 
  Confirmation tax responsibilities are understood and are aware of HMRC  

guidance 
  Any additional information requested by the Licensing Section. 

  
 Fees: 
  
   Licence fee including DBS check fee if required. 

Page 110

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licence-application-tax-check-communications-resources/tax-check-factsheet
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licence-application-tax-check-communications-resources/tax-check-factsheet


37 

  
 The application will not be determined until the knowledge test has been taken and 

passed, a medical certificate and Enhanced Disclosure and where applicable a 
Certificate of Good Conduct and any additional information requested are received 
by the Authority.  Any incorrectly completed forms will be returned.   

  
 
 
 
 
 

If the application is withdrawn or refused the fee will be refunded minus the 
proportion of the charge for the DBS and knowledge test fee and an administrative 
charge. Should the application be appealed, the administrative charge will be 
higher.   
 

18. Renewals 
  
 Applications to renew a licence must be submitted in person at a prescribed time 

or on-line as applicable prior to the expiry date of the current licence.  
 
There is no legal requirement for the Authority to send out reminders for renewals 
for licences, but to aid drivers the Licensing Team will endeavour to do so.  
However, the responsibility rests with the driver to ensure documentation is 
provided within the appropriate timescales.  If the required documents are not 
produced the application will not be determined and the application treated as 
incomplete. 
 

 The following documents are to be submitted for a renewal application: 
  
   Fully completed renewal form 
   Medical Certificate Form (MC1) completed by applicant’s own GP or one 

who has had access to the applicant’s full medical history and/or any 
relevant electronic medical records held or evidence provided that a DVLA 
Group 2 licence is held.  A suitable alternative medical will be considered on 
a case by case basis, if required 

   DBS Submission Reference Number together with appropriate identity 
documents or Evidence provided to confirm subscription to the DBS Update 
Service 

   Fully completed DBS Update Service Mandate form (if required) 
   Driving licence and/or fully completed DVLA mandate 

  Evidence of a right to reside and work in the UK (where required) 
  Evidence of completion of a refresher CSAE awareness package (when 

required) 
  Tax check reference number 
  Any additional information requested by the Licensing Section. 

  
Holders of existing driver’s licences must apply to renew their licence in the four 
weeks preceding the expiry date and the licence holder is encouraged to submit 
the application at least 10 working days prior to the expiry of the existing licence to 
allow the application to be processed. Renewal applications submitted after the 
expiry date will not be accepted.  Any late renewals will be classed as a new 
application with Grandfather Rights and a higher licence fee will apply. 
 
 

Page 111



38 

 Fees: 
  
   Licence fee including DBS check fee if required. 
  
 If the application is refused the fee will be refunded minus the proportion of the 

charge for the DBS and an administrative charge.  Should the application be 
appealed, the administrative charge to be paid will be higher. 

19. Incomplete applications 
  
 An application to renew a licence that has been submitted with the appropriate 

licence fee prior to the expiry of that licence, but is incomplete, will not be 
processed.  
 
In such cases the Authority will issue a written request to the licensee for the 
additional information to be provided within 14 days of the expiry of the 
licence.  During this time the licensee can continue to drive.   
 

 If the licensee fails to provide the information within this time period the application 
will be refused, to which the licensee will have a right of appeal.  During this time 
the licensee can also continue to drive.  If no appeal is received within 21 days, 
then the driver must cease driving. 

  
 Renewal applications will be processed and a driver’s licence issued pending any 

required enhanced DBS check, unless the Authority has reasonable grounds for 
concern in which case the renewal will not be granted until or unless these concerns 
have been resolved.  
 
Any licence that is issued pending the result of a DBS check will be on a “without 
prejudice basis” meaning such licences are issued without prejudice to any 
subsequent decision that the Authority may make when all of the relevant 
information from the DBS check is to hand.  
 
If no evidence is provided of an enhanced DBS check having been submitted and 
sufficient accompanying documents to proceed with the renewal application, the 
application will not be accepted and no “without prejudice” licence issued. 
 

 If convictions, cautions etc. or charges are disclosed in the DBS check, the Director 
of Public Health will make a decision as to their relevance. The Authority may 
require further information from the Police, Crown Prosecution Service or other 
agencies prior to making a decision. If the information received is deemed relevant 
according to this Policy, the application for renewal of a licence may be refused. 
Appeals against a refusal must be made in writing to the Regulation and Review 
Committee and/or Magistrates Court and be received within 21 days of receipt of 
the decision. 

  
 If details of any convictions, cautions etc. are received through the DBS check 

process and these were not disclosed by the applicant on the signed declaration 
form stating that there are no new convictions, cautions, fixed penalties or 

Page 112



39 

community resolutions then this will be treated seriously, and the appropriate action 
taken in accordance with the Authority’s Enforcement Policy. 

  
 The Director of Public Health may refer a decision to renew a driver’s licence to the 

Regulation and Review Committee. 
  
 If a renewal of a licence is refused the decision and reasons for the decision will be 

notified in writing to the applicant or licensee within 5 working days of the decision. 
  
20. Grandfather Rights 
  
 The Authority will take account of the previous DBS check and medical history held 

of any driver who has not renewed their driver’s licence but re-applies within 6 
months of the expiry date.  If a knowledge test has been passed, then a period of 
12 months will apply in relation to this. 

  
21. Driver Identity badges 
  
 Where a licence is issued, drivers will be issued with two identity badges detailing 

their name, licence number, expiry date of the licence and a photograph of the 
licensee. One badge must be worn at all times when the driver is working. Drivers 
are required to display the other badge in the vehicle where it is clearly visible to 
passengers.  
 
Where an applicant has applied for and been granted both a hackney carriage 
driver’s licence and a private hire driver’s licence, rather than issue two identity 
badges for each type of licence (i.e four identity badges) the Authority will issue two 
‘Dual Licence’ identity badges denoting that the driver is licensed to drive either 
type of vehicle. 

  
 Lost or damaged badges must be notified to the Licensing Section by the next 

working day. A fee will be charged for each replacement badge. 
  
22. Conditions of Licence/Byelaws   
  
 The conditions set out at Appendix E are considered reasonably necessary and 

as such may be legally imposed in respect of private hire drivers.    
  
 The Authority is not permitted to attach conditions to a hackney carriage driver’s 

licence. The Authority has adopted Byelaws which regulate hackney carriage 
drivers. It is, however, empowered to attach conditions to a private hire driver’s 
licence as are considered necessary.   
 
It is the responsibility of a private hire driver on the grant of a driver’s licence to 
ensure that they have read the conditions attached to the licence and to fully 
understand the requirements imposed on them by such conditions. Failure to 
adhere to the conditions could result in disciplinary action being taken against the 
driver. 
 

Page 113



40 

No private hire driver should be operating as a licensed driver without being aware 
of the conditions attached to their licence and all drivers will be expected to have 
read the conditions on receipt of their licence.  
 
It is the responsibility of a hackney carriage driver on the grant of a driver’s licence 
to ensure that they have read the Byelaws adopted by the Authority which regulate 
their driver’s licence. Please see Appendix I for Byelaws. Failure to adhere to the 
Byelaws could result in disciplinary action being taken against the driver including 
prosecution. 

  
23. Code of Good Conduct 
  
 The Authority has introduced a Code of Good Conduct for all drivers that the 

Authority encourages drivers to operate in accordance with.  This serves to 
promote the objectives set out in this Policy in respect of hackney carriage and 
private hire licensing. This Code of Good Conduct will be taken into consideration 
when determining disciplinary matters. 

  
 The Code of Conduct is attached at Appendix F to this policy. 
  
24. Driver’s Dress Code   
  
 A dress code serves to enhance the professional image of the hackney carriage 

and private hire trade and promotes the concept that drivers of licensed vehicles 
are vocational drivers. 

  
 In order to raise the standard of the licensed trade, drivers should operate at all 

times in a professional manner and conform to a minimum standard of dress. A 
Dress Code for licensed drivers is therefore in place and attached at Appendix G 
to this Policy. The Authority will not impose such standards by way of conditions to 
any licence. It is expected, however, that such standards will be maintained at all 
times. 

Page 114



41 

4. Private Hire Operators 
  
 Contents 
 1. Requirements and obligations 
 2. Criminal Record Checks 
 3. 

4. 
5. 

Booking/Dispatch Staff 
Tax Conditionality (HMRC) 
Conditions 

 6. Other obligations 
 7. 

8. 
9. 

10. 
11. 

Application Procedure 
New Application 
Renewal Application 
Incomplete Application 
Grandfather Rights 

 12. Licence Duration 
 13. Address from which an operator may operate 
 14. Record Keeping 
 15. 

16. 
Change of Address 
Convictions/Cautions 

 17. 
 

18. 
19. 

Use of Passenger Carrying Vehicles (PCV) Licensed Drivers and Public 
Service Vehicles (PSV) 
Material Change in Circumstances 
Sub Contracting 

  
1. Requirements and obligations 
  
 Any person who operates one or more private hire vehicles must apply to the 

Authority for a private hire operator’s licence. 
  
 The objective in licensing private hire operators is to ensure the protection of the 

public who will be using the operator’s premises and the vehicles and drivers 
arranged through them.  

  
 A private hire vehicle may only be despatched to a customer by a private hire 

operator who holds an operator’s licence. Such a licence permits the operator to 
make provision for the invitation or acceptance of bookings for a private hire vehicle. 

  
 A private hire operator must ensure that every private hire vehicle despatched by 

him/her is licensed and driven by a person who holds a private hire driver’s licence. 
All three licences (operator, vehicle and driver) must be issued by the Authority. 

  
 It is a criminal offence to operate a private hire vehicle without an operator’s licence. 
  
 Operators and prospective operators need to familiarise themselves with the law 

and ensure they employ suitable work methods in order to comply with the law and 
avoid committing licensing offences. 

  

Page 115



42 

 Applications for an operator’s licence must be made on the prescribed form and the 
appropriate fee paid. The Authority will then decide whether the applicant is a fit 
and proper person to hold an operator’s licence.  
 
Whilst it is accepted that an operator does not have the same level of direct contact 
with the public as a licensed driver (unless s/he holds a hackney carriage or private 
hire driver’s licence), it is nevertheless the case that in performing their duties an 
operator will be in possession of considerable amounts of personal and private 
information. Such information must be treated in confidence. and must not be 
disclosed to others or used by the operator or their staff for criminal or other 
unacceptable purposes.  
 
Therefore, the Authority needs to be satisfied that an operator is a fit and proper 
person to hold, or continue to hold, an operator’s licence. 
 
For the reasons set out above and because the public must have trust and 
confidence in the safety and integrity of the private hire system, similar standards 
will be applied to operators as to drivers outlined in this Policy.  

 When determining the fitness and propriety of operators, Officers and Members 
will consider the following test: 
 

 “Would I be comfortable providing sensitive information such as holiday plans, 
movements of my family or other information to this person, and feel safe in the 
knowledge that such information will not be used or passed on for criminal or 
unacceptable purposes?”. 
 

 If the answer to this question is an unqualified yes, then the test is satisfied.  If  
Officers or Members have doubts then further consideration will be given as to  
whether the individual is a fit and proper person to hold an operator’s licence. 

  
The Authority may also require additional information from an applicant/operator 
when determining an application such as, details of policies on lost property, 
dealing with complaints, record keeping and employing ex-offenders in any role 
connected to the booking/dispatch of vehicles.  
 
An operator will be required by way of a licence condition to keep a register of all 
staff that take bookings and/or dispatch vehicles and have available the information 
required in the ‘Booking/Dispatch Staff’ section below. 

  
2. Criminal Record Checks 
  
 Private hire operator’s licences will only be granted to persons that the Authority is 

satisfied are fit and proper and pose no threat to the public and have no links to 
serious criminal activity. This will be ascertained by way of a Basic Disclosure of 
any criminal convictions from the Disclosure and Barring Service, information 
requested on the application form or if deemed necessary during interview with the 
Licensing Officer. 

  
 

Page 116



43 

 Before an application for a private hire operator’s licence will be considered the 
applicant (whether this be an individual or the Director of a limited company) must 
provide a current (less than 1 month old) Basic Disclosure of criminal convictions 
from the Disclosure and Barring Service. If the applicant is currently licensed as a 
driver with this Authority, they will be exempt from this requirement as they will 
already have had a higher level of criminal record check. 
 
Where a private hire operator’s licence is in force in the name of a limited company 
and a new director(s) is/are proposed to be appointed to that limited company then 
each proposed director will be required to provide a Basic Disclosure of convictions 
from the Disclosure and Barring Service.  If the proposed new director is currently 
licensed as a driver with this Authority they will be exempt from this requirement. 
 
In exceptional circumstances, the Authority may take relevant spent convictions into 
account having regard to the factors set out in the judgment of Adamson v Waveney 
District Council [1997] 2 All ER 898 when determining an individual’s suitability to 
hold an operator’s licence. In the case of a company, any relevant spent convictions 
of an officer of the company may be taken into account in exceptional 
circumstances when determining the suitability of the company to hold a licence. 

  
3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Booking/Dispatch Staff 
 
The Authority needs to be satisfied that an operator can demonstrate that all of their 
staff that have contact with the public and/or oversee the dispatching of vehicles do 
not pose a risk to the public. For this reason, an operator’s licence will include a 
condition requiring the operator to keep and maintain a register of all staff that take 
bookings and/or dispatch vehicles. 
 
Operators will also be required to evidence that they have had sight of a Basic DBS 
check on all individuals listed in their register of booking and dispatch staff and to 
ensure that Basic DBS checks are conducted on any individual added to the register 
and that this is compatible with their policy on employing ex-offenders. DBS 
certificates provided by the individual should be less than 1 month old when viewed 
by the operator, alternatively the operator could use a ‘responsible organisation’ to 
request the check on their behalf. When individuals start taking bookings and 
dispatching vehicles for an operator they should be required, as part of their 
employment contract, to advise the operator of any convictions while they are 
employed in this role. 
 
The operator’s register of staff must be a ‘living document’ that is kept up to date 
and maintains records of all those in these roles for the same duration as booking 
records are required to be kept by way of a licence condition, i.e. not less than one 
year. This will enable cross-referencing between the register of staff and the 
booking records. 
 
 A record of the fact that the operator has had sight of a basic DBS check certificate 
(although the certificate itself should not be retained) should be retained for the 
duration that the individual remains on the register. Should an employee cease to 
be on the register and later re-entered, a new basic DBS certificate should be 
requested and sight of this recorded. 

Page 117



44 

 
 
 
 
 

 
The register must be available for inspection at the request of an Officer of the 
Authority. 
 

4. Tax Conditionality (HMRC) 
  
 From 4 April 2022 all individuals applying to renew their licence to operate private 

hire vehicles will need to complete a tax check. Operators will need a tax check 
reference number which can be obtained by submitting their details into an online 
service. The licensing authority will use this to confirm with HMRC that a tax check 
has been completed.  If a tax check is not completed, the licensing authority will be 
unable to consider your application to renew your licence and your current licence 
will expire. 
 
New applicants for a licence will be required to confirm they understand their tax 
responsibilities and are aware of the guidance in order to be properly registered for 
tax in the future.  If new applicants do not confirm that they are aware of the 
guidance they will not be issued with a licence. 
 
Further information on is available at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licence-application-tax-check-
communications-resources/tax-check-factsheet 

  
5. Conditions 
  
 The Authority has power to impose such conditions on an operator’s licence as it 

considers reasonably necessary. 
 
On the grant of an operator’s licence the operator must read and understand the 
conditions attached to the licence. Failure to adhere to the conditions of the licence 
could result in disciplinary action being taken against the operator. 
 
No operator should be operating as such without being aware of the conditions 
attached to their licence and all operators will be expected to have read the 
conditions on receipt of their licence. 

  
 Appendix H sets out the model conditions to be attached to an operator’s licence 

which cover the standards of service expected. 
  
6. Other obligations 
  
 Applicants are advised to ensure that the appropriate public liability insurance has 

been taken out for premises and that appropriate planning permission is in place. 
  
 Applicants for operator licences (new or renewal) will be required to prove that they 

have a right to work in the UK before being considered for a licence.  No licence 
will be granted until the applicant is able to prove that they have a right to work in 
the UK.  If leave to remain in the country is less than 5 years a shorter licence will 
be issued. 

Page 118

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licence-application-tax-check-communications-resources/tax-check-factsheet
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/licence-application-tax-check-communications-resources/tax-check-factsheet


45 

 
All new applicants and on the first renewal for existing drivers a Right to Live and 
Work in the UK check will be carried out. 

  
7. Application Procedure 
  
8. New Application 
  
 The following documents are to be submitted in person at a prescribed time or by 

post, online or e-mail for a new application: 
  
   Application form 
   Basic Disclosure of criminal convictions certificate (if not currently licensed 

as a driver) of the applicant(s) 
  Evidence of a right to reside and work in the UK (where required) 

   Business Plan 
  Confirmation tax responsibilities are understood and are aware of HMRC  

guidance 
  A register of their staff who take bookings or despatch vehicles and 

operators (if available, otherwise provided within one month of the issue of 
the licence). 

   Officers may require a site visit to the premises prior to the determination of 
the application for an operator’s licence. 

   Any additional information requested by the Licensing Section 
 

 Fees: 
   Licence fee  

 
 If the application is withdrawn or refused the fee will be refunded minus an 

administrative charge. Should the application be appealed, the administrative 
charge will be higher. 

  
9. Renewals 

 
Applications to renew a licence must be submitted in person at a prescribed time 
or by post, on-line as applicable prior to the expiry date of the current licence.  
 
There is no legal requirement for the Authority to send out reminders for renewals 
for licences, but to aid operators the Licensing Team will endeavour to do so.  
However, the responsibility rests with the operator to ensure documentation is 
provided within the appropriate timescales.  If the required documents are not 
produced the application will not be determined and the application treated as 
incomplete. 
 
The following documents are to be submitted for a renewal application: 
 

   Fully completed renewal form 
  Basic Disclosure of criminal convictions certificate (if not currently licensed 

as a driver) of the applicant  

Page 119



46 

  Evidence of a right to reside and work in the UK (where required) 
  Tax check reference number 
  Any additional information requested by the Licensing Section. 
  Officers may require a site visit to the premises prior to the determination of 

the application for an operator’s licence. 
 

 Fees 
  Licence fee. 

 Holders of existing operator licences must apply to renew their licence in the four 
weeks preceding the expiry date and the licence holder is encouraged to submit 
the application at least 10 working days prior to the expiry of the existing licence to 
allow the application to be processed. Renewal applications submitted after the 
expiry date will not be accepted.   
 

 If the application is withdrawn or refused the fee will be refunded minus an 
administrative charge. Should the application be appealed, the administrative 
charge will be higher. 

  
10. Incomplete applications 

 
An application to renew a licence that has been submitted with the appropriate 
licence fee prior to the expiry of that licence, but is incomplete, will not be 
processed.  
 
In such cases the Authority will issue a written request to the licensee for the 
additional information to be provided within 14 days of the expiry of the licence.  
During this time the licensee can continue to operate.   
 
If the licensee fails to provide the information within this time period the application 
will be refused, to which the licensee will have a right of appeal.  During this time 
the licensee can also continue to operate.  If no appeal is received within 21 days, 
then the operator must cease operating. 

  
 The Director of Public Health may refer a decision to renew an operator’s licence 

to the Regulation and Review Committee.  If a renewal of a licence is refused the 
decision and reasons for the decision will be notified in writing to the applicant or 
licensee within 5 working days of the decision. 
 

11. Grandfather Rights 
 
The Authority will take account of the previous DBS check held of any operator who 
has not renewed their operator’s licence but re-applies within 6 months of the expiry 
date.   

  
12. Licence Duration 
  
 Operator’s licences will have a duration of up to five years. Fees paid in relation to 

operator licences will be subject to a partial refund on the unexpired portion of the 
licence should the operator choose to surrender their licence.  

Page 120



47 

 
Refunds will be payable in relation to each full year remaining on the licence and 
an administration fee will be levied. 

  
13. Address from which an operator may operate 
  
 Upon grant of an operator’s licence the Authority will specify the address or 

addresses from which the operator may operate. The premises must be in North 
Tyneside. 

  
 If an operator wishes to change the premises from which they operate they should 

seek approval from the Authority prior to any change. 
 

14. Record Keeping 
  
 Operators are required to keep records of each proprietor, vehicle and driver, 

booking records, including the name of the passenger, the destination, the name of 
the driver, the number of the vehicle and any fare agreed at the time of booking. 
Appendix H refers.  

  
 Records should be preserved for a period of not less than 12 months and be 

available for inspection at the request of an Officer of the Authority or Police Officer. 
  
15. Change of Home Address 
  
 The operator must advise the Licensing Section of the Authority in writing of any 

change of his/her home address within 7 days of such a change taking place. 
  
16. Convictions, Cautions, Fixed Penalties and Community Resolutions 
  
 
 
 
 
 
17. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The operator shall disclose to the Authority within 7 days in writing of any conviction, 
caution, fixed penalty or community resolution received in relation to themselves or 
in the case of a limited company, against the company, its secretary or any of its 
directors. 
 
Use of Passenger Carrying Vehicles (PCV) Licensed Drivers and Public 
Service Vehicles (PSV) 
 
Members of the public who book a private hire vehicle through the operator are 
entitled to expect that they will receive a private hire licensed vehicle and driver 
rather than a PCV licensed driver driving a PSV.  
 
An operator’s licence will include a condition prohibiting the use of a driver who 
holds only a PCV licence and the use of a PSV without the informed consent of the 
person making the booking. The operator will be required to evidence the informed 
consent of that person. 
 
 
 
 

Page 121



48 

18. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19. 

Material Change in Circumstances 
 
If a proposed material change in the circumstances of the operator’s business or 
method of operation since the grant of the last operator licence is considered (for 
example a proposed new Director or a change of premises) the operator shall notify 
the Authority in advance of such material change so that the proposed change can 
be considered by the Authority.   
 
Sub-Contracting and Outsourcing Bookings 
 
Private hire operators are legally permitted to sub-contract or outsource a booking 
to another licensed private hire operator.  In cases of outsourcing the operator must 
ensure that that the operator to which the booking has been outsourced will provide 
evidence of comparable protections to protect children and vulnerable adults. This 
evidence must be in the form of a written undertaking and shall be available for 
inspection at the request of an Officer of the Authority. This does not apply to 
bookings sub-contracted to another private hire operator. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 122



49 

 
5. Hackney Carriage Fares 
  
 Contents 
  
 1. General 
 2. Fare Tariff Formula 
 3. Table of Fares 
 4. Receipts 
 5. Overcharging 
 6. Additional tariffs 
   
1. General 
  
 Licensing authorities have the power to set hackney carriage fares for journeys 

within the prescribed area. 
  
 Hackney carriage fares, set by the Authority, are a maximum and can be negotiated 

downwards by the hirer. 
  
 The Authority may review the fare scales when requested by the trade.  When 

determining the level of fares consideration will be given to what is reasonable to 
expect the travelling public to pay as well as the need to give the drivers an 
incentive to provide a service at all times it is needed. 

  
 The Authority is not able to set fares for private hire vehicles. It is a matter for 

negotiation between the hirer and private hire operator.  
 
When a hackney carriage vehicle is used for private hire services the fare charged 
cannot exceed that which would be charged under the table of fares applicable to 
hackney carriages. The meter must be used for all journeys.  Failure to comply with 
that requirement is an offence. 

  
 When a journey ends outside of the Authority’s district a fare greater than that 

shown on the meter may be charged but only if an agreement has been made with 
the hirer in advance.  In the absence of such an agreement, only the metered fare 
can be charged. The meter must be used during all journeys.  Failure to comply 
with these requirements is an offence. 

  
2. Fare Tariff Formula 
  
 The Authority prescribes the maximum fares that can be charged by a hackney 

carriage. The table of fares is not attached to this Policy as it is reviewed annually 
or more frequently depending on emerging circumstances e.g. the economic 
climate. A current table of fares is available from the Licensing Section or on the 
Authority website at www.northtyneside.gov.uk.  

  
 A formula is used to set maximum fares and charges. A full explanation of the 

formula is available from the Licensing Office. 
  

Page 123

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


50 

 A Notice of any variation to the maximum fare will be advertised in the Newcastle 
Evening Chronicle or similar newspaper with a date set of 14 days from publication 
for making objections to the variation of fares.   

  
 If no objections are received the fare variation will have immediate effect at the end 

of the date stated for lodging objections. If any objections are received these will 
be referred to the Director of Public Health. 

  
3. Table of Fares 
  
 Tables of fares will be provided to each hackney carriage licensee, which must be 

displayed in the vehicle so that they are easily visible to all hirers.  Replacement 
fare tables are available from the Licensing Office for an additional fee. 

  
4. Receipts 
  
 A hackney carriage driver must, if requested by the passenger, provide a written 

receipt for the fare paid. 
  
5. Overcharging 
  
 All meters must be calibrated to the correct fare scale. It is an offence for the driver 

to demand more than the fare shown on the meter. Wheelchair users cannot be 
charged extra for transportation. 

  
6. Additional Tariffs 
  
 Any additional tariff(s) programmed to a taximeter (for example private hire 

operator rates) must only be at a rate lower than the official hackney carriage fares 
in force at that time.  
 
Where a vehicle is fitted with a taximeter that is found to have a tariff at a higher 
rate than the official hackney carriage rate the vehicle licence will be suspended. 

Page 124



51 

6. Fees 
  
 Contents 
  
 1. Fee Structure 
 2. Variations to fee structure 
 3. Payments 
 4. Payment Refunds 
  
1. Fee Structure 
  
 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 permits local 

authorities to set fees for hackney carriage and private hire vehicles, drivers and 
operator licences.  The legislation permits the local authority to recover the cost of 
providing the licensing scheme and such fees must be reasonable. 

  
 Section 53 (2) of the 1976 Act controls the levying of fees in respect of driver’s 

licences for both hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.  Section 70 of the 
1976 controls the levying of fees for hackney carriage proprietor’s licences, private 
hire vehicle licences and private hire operator’s licences. 

  
 The current scale of fees and charges are available from the Licensing Office and 

via the Authority website at www.northtyneside.gov.uk. 
  
2. Variations to fee structure 
  
 The fee structure is reviewed annually as part of the Authority’s budgetary process. 

Notice of the current scale of fees will be supplied to new applicants at the time of 
application. 

  
 A Notice of any variation to the maximum fees will be advertised in the Newcastle 

Evening Chronicle newspaper or similar newspaper with a date set 28 days from 
publication for making objections to the variation of fees.   

  
 If no objections are received the fee variation will have immediate effect at the end 

of the 28 day period specified for objections. If any objections are received the 
matter will be referred to Regulation and Review Committee for consideration. 

  
3. Payments 
  
 Payments can be made in the form of cheques by post made payable to the 

Authority or by debit or credit card.   
  
4. Surrender of Licence Refund Payments 
  
 Where a licence is surrendered the refund of the licence fee will be calculated on 

annual maintenance and annual management costs and will exclude the Basic 
cost/Application process.   
 

Page 125

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


52 

Fees paid in relation to hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences are 
subject to a partial refund on the unexpired portion of the licence, minus any test 
fee(s), should the proprietor choose to surrender their licence during the period of 
the licence. Refunds are payable for each full quarter left and an administration fee 
will be levied. 

  
 Fees paid in relation to hackney carriage and private hire driver licences are subject 

to a partial refund on the unexpired portion of the licence should the driver 
surrender their licence during the period of the licence.  Refunds are payable for 
each full year left and an administration fee will be levied. 
 
Fees paid in relation to private hire operator licences are subject to a partial refund 
on the unexpired portion of the licence should the operator surrender their licence 
during the period of the licence.  Refunds are payable for each full year left and an 
administration fee will be levied. 

  

Page 126



53 

7.   Convictions, Cautions, Conduct, Fixed Penalties, Community Resolutions & 
Medical Fitness 

  
 Contents: 
  
 1. Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Drivers, Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 

Proprietors, Private Hire Operators 
 2. Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 
   
  Section A – Guidance as to the Relevance of Convictions,  

Cautions, Fixed Penalties and Community Resolutions 
   
 3. General Policy 
 4. Formal Cautions, Fixed Penalties and Community Resolutions and Other  

Matters   
 5. Barred Lists 
 6. Outstanding charges or summonses/Non-conviction information 
 7. Offences 
 8 Offences of Dishonesty 
 9. Crimes Resulting in Death 
 10. Offences of Violence 
 11. Discrimination 
 12. Possession of a Weapon 
 13. Drugs Offences 
 14. 

    15. 
     16. 

Supply of Drugs/Cultivation of Drugs 
Possession of Drugs 
Sexual & Indecency Offences 

 17. Exploitation 
 18. Motoring Offences 
 19. Minor Traffic Offences 
 20. Major Traffic Offences 
 21. Disqualification 
 22. Vehicle Use Offences  
 23. Licensing offences 
  
    24. Section B – Conduct 
   
    25. Section C – Medical Fitness 
   
 26. Production of medical certificate 
 27. Group 2 Standard 
 28. Age 
 29. 

     30. 
Monitoring of medical condition 
Drug Testing 

 28. Refusal, Suspension and Revocation on grounds of medical fitness  
  
1. Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Drivers 
  
 When an application is made for a private hire or hackney carriage driver licence 

the Authority must be satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person before 

Page 127



54 

issuing the licence. By law the Authority shall not licence drivers unless it is satisfied 
of this (section 51 & section 59 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976). 

  
 The legislation is worded in such a way so as to put the onus on the applicant to 

produce evidence to satisfy the Authority that they are a fit and proper person, 
rather than for the Authority to prove that they are not. 

  
 The Authority may fail to be satisfied on the balance of probability that an applicant 

is a fit and proper person to hold a driver’s licence for any good reason.  If adequate 
evidence that a person is a fit and proper person is not adduced or if there are 
grounds to question or doubt the evidence provided, then that could amount to good 
reason to refuse a licence. 

  
 In addition, the Authority may: 
  
   suspend  

  revoke or 
  refuse to renew.  

  
 a hackney carriage or private hire driver licence: 
  
   if the licensee has been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, 

indecency or violence or 
   if the licensee has been convicted of a private hire/hackney carriage 

licensing offence  
  if, the licensee (in some cases), since the grant of the licence the licensee 

has been convicted of an immigration offence or required to pay an 
immigration penalty or 

   for any other reasonable cause. 
            
(section 61 LG(MP) Act 1976) 

  
 Any other reasonable cause will include convictions for other types of offence than 

those mentioned above, a lack of medical fitness or conduct. 
  
 If it appears to be in the interests of public safety to do so, then a revocation or 

suspension of a licence will have immediate effect and the driver will be given notice 
of that decision and an explanation for the decision taken.  The effect of this 
decision will mean that a driver cannot continue to drive licensed vehicles.  The 
revocation or suspension will continue to apply should an appeal be made against 
the decision.  In certain cases, a licence may be revoked or suspended without 
taking immediate effect. 

  
2. Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 
  
 Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are excluded from the provisions of the 

Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.  All convictions, including spent convictions 
must be declared on first application or any renewal application and will be 
considered as part of the application process. 

Page 128



55 

 
This does not apply to applicants for, or current holders of, a hackney carriage or 
private hire vehicle proprietor’s licence, or private hire operator’s licence.  

  
3. Section A – Guidance as to the Relevance of Convictions, Cautions, Fixed 

Penalties and Community Resolutions 
  
 General Policy 
  
 The overriding consideration of the licensing regime is the safety of the public.  The 

Authority has a duty to ensure that, as far as possible, those licensed to drive the 
public in hackney carriage or private hire vehicles are suitable persons to do so, 
that they are safe drivers with a good driving record, sober, courteous, mentally and 
physically fit, honest and not persons who would take advantage of their position to 
abuse or assault customers. 
 

 The aim of the Authority is not to punish the applicant/licensee following a conviction 
or other form of disposal but to ensure that public safety is not compromised and to 
protect the public from those who have demonstrated a propensity towards 
wrongdoing. 

  
 This guidance is intended to assist Licensing Officers and the Regulation and 

Review Committee (the Committee) in decision making and to ensure as far as 
possible that a consistent approach to decision making is maintained.  However, 
each case has to be decided upon its own merits and officers and the Committee 
will not stick rigidly to this guidance if there are clear and compelling reasons to 
depart from it.   

  
 
 

It may be appropriate to depart from the general policy in this guidance in some 
cases, if there are compelling reasons to do so, for example, in situations where an 
offence is isolated and there are mitigating circumstances. Similarly, multiple 
offences or a series of offences over a period of time are likely to give greater cause 
for concern and may demonstrate a pattern or trend of repeated offending or 
inappropriate behaviour which will be taken into account. Where there has been a 
conviction for a sexual offence or a crime which resulted in the death of another 
person an application for a licence will be refused. Where an applicant has served 
a custodial sentence, the Authority will consider the number of years since their 
release and the period for which they have been free of conviction when 
determining their fitness to be licensed.   
 
Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, 
or has any connection with abuse, exploitation of another individual irrespective of 
whether the victims are adults or children they will not be, or continue to be, 
licensed. “Exploitation” is taken to include slavery, child sexual abuse including 
grooming, psychological abuse, emotional abuse and financial abuse. 

  
This guidance is also intended to assist applicants, licensees and those 
representing them, by clearly setting out the expectations that the Authority has in 
relation to applicants/licenses who have received convictions.  This should also 

Page 129



56 

minimise the time spent and associated costs incurred by both the Authority and 
applicants/licensees in the licensing process. 

  
 This guidance will be taken into account and will be followed when dealing with a 

new application, a renewal application and when considering whether to issue a 
warning, suspend or revoke an existing licence. 

  
 In considering evidence of an applicant’s character and fitness to hold a drivers 

licence, where previous convictions or other information relating to criminal matters 
is disclosed, the Authority will consider the nature of the offence or allegation made, 
when it was committed, the date of conviction, the applicants age when the offence 
was committed and any other factors which might be relevant. However, where an 
applicant has been convicted of a criminal offence, the Authority cannot review the 
merits of the conviction [Nottingham City Council v Mohammed Farooq (1998)] but 
it may look at the circumstances surrounding the conviction. 

  
 This guidance is not an attempt to define who is a fit and proper person. 
  
 This guidance does not deal with every type of offence. However, offences 

described in this guidance and similar offences, though differently described or 
worded in any statutory provision, modification or re-enactment, will be taken into 
account in accordance with this guidance.  In all cases the safety of the public will 
be the primary concern of the Authority. 
 

 This guidance will also apply to applicants for, and those currently holding, a 
Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle Proprietors Licence and/or a Private Hire 
Operator Licence.  However, assessment of previous convictions will not include 
offences relating to driving. 
 

4. Formal Cautions, Fixed Penalties and Community Resolutions and Other 
Matters 

  
 For the avoidance of doubt, for the purposes of this guidance, cautions, fixed 

penalties and community resolutions shall be treated as though they were 
convictions and in this Policy/guidance any reference to “conviction” includes formal 
cautions, fixed penalties, community resolutions and matters that amount to 
criminal behaviour but which have not resulted in a conviction. 
 
Cautions 
 
The Authority requires applicants and licensees to reveal promptly any cautions 
they may have received because a caution can only be imposed following an 
admission of guilt which is equivalent to a guilty plea on prosecution. Before a 
caution can be administered the police or prosecuting authority must have 
considered that there was sufficient evidence to proceed with a prosecution had the 
offer of a caution been refused.  
 
 
 
 

Page 130



57 

Fixed Penalties  
 
Fixed penalties are not limited to motoring offences and may be given for a range 
of offences including shop theft, minor public order offences and offences such as 
littering, dog fouling etc. Fixed penalties must be declared to the Authority promptly 
in the same way as convictions are declared and may be taken into account by the 
Authority. This is because payment of a fixed penalty indicates acceptance of guilt.  
 
Community Resolutions 
 
A community resolution imposed for crime or anti-social behaviour must be 
promptly disclosed to the Authority. This is because a community resolution can 
only be imposed where the offender admits guilt.  
 
Other Matters 
 
It should be recognised that matters that have not resulted in a criminal conviction 
(whether as the result of an acquittal, a conviction being quashed, a decision not to 
prosecute or an investigation which is continuing where the applicant/licensee has 
been bailed or released under investigation) can and will be taken into consideration 
by the Authority. 
 
In addition, complaints that do not have police or other investigating authority 
involvement will be considered by the Authority when assessing the fitness of a 
person to hold a licence. 
 

5. Barred Lists 
  
 Part of the role of the DBS is to help prevent unsuitable people from working with 

vulnerable groups including children, barring them from doing so where necessary.  
As part of the enhanced DBS check the Authority is provided with information about 
whether an applicant is barred from working with children or adults and is included 
on either Barred List. In the interests of public safety, unless there are exceptional 
circumstances, an application for a licence will normally be refused where the 
applicant appears on either barred list. 

  
6. Outstanding charges or summonses/Non-conviction information 
  
 Where an applicant/licensee is the subject of an outstanding charge or summons 

their application will not usually be determined until the conclusion of proceedings 
or the charge(s) has/have been withdrawn. 

  
 If an applicant/licensee has been arrested or charged, but not convicted, for a 

serious offence which suggests they could be a danger to the public, consideration 
will be given to refusing the application or if currently licensed to further action being 
taken having regard to this Policy and guidance. 

  
 
 
 

Page 131



58 

7. Offences  
  
 This guidance does not deal with every type of offence.   

 
However, offences described in this guidance and similar offences, though 
differently entitled in any statutory provision, modification or re-enactment, will be 
taken into account in accordance with the guidelines.   

  
8. Offences of Dishonesty 
  
 Drivers of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles are expected to be persons of 

trust. It is comparatively easy for a dishonest driver to defraud the public by 
demanding more than the appropriate fare and in other ways. Members of the public 
entrust themselves to the care of drivers both for their own safety and for fair 
dealing. Passengers may include especially vulnerable people. For these reasons 
a serious view is taken of any convictions involving dishonesty. 

  
 Applicants/Licensees with a conviction for an offence involving dishonesty will not 

be granted a licence until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence.   

  
9. Crimes Resulting in Death 
  
 Applicants/Licensees convicted of a crime which resulted in the death of another 

person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person will 
not be licensed. 

 
10. 

 
Offences of Violence 
 

 Applicants/Licensees with a conviction, for an offence of violence, or connected 
with any offence of violence, will not be granted a licence until between 10 years 
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.  

  
11. 
 
 
 
 
 
12. 

Discrimination  
 
Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction involving or connected with 
discrimination in any form, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.   
 
Possession of a Weapon 
 
Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any 
other weapon related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years 
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.  

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



59 

13. Drugs Offences 
  
14. Supply of Drugs/Cultivation of Drugs 
  
 Applicants/Licensees with a conviction for an offence of supplying or possession of 

drugs with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, will 
be refused a licence until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of 
any sentence imposed.  
 

15. Possession of Drugs 
  
 Applicants/Licensees with a conviction for an offence of possession of drugs or 

related to the possession of drugs will be refused a licence until at least 5 years 
have elapsed since the completion of the sentence imposed. In these 
circumstances the applicant/licensee will have to undergo drugs testing at their own 
expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 

  
16.  Sexual and Indecency Offences 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17. 

As hackney carriage and private hire vehicle drivers often carry unaccompanied 
passengers. Therefore, applicants/licensees with a conviction for any offence 
involving or connected with illegal sexual activity or any form of indecency, a licence 
will not be granted.   
 
In addition, the Authority will not grant a licence to a person who is on the Sex 
offenders Register or on any barred list. 
 
Exploitation 
 
Applicants/licensees convicted for an offence involving, related to or has a 
connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual 
irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be 
licensed. This includes slavery, child sexual abuse, exploitation, grooming, 
psychological, emotional or financial abuse. 

 
18. 

 
Motoring Offences 
 
Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the 
responsibility of carrying members of the public. Any motoring conviction 
demonstrates a lack of professionalism and will be considered in that light. The 
single occurrence of a minor traffic offence will not generally prohibit the grant of a 
licence or action being taken against a licensee. However, any subsequent 
motoring convictions may be evidence of the fact that the applicant/licensee does 
not take their responsibilities as a professional driver seriously and is therefore not, 
or no longer remains, a fit a proper person to hold a licence. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



60 

19. Minor Traffic Offences 
  
 Where an applicant/licensee has between 3-5 penalty points either at the time of 

application or during the licence period this will be considered as a “Minor Traffic 
offence”.  Convictions for minor traffic offences should not prevent a person from 
obtaining a licence.  In the majority of cases the applicant/licensee will receive a 
warning or advice regarding future conduct. 
 
Bearing in mind the number of miles they drive; it is expected that licensed drivers 
are more likely than the average motorist to get convictions for minor traffic 
offences.  Where an applicant/licensee has accrued 6 or more penalty points for 
two or more minor traffic offences in the majority of cases a formal written warning 
will be issued. 

  
20. Major Traffic Offences 

 
 Road Traffic Offences which carry mandatory disqualification from driving will 

always be considered as “Major Traffic offences”. Where an applicant / licensee 
has 6 or more penalty points for a single offence or where the court has disqualified 
the driver for a single offence this will be considered as a Major Traffic offence.  In 
the majority of cases an applicant will be refused until a period of 2 years has lapsed 
since the date of the last conviction or the restoration of the DVLA licence.  Existing 
drivers will generally be referred to the Regulation and Review Committee. 
 

 Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the 
influence of drugs, a licence will not be granted until between 7 years have elapsed 
since the completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. Following a conviction 
for driving under the influence of drugs, an applicant will have to undergo drugs 
testing at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 
 
Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction for using a hand-held mobile 
telephone or other hand-held interactive communication device whilst driving, a 
licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the conviction 
or completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later. 
 

21. Disqualification 
  
 In totting-up cases where disqualification is considered by the Court, even if the 

court does not disqualify a driver (e.g. because of exceptional circumstances), the 
Authority is likely to refuse a hackney carriage or private hire drivers licence and an 
applicant will normally be expected to show a period of 12 - 18 months free from 
conviction from the date the court made its finding of exceptional circumstances 
justifying the non-qualification.  Existing drivers will generally be referred to the 
Regulation and Review Committee. This is because repeat motoring convictions 
would suggest that the driver does not take his/her professional responsibilities as 
a licensed driver seriously and may as a result no longer be considered a fit and 
proper person to hold a licence.  
 

Page 134



61 

 In totting-up cases where disqualification is imposed by the court, the Authority is 
likely to refuse a hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licence until a period of  
12 – 18 months has lapsed since the restoration of the DVLA licence.  Existing 
drivers will be referred to the Regulation and Review Committee. 
 

22. Vehicle Use Offences 
 
Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction for any offence which involved the 
use of a vehicle (including both hackney carriage and private hire vehicles) a 
licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion 
of any sentence imposed. 

  
23. Licensing Offences 
  
 One of the main purposes of the licensing regime set out in the Town Police 

Clauses Acts and Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 (the Acts) and hackney carriage Byelaws is to ensure the protection of the 
public. The main private hire and hackney carriage offences are available from the 
Licensing Office or on the Authority’s website www.northtyneside.gov.uk.  

  
 A serious view is taken of convictions for offences under the Acts and Byelaws 

when deciding whether an applicant/licensee is considered to be, or remain, a fit 
and proper person to hold a licence. 

  
 Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction for an offence concerned with or 

connected to hackney carriage or private hire activity (excluding vehicle use), a 
licence will not be granted until at least 3 years have elapsed since the completion 
of any sentence imposed.  

  
 Where an applicant/licensee has a conviction for any offence which involves the 

use of a vehicle (including hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a licence 
will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed.  

  
24. Section B – Conduct 
  
 Criminal convictions are not the only criteria used when considering whether an 

individual is a fit and proper person to be licensed. Other factors, including the 
applicant or licensee’s demeanour, appearance and behaviour may be taken into 
account in determining fitness and propriety as well as any complaints received 
about a current licensee. 

  
 The Authority may require an applicant to submit information it reasonably 

considers necessary to enable it to determine whether a licence should be granted 
or whether conditions should be attached to a licence (section 57 LG(MP) Act 
1976). 

  
 
 

Page 135

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


62 

 The courts have found that the main purpose of the licensing regime is to prevent 
licences being given to, or used by, those who are not suitable to hold a licence, 
taking into account their driving record, driving experience, sobriety, mental and 
physical fitness, honesty and ensuring that they would not take advantage of their 
employment to abuse or assault passengers (Leeds City Council v Hussain [2002]). 

  
 When determining the fitness and propriety of drivers Officers and Members will 

consider whether they would allow their son or daughter, spouse or partner, mother 
or father, grandson or granddaughter or any other person for whom they care, to 
get into a vehicle with the applicant/licensee alone. 

  
 If the answer to this question is an unqualified “yes”, then the test is probably 

satisfied.  If the Officers or members have doubts then further consideration will be 
given as to whether the individual is a fit and proper person.  

  
 Matters that have not resulted in a criminal conviction as explained in Section A of 

this guidance can and will be taken into account by the Authority when determining 
the fitness of a person to hold, or to continue to hold, a licence.  

  
25. Section C – Medical Fitness 
  
26. Production of medical certificate 
  
 Under section 57 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 the 

Authority may require an applicant for a hackney carriage or private hire drivers 
licence to produce a certificate signed by a registered medical practitioner to the 
effect that s/he is physically fit to be a driver of such a vehicle.  The Authority 
requires a medical certificate upon an initial application for a licence.   

  
 In addition or in place of such a certificate the Authority may require an applicant to 

submit to examination by a registered medical practitioner selected by the Authority 
as to his/her fitness to be a driver of a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle.   

  
 The medical practitioner must confirm that: 
  
 1. they have examined the applicant 
 2. the applicant is registered with the practice and/or 
 3. they have had full access to the applicant’s medical records 
 4. the medical examination was carried out to DVLA Group 2 standard 
 5. s/he considers the applicant to be fit to act as the driver of a hackney carriage 

or private hire vehicle. 
  
 If the medical practitioner has not had access to the applicant’s full medical records 

the Authority may require more frequent medical testing and/or select a practitioner 
to undertake a full medical examination of the applicant.  All expenses are payable 
by the applicant. 

  
 
 
 

Page 136



63 

27. Group 2 Standard 
  
 The Authority has adopted DVLA Group 2 driver standard for medical fitness of 

hackney carriage and private hire drivers.  This reflects the higher risk caused by 
the length of time the driver may spend at the wheel in the course of his/her 
occupation and the responsibility they have for the safety of their passengers and 
the public. 

  
28. Age 
  
 The Authority’s policy is that a medical certificate is required upon an initial 

application for a licence.  It remains valid until a driver reaches the age of 45 years 
when a further medical certificate is required.  A medical certificate is then required 
every 5 years until the age of 65 after which a certificate is required on a yearly 
basis.  

  
29. Monitoring of medical condition 
  
 In addition, where a driver suffers from a medical condition that requires monitoring 

but would not prevent him/her from holding a licence the Authority may, as an 
additional condition of their licence, require written confirmation from his/her GP or 
consultant on each renewal that s/he remains fit to carry out the duties of a driver.  
Any condition attached to a driver’s licence will be regularly reviewed. 
 
It is a requirement that a driver notifies the Authority immediately of any medical 
condition which could affect their ability to carry out the duties of a licensed driver. 
 

30. Drug Testing 
 

 The Authority has a strict policy in respect of illicit substance misuse. If a driver is 
suspected to have taken or to have been under the influence of any illicit substance, 
the Authority will require the driver to undertake testing through an approved service 
provider or medical practitioner (this can be hair strand, blood or urine).  
 
The Authority does not carry out drug testing of drivers. Testing must be arranged 
by the individual driver and the cost of testing must be borne entirely by the driver.  
 
If testing reveals a positive result for any substance the driver's licence will be 
suspended by the Authority.  
 
Failure to comply with a request to provide a drug test will also result in suspension 
of the driver’s licence.  
 

  
31. Refusal, Suspension and Revocation on grounds of medical fitness 
  
 If the Authority is not satisfied on the balance of probabilities as to the medical 

fitness of an applicant a hackney carriage or private hire driver’s licence will not be 
granted (section 51 & section 59 LG (MP) Act 1976). 

  

Page 137



64 

 If the Authority is not satisfied as to the medical fitness of a hackney carriage or 
private hire driver there will be reasonable cause to suspend, revoke or refuse to 
renew the licence under section 61 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976.   

  
 Section 61(2B) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

allows the Authority to revoke or suspend an existing driver’s licence with 
immediate effect when that driver no longer meets the Group 2 medical standard 
and in the opinion of the Authority’s it is in the interests of public safety to take such 
a course of action.  The Authority will only lift a suspension of a licence on receipt 
of written confirmation from a GP or consultant that the driver meets the Group 2 
medical standard. 

  

Page 138



65 

8. Enforcement and Discipline  
  
 Contents 
  
 1.   Enforcement/Disciplinary Options  
 2.   Informal Action  
 3.   Vehicle Defect Rectification Notice  
 4.   Suspension of Vehicle Licence  
 5.   Section 68 Suspension of Vehicle Licences  
 6.   Suspend, revoke or refuse to renew  
 7.   Section 60 Vehicle Licences  
 8.   Section 61 Driver Licences  
 9.   Section 62 Operator Licences  
 10. Stay of action pending outcome of Court Appeal  
 11. Requests for Insurance  
 12. Cautions  
 13. Prosecution  
   
 Please note:  This chapter provides an overview of enforcement and disciplinary 

action.  It is not intended to be an exhaustive list.  It does not constitute legal 
advice. 

 

   
1. Enforcement & Discipline - The Authority’s Officers and Regulation & Review 

Committee 
 

   
 Whilst the operation of a successful hackney carriage and private hire vehicle 

service is important to the economic well-being of the Borough, it is equally 
important that the service provided by the trade is properly regulated in order to 
instill confidence in the travelling public who wish to use the service. 

 

   
 Enforcement of hackney carriage and private hire matters is undertaken by the 

Authority.  The police may also take action in certain circumstances. 
 

   
 Officers of the Authority (usually Licensing Officers) can be authorised by the 

Authority to undertake enforcement work.  The Director of Public Health may 
authorise such Officers.  In undertaking such work the Officers will abide by the 
Authority’s Enforcement Policy. Enforcement work includes investigating 
complaints made about drivers, vehicles and operators in addition to matters 
observed by Officers e.g. vehicle defects. The Authority can consider 
circumstances of concern even though a conviction has not been obtained or the 
conduct does not amount to a criminal offence. 

 

   
 The Director of Public Health may take appropriate disciplinary action against 

licensees in accordance with this policy.  The Authority’s Regulation & Review 
Committee may determine the appropriate disciplinary action (if any) to take against 
licensees referred to it by the Director of Environment, Housing & Leisure. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 139



66 

2. Enforcement/Disciplinary Options  
   
 There are various options to take depending upon the circumstances including:  
   
   take no action  
   take informal action  
   use statutory and other notices/requests  
   suspend a licence (with or without immediate effect)  
   revoke a licence (with or without immediate effect)  
   refuse to renew a licence  
   use formal cautions  
   prosecute  
   obtain an injunction.  
   
 The Director of Public Health may refuse to grant or renew licences and may revoke 

or suspend licences, with or without immediate effect.  
 

   
3. Informal Action  
   
 Informal action to secure compliance with the legislation and policy includes 

offering advice, verbal and written warnings and requests for action. 
 

   
 Informal action may be appropriate where:  
   
   the act or omission is not serious enough to warrant more formal action  
   from the individual licensee’s history it can be reasonably expected that 

informal action will achieve compliance 
 

   the consequences of non-compliance will not pose a significant risk to the 
safety of the public. 

 

   
 Even where the above criteria are not met, there may be circumstances in which 

informal action will be more effective than a formal approach. 
 

   
 Repeated incidents of licence infringements, complaints etc. are likely to lead to 

action being taken against the licensee by the Director of Public Health or a referral 
to the Regulation & Review Committee. 

 

   
4. Vehicle Defect Rectification Scheme (VDRS) 
  
 In situations where non-compliance with the conditions of vehicle licence or 

contravention of the legislation or byelaws is noted Officers may issue a vehicle 
defect rectification notice to the proprietor.  Such notices are appropriate where the 
immediate suspension of the vehicle licence is not required.  The notice will require 
the proprietor to remedy the defect and present the vehicle for inspection by 
Officers within 5 working days at the Licensing Office or a mutually agreed location.  
If a proprietor is aggrieved at the issue of a VDRS notice, then they may request a 
review by Officers. 
 

Page 140



67 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 

If the defect has been remedied, then usually no further action will be taken.  If the 
defect is not remedied or the vehicle is not presented for inspection the vehicle 
licence may be suspended (section 60 (LG(MP) Act 1976) and/or the proprietor 
may be prosecuted (section 50 & section 73 LG(MP) Act 1976).  A proprietor may 
appeal against a section 60 vehicle suspension during which time the vehicle can 
continue to be used. 
 
Section 68 Notices – Suspension of Vehicle Licence 
 
An Officer authorised by the Authority (or Police Officer) has the power at all 
reasonable times to inspect and test any hackney carriage or private hire vehicle 
(or taximeter affixed to such a vehicle) licensed by the Authority to ascertain its 
fitness.  If s/he is not satisfied as to the fitness of the vehicle or the accuracy of the 
taximeter s/he may by a written notice require the proprietor to make the vehicle or 
taximeter available for further inspection and testing at a reasonable time and place 
specified in the notice.  The Officer may suspend the vehicle licence until such time 
as they are satisfied as to fitness/accuracy using section 68 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  Suspension under section 68 
takes immediate effect.  There is no right of appeal against such a suspension.  
Therefore, this action will only be taken when an Officer has reasonable grounds to 
suspect that the condition of the vehicle/taximeter poses an immediate risk to 
passengers and/or other road users. 
 
If the Officer is not satisfied of the fitness/accuracy of the vehicle/meter within 2 
months the vehicle licence will be deemed revoked. Such matters do not need to 
be referred to Regulation and Review Committee by the Director of Public Health.  
The proprietor will be given written notice of the revocation within 14 days.  The 
proprietor may appeal against the revocation of the licence to the Magistrates’ Court 
or alternatively, or in addition to, the proprietor may first wish to appeal to the 
Authority’s Regulation and Review Committee. Any appeal must be lodged within 
21 days of notification of the decision.  The vehicle cannot be used pending any 
appeal. 
 

6. Suspend, Revoke or Refuse to Renew a Licence 
  
7. Vehicle Licences – Section 60 LG(MP) Act 1976 
  
  The Authority may suspend or revoke or refuse to renew a vehicle licence (private 

hire or hackney carriage) on any of the following grounds: 
 a. that the vehicle is unfit for use 

b. the operator or driver has committed any offence under or has not complied 
with the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 or Part II of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 or  

 c. any other reasonable cause. 
  
  Where the Authority suspends, revokes or refuses to renew a vehicle licence under 

section 60 LG(MP) Act 1976 it shall give the proprietor written notice of the grounds 
for the decision within fourteen days.  The proprietor may appeal to a Magistrates’ 
Court. Alternatively, or in addition, where the decision was made by the Director of 
Public Health the proprietor may first wish to appeal to the Authority’s Regulation 

Page 141



68 

and Review Committee. Any appeal must be lodged within 21 days of notification 
of the decision. 

Page 142



69 

 
8. 

 
Driver Licences - Section 61 LG(MP) Act 1976 
 
The Authority may suspend or revoke or refuse to renew a driver licence (hackney 
carriage, private hire or dual hackney carriage/private hire) on any of the following 
grounds: 
 

a. that since the grant of the licence the licensee has been convicted of an 
offence involving dishonesty, indecency or violence or 

b. that since the grant of the licence the licensee has been convicted of an 
offence under or has failed to comply with the provisions of the Town Police 
Clauses Act 1847 or Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976  

c. in some cases, if since the grant of the licence the licensee has been 
convicted of an immigration offence or required to pay an immigration 
penalty or 

d. any other reasonable cause. 
  
  Where the Authority suspends, revokes or refuses to renew a driver licence under 

section 61 LG(MP) Act 1976 it shall give the driver written notice of the grounds for 
the decision within 14 days. The driver must on demand return to the Authority the 
driver’s badges. The driver may appeal to a Magistrates’ Court. Alternatively, or in 
addition, where the decision was made by the Director of Public Health, the driver 
may first wish to appeal to the Authority’s Regulation and Review Committee. Any 
appeal must be lodged within 21 days of notification of the decision. 

  
9. Operator Licences - Section 62 LG(MP) Act 1976 
  
 The Authority may suspend or revoke or refuse to renew an operator’s licence on 

any of the following grounds: 
  
 a. any offence under or non-compliance with Part II of the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
b. any conduct on the part of the operator which appears to render him/her 

unfit to hold an operator’s licence 
c. any material change since the licence was granted in any of the 

circumstances of the operator on the basis of which the licence was granted 
d. in some cases, if since the grant of the licence the licensee has been 

convicted of an immigration offence or required to pay an immigration 
penalty or 

e. any other reasonable cause. 
  
 Where the Authority suspends, revokes or refuses to renew an operator licence 

under section 62 LG (MP) Act 1976 it shall give the operator written notice of the 
grounds for the decision within 14 days.  The operator may appeal to a Magistrates’ 
Court.  Alternatively, or in addition, where the decision was made by the Director of 
Public Health the operator may first wish to appeal to the Authority’s Regulation 
and Review Committee.  Any appeal must be lodged within 21 days of notification 
of the decision. 
 

Page 143



70 

10. Stay of Action Pending Outcome of Court Appeal 
  
 Section 77(2) LG(MP) Act 1976 stays any action against a licence pending the 

outcome of an appeal to the Court. This means that if a driver, operator or proprietor 
appeals against a decision to refuse to renew, suspend or revoke a licence, the 
licence is deemed to remain in force until the appeal has been disposed of or 
withdrawn. 

  
 The licensee has 21 days from notification of the decision to lodge an appeal with 

Regulation & Review Committee and/or a Magistrates Court.  The licensee can 
continue to use the licence during that period and once an appeal is lodged, can 
continue to use it until the appeal has been dealt with.  If the Magistrates’ Court 
dismisses the appeal the licensee has 21 days within which to lodge an appeal in 
the Crown Court and again, can continue to use the licence until the appeal is 
determined.  If no appeal is lodged the driver must cease driving at the end of this 
period.   

  
 The Authority may decide that a suspension or revocation should take immediate 

effect where it considers it is in the interests of public safety to do so. In such cases 
the notice is issued to the driver and will include a statement that it is an immediate 
suspension/revocation and an explanation why. The suspension or revocation 
takes effect when the notice is received by the driver.   

  
 None of the above provisions apply to the suspension of a vehicle licence under 

section 68 LG(MP) Act 1976. Where the suspension or revocation of a driver’s 
licence under section 61 LG(MP) Act 1976 applies with immediate effect the driver 
cannot drive a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle pending any appeal made 
to the Regulation and Review Committee or to the Magistrates’ Court. 
 
Where a licensee’s court appeal is unsuccessful the court may order them to pay 
the Authority’s costs. 

  
11. Requests for Insurance 
  
  In addition to vehicle spot checks, the Authority’s Officers have a regular 

programme whereby requests to produce insurance documents are sent to a 
random selection of proprietors for the production of vehicle insurance.  If insurance 
is not produced the vehicle licence may be suspended and the proprietor may be 
prosecuted under section 50(5) LG(MP) Act 1976 for failing to comply with the 
request. 

  
 In addition, anyone using an uninsured vehicle may be prosecuted under 

section143 Road Traffic Act 1988 (or any successor legislation). 
  
12. Cautions 
  
  A caution may be used as an alternative to a prosecution in appropriate 

circumstances, where the criteria for prosecution are satisfied but an offence is of 
a less serious nature.  The Authority will have regard to all relevant guidance 

Page 144



71 

including the Authority’s Enforcement Policy.  It is necessary for the offence to be 
admitted prior to administering a caution. 

  
  A caution may be used to: 
  
   deal quickly and simply with less serious offences 

  divert less serious offences away from the Courts 
  reduce the chances of repeat offences. 

  
13. Prosecution 
  
 In certain cases the Authority will prosecute.  In all cases the evidential and public 

interest test contained within the Code for Crown Prosecutors must be satisfied and 
regard will be given to the Authority’s Enforcement Policy. 

  
 In addition to prosecution, disciplinary action (e.g. warning, suspension, revocation, 

refusal to renew) may be taken against the licence holder. 
  
 The current standard fines for summary offences in the Magistrates’ Court are as 

follows: 
  
 Level 1 - £200 
 Level 2 - £500 
 Level 3 - £1,000 
 Level 4 - £2,500 
 Level 5 - Unlimited 
  
  

Page 145



72 

9.   Regulation & Review Committee 
  
 Contents 
  
 1.   Introduction 
 2.   Decision making 
 3.   Appeals 
 4.   Disciplinary or Referred Matters 
 5.   Procedure Note 
 6.   Before the Hearing 
 7.   Absence of Licensee/Applicant 
 8.   At the Hearing 
 9.   Appeal to the Court 
 10. Who is who? 
  
1. Introduction 
  
 The Authority’s Regulation and Review Committee (“the Committee”) exercises the 

Authority’s functions in relation to the individual licensing of hackney carriage 
vehicles, hackney carriage drivers, private hire vehicles, private hire operators and 
private hire drivers under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847, the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and other relevant legislation following 
referral to it by the Director of Public Health.  All Members who have been 
appointed to this Committee receive on-going training from Authority Officers. 

  
 The Committee meets on a regular basis to discuss and determine specific 

taxi/private hire licensing issues. The schedule of meetings is available at 
www.northtyneside.gov.uk. 

  
 When considering any matter, the Regulation & Review Committee will have regard 

to this Policy and the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards. 
  
 A Committee will meet to determine the following: 
  
 1. Appeals against decisions of the Director of Public Health in relation to the 

grant, refusal, revocation and suspension of all licences.   
 2. Disciplinary action to take (if any) against licensees referred to it by the 

Director of Public Health; and 
 3. Referred matters - any licensing application or other matter concerning 

individual licensees referred to it by the Director of Public Health. 
  
2. Decision making 
  
 Decision making in relation to licensing is an onerous responsibility and must be 

exercised in a way that protects the public. The Authority is aware that in respect 
of an application for an initial grant of a licence, it is for the applicant to satisfy the 
Authority on the balance of probabilities that he/she is a fit and proper person to be 
granted a licence and thus is someone who can be trusted to convey passengers 
safely.  
  

Page 146

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


73 

Once a person is licensed, they shall be presumed to remain a fit and proper person 
to be licensed, unless the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the licensee is no 
longer a fit and proper person to hold a licence as a result of a conviction, fixed 
penalty caution, community resolution, complaint or other relevant non-conviction 
information. 

  
 When the Committee considers such matters concerning an applicant/licensee it is 

operating in an administrative capacity and the rules of natural justice must be 
observed, and the applicant/licensee has the right to a fair hearing. The 
licensee/applicant must be treated fairly and be seen to be treated fairly.  The 
Committee will be impartial, unbiased and will act in good faith. 

  
 The Committee is required to make judgements based on the evidence submitted 

to it. It is not the Members’ role to sit as advocates for either the Director of Public 
Health, the Police or the licensee/applicant but to weigh the merits of the case as 
presented to it, ensuring that the proper considerations are taken into account and 
irrelevant factors are disregarded, thereby reaching a balanced decision. The 
Committee must also state the reasons for its decisions. 

  
 Only Committee Members who have heard the entire application, appeal or 

referred matter are able to take part in the decision making process. 
  
 Committee Members should not participate in the hearing of a matter if there could 

be the appearance of bias or apparent bias.  This can arise where a Member’s 
outside connections make it appear that there is a real danger of actual bias or 
apparent bias or a member has an interest under the Authority’s Code of Conduct 
that they must declare. Where a Member has a registerable or non-registerable 
interest in relation to a matter which is such that a member of the public knowing 
the relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
a Member’s judgement of the public interest and either the matter will affect the 
financial position of a Member or a member of their family or employer or the matter 
concerns a request for a permission, licence, consent or registration of themselves 
or a family member or employer, the Member must withdraw from the meeting 
room.  
 
The duty of a Member to consider whether or not to participate in a meeting is set 
out in Part 4 – Non-Participation in Authority Business - of the Code of Conduct for 
Members which forms part of the Authority’s Constitution. 

  
3. Appeals 
  
 When considering an appeal against a decision of the Director of Public Health in 

relation to the grant, refusal, revocation or suspension of a licence the Committee 
may: 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 147



74 

 1. Allow the appeal in whole or in part 
  

For example, if an appeal concerns the refusal of a licence, the Sub-
Committee may determine that the licence should be granted but may 
stipulate additional conditions that must be attached to the licence and/or 
issue a strong warning as to the licensee’s future conduct. 

 
 2. Dismiss the appeal. 

 
4. Disciplinary or Referred Matters 
  
 When considering a disciplinary or a referred matter e.g. an application for a 

licence, the Committee will have regard to the appropriate section of the Policy. 
  
 Appropriate disciplinary action can take a number of forms, for example: - 
  
 1. Revocation of a licence 
 2. Refusal to renew a licence 
 3. Suspension of a licence 
 4. A warning letter expressing the Authority’s dissatisfaction with the 

licensee’s behaviour, whilst also advising that future conduct incompatible 
with that expected of a licensee could lead to a suspension, refusal to renew 
or revocation of their licence. 

  
 Additional conditions if considered reasonably necessary may be attached to a 

licence when it is renewed (NB. conditions cannot be attached to a hackney 
carriage driver’s licence). 

  
 The action to be taken in any particular case will depend on the seriousness of the 

conduct/conviction/medical condition concerned.   
  
5. Regulation & Review Committee – Appeals/Disciplinary/Referred Matters -  

Procedure Note 
  
 The Regulation and Review Committee hearing aims to ensure that the 

Environment, Housing and Leisure Service and the licensee/applicant have the 
fullest opportunity to present all of the information they wish to the Committee.  The 
Committee is required to give full and fair consideration to the cases presented by 
the Officers and the licensee/applicant and must reach a decision based on all of 
the relevant information presented to it at the hearing.  To achieve this, the following 
procedure is adopted. 

  
6. Before the Hearing 
  
 Decisions of the Director of Public Health in relation to the grant, refusal, revocation 

or suspension of licences are provided in writing and will enclose an appeal form 
as appropriate.  Appeal forms can also be obtained by contacting the Licensing 
Office or Democratic Services of the Authority.  An appeal must be lodged within 
21 days of notification of the decision. Upon receiving notification of an appeal to 
Committee, the Director of Public Health will submit a report to the Committee. 

Page 148



75 

  
 If a licensee/applicant wishes to appeal directly to a Court they should approach 

the Court and/or seek independent legal advice in relation to the correct forms and 
procedures.  Court documentation should be served upon the Director of Law and 
Governance, The Quadrant, Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North 
Tyneside, NE27 0BY. 

  
 Where the Director of Public Health refers a matter to the Regulation & Review 

Committee for determination he/she shall inform the licensee/applicant of this and 
will submit a report to the Committee.   

  
 A copy of the report to Committee and the procedure to be followed at the hearing 

is supplied to the licensee/applicant by Democratic Services.  Copies of this Policy 
are available on the internet or upon request from the Licensing Office.  
 
Licensees/applicants are strongly advised to read the report and this Policy 
when preparing for the Committee hearing.   

  
 The licensee/applicant shall be given notice in writing at least five working days in 

advance of the time and place of the hearing and of their right to be accompanied 
by a friend, family member or other person, including a solicitor, and shall be 
allowed to call witnesses.   

  
 The licensee/applicant shall also be given the opportunity to submit a written 

statement of his/her case or other supporting documents prior to the hearing. 
Documentation should be provided to Democratic Services of the Authority in 
advance of the hearing, if it is not, or if the Committee has not had sufficient time 
to consider the documentation the Committee may refuse to accept the 
documentation or may defer the matter to be determined to a later date to afford 
the parties an opportunity to consider the documentation.  

  
7. Absence of the Licensee/Applicant 
  
 The meeting may proceed in the absence of the Licensee/Applicant if they have 

informed the Licensing Authority or the Democratic Services Officer that they do 
not wish to attend or be represented at the hearing.  If the Licensee/Applicant would 
like the meeting to be adjourned to enable them to attend then they must make this 
clear and provide reasons for the request. 

  
 If a licensee/applicant fails to attend or be represented at a meeting without 

notifying the Authority or Democratic Services Officer, the Committee may adjourn 
the hearing to a specific date if it considers it to be appropriate to do so. 
Alternatively, it may proceed with the meeting in their absence.  In the interests of 
efficiency, meetings will generally proceed notwithstanding the absence of the 
Applicant if the Committee is satisfied that the applicant/licensee is aware of the 
hearing. 

  
 Where the Committee decides to proceed in the absence of the licensee/applicant 

the Committee will consider any information the licensee/applicant has supplied 
along with the report from the Director of Public Health. 

Page 149



76 

  
 If, a decision is made to adjourn a hearing the licensee/applicant will be advised of 

the new date, time and venue. 
  
8. At the Hearing 
  
 Members of the Committee may ask questions at all stages. 
  
 The Director of Public Health or his representative shall present a report in the 

presence of the licensee/applicant and his/her representative and may call 
witnesses.  
  

 The licensee/applicant and/or his/her representative shall have the opportunity to 
ask questions about the information provided by the Director of Public Health or his 
representative and any witnesses called. 

  
 The licensee/applicant and/or his/her representative shall then put his/her case and 

shall call such witnesses as he/she wishes. 
  
 The Regulation and Review Committee and the Director of Public Health or his 

representative shall have the opportunity to ask questions of the licensee/applicant 
and/or his/her representative and any witnesses called by or on behalf of the 
licensee/applicant. 

  
 The Director of Public Health or his/her representative and the licensee/applicant 

and his/her representative shall have the opportunity to sum up their case if they 
so wish.  If all parties opt to sum up, the licensee/applicant or his/her representative 
may speak last. 

  
 The licensee/applicant and his/her representative and witnesses and the Director 

of Public Health or his representative and witnesses shall withdraw from the 
meeting.  Officers from Law and Governance will remain in the meeting to provide 
procedural and legal advice. 

  
 The Regulation and Review Committee shall deliberate in private, only recalling 

the licensee/applicant or his/her representative and the Director of Public Health or 
his representative to clear points of uncertainty.  If this occurs all parties will be 
invited back into the hearing together. If the Committee has no additional queries 
the licensee/applicant and the Director of Public Health will be notified by a 
Democratic Services Officer and they will not be required to return to the meeting. 

  
 The licensee/applicant will be notified of the Regulation and Review Committee’s 

decision and the reasons for it in writing, usually within five working days. Where a 
licence has been suspended, revoked or a renewal has been refused written notice 
must be given within 14 days. 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 150



77 

9. Appeal to the Court 
  
 There is a statutory right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court in relation to: 
  
   a refusal to grant a private hire or hackney carriage driver licence; 
   any conditions attached to a private hire driver licence; 
   a decision to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a private hire or hackney 

carriage driver licence; 
   a refusal to grant a private hire vehicle licence or against any conditions 

specified in the licence; 
   a refusal to grant an operator’s licence or any conditions attached to the 

grant of an operator’s licence; 
   a decision to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew an operator’s licence. 
   a decision to refuse to renew a hackney carriage proprietor’s licence 
   any conditions attached to a hackney carriage proprietor’s licence 
  

A further appeal can be made against the decision of a Magistrates’ Court to the 
Crown Court.  
 

 An appeal against a refusal to grant a hackney carriage vehicle/proprietors licence 
lies straight to the Crown Court. 

  
 Any appeal must be lodged with the appropriate court within 21 days from receipt 

of the written decision notice and notice of right to appeal.  A court fee may be 
payable.  Costs may be awarded by the court against an unsuccessful applicant or 
a licensee or may in some circumstances be awarded against the Authority.  Any 
person considering an appeal may wish to take independent legal advice with 
regard to the merits of an appeal. 

  
 Usually, any action against the licence is stayed pending the outcome of a Court 

appeal (section 77(2) LG(MP) Act 1976).  However, in cases where the public 
interest requires that a suspension or revocation of a driver licence should take 
immediate effect a decision can be made that section 77(2) shall not apply.  In such 
cases the driver must be notified in writing, with an explanation as to why the action 
has been taken. 
 

 Where a decision made by the Licensing Authority is appealed, the Authority will 
normally defend the decision and seek its costs of doing so in full from the 
appellant if the appeal is dismissed. 
 

 Decision making may also be challenged by judicial review in the High Court. It is 
recommended that independent legal advice should be sought if such a challenge 
is being considered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 151



78 

10. WHO IS WHO? 
  
 The Licensee or Applicant The Licensee or Applicant (accompanied by a 

friend or representative if so wished) is invited 
to attend and make representations to the 
Committee. 

   
 Officers of Public Health  Officers representing the Director of Public 

Health will submit information to the 
Committee to enable it to consider whether 
and what action should be taken. 

   
  On occasions a representative from the Police 

Authority, other body or a witness may attend 
to provide relevant information. 
 

 The Regulation and Review 
Committee  

The Regulation and Review Committee is the 
body which has the delegated authority from 
the Authority to decide upon appeals, 
disciplinary and other matters referred to it by 
the Director of Public Health. 

   
 Officers of Law and Governance  Officers representing Law and Governance 

advise the Committee on the relevant law and 
procedures.  They do not take part in the 
decision making process. 

   

Page 152



79 

10. Hackney Carriage Stands 
  
 Contents 
  
 1. Appointed Stands 
 2. Creation of a Stand/Rank 
 3. Waiting on Stands 
 4. Byelaws 
  
1. Appointed Stands 
  
 The purpose of hackney carriage stands (also known as hackney carriage ranks) 

is to provide the public with a set location where they can hire a licensed hackney 
carriage.  The stand is the only situation where a hackney carriage may ply for hire 
in a stationary position and should be situated in locations where the public is most 
likely to need hackney carriages, for example adjacent to transport facilities, retail 
areas and places of employment, entertainment and leisure facilities. Stands 
should be sited so that passengers can board or alight from the vehicle safely.   

  
 The Authority is required to continually review the provision of hackney carriage 

stands in the Borough.  In this respect Officers work closely with the North 
Tyneside Hackney Carriage Trade and oversee an on-going programme of 
improving facilities at existing stands with, for example, the installation of 
illuminated taxi-cubes, guard rails and shelters at stands, all funded from an 
available Local Authority budget.   

  
 There are currently 24 official hackney carriage stands in the Borough providing 

spaces for a total of 84 vehicles. A list of the stands and their designated names 
and times of operation are available on the Authority website at 
www.northtyneside.gov.uk.   

  
 Transport facilities in the Borough are well served with a number of the busiest 

metro stations having a hackney carriage stand.   
  
2. Creation of a Stand/Rank 
  
 A new hackney carriage stand can be appointed under section 63 Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 or a taxi rank created by a 
Traffic Regulation Order using powers contained in the Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984. This allows new stands to be created on public highways or private land 
with the appropriate consent of the land owner and can be for continual or part-
time use. 

  
 Prior to a new stand/rank being created or the maximum number of vehicles that 

can use a stand is varied a notice will be given to the Chief Officer of Police and a 
public notice published in a local newspaper. 

  
 New stands/ranks will not be sited where they may lead to obstructions. 
 
 

 

Page 153

http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


80 

 Officers will monitor the use of stands in the Borough and it is expected that all 
stands are serviced.  
 

  
3. Waiting on Stands/Ranks and Etiquette 
  
 It is an offence for any person to cause or permit any vehicle other than a hackney 

carriage to wait in any stand for hackney carriages or a rank reserved for hackney 
carriages to park. 

  
 Drivers of hackney carriages may only wait in a stand/rank whilst plying for hire or 

waiting for a fare. 
  
 Drivers of hackney carriages who park in a stand/rank and leave their vehicle 

unattended commit an offence.    
 
Drivers of hackney carriages are expected to turn their vehicles’ engine off whilst 
waiting for a fare or to use their start stop technology if fitted. 
 

  
4. Byelaws 
  
 The Authority has enacted a set of Byelaws regarding the operation and use of 

hackney carriages and their drivers.  These include such matters as wearing of 
badge, driver conduct, plying for hire and use of the taxi stands/ranks.  These will 
be reviewed as and when considered appropriate by the Authority. 

Page 154



81 

11. Complaints Procedure 
  
 The Authority recognises the high standards of the private hire and hackney 

carriage trade and expects all licensees to uphold these standards at all times. 
However, it is recognised that there may be occasions for transport users and 
other members of the trade to make complaints and as such a complaints 
procedure has been devised. 

  
 All complaints received will be investigated.  Complainants will receive a written 

acknowledgement of their complaint within 2 working days advising the name of 
the Officer assigned to investigate the complaint. 

  
 Complainants may be asked to put their complaint in writing if the complaint is 

such that formal action may result. 
  
 The Authority recognises that some complaints can be frivolous or vexatious. 

These complaints will not be taken further. 
  
 Licensees are expected to assist Officers investigations and make themselves 

available for interview at a mutually convenient time and place. 
  
 At the end of the investigation all parties concerned will receive confirmation of the 

result and action to be taken. 
  
 If any party is not satisfied as to the outcome the Authority’s corporate complaints 

procedure is in place to deal with these issues. 

Page 155



82 

 
Appendix A 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle specifications 
 
All licensed vehicles shall comply in all respects with the requirements set out below as appropriate for the type of vehicle. 
This is in addition to all requirements of the Road Traffic legislation, which relates to all motor vehicles. 
 
All vehicles must comply with the requirements of Section A. Private Hire vehicles must comply with the requirements of 
Section B and Hackney Carriages must comply with the requirements of Section C. 
 
If you are making a new application for a Hackney Carriage proprietors licence or are replacing a hackney carriage first 
licensed after July 1992, the vehicle must be wheelchair accessible and must also comply with the requirements of Section 
D.  
 
All vehicles must have the appropriate type approval. 
 
The following vehicle specification must be maintained throughout the licence period unless changes have prior approval 
by the Authority. 
 
 
Section A - General specification for all vehicles 

 
 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 

 
1. The vehicle shall comply fully with all relevant statutory provisions relating to the construction of motor vehicles 

and including in particular those contained in the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 1986 (or 
any successor legislation). 
 

2. Any modification to the vehicle (e.g. conversion to wheelchair accessible, alteration of the original seat 
configuration or any other ‘adaptation’) must be approved by the Authority and the appropriate certificate 
produced. 
 

3. The vehicle shall be right hand drive with a fixed head type body. 
 

4. The vehicle shall be capable of carrying in reasonable comfort at least four passengers. 
 

5. The vehicle shall be M1 category.  In the case of post registration conversions Individual Vehicle Approval is 
required. 
 

6. The vehicle shall have a minimum unladen height of 1.325 metres (53”). 
 

 PASSENGER COMFORT 
 

7. Every passenger seat in the vehicle must meet the following minimum dimensions: 
 
  Individual seat width – 41cm (16”)   
  Bench seat width (i.e. rear seat of a saloon vehicle) – 124.5cm (49”) Width between door handles – 

124.5cm (49”) 
  Width between rear doors – 132cm (52”) 
  Seat squab height measured from vehicle floor - 30cm (12”) 
  Seat squab depth – 45cm (18”) 
  Headroom measured from centre of seat to underside of roof – 87.5cm (35”) 
  Legroom measured from seat back diagonally to vehicle floor – 94cm (37”) 
  Unobstructed space in front of seat measured from seat back – 63.5cm (25”) 
 
Licensing Officers are able to exercise their discretion as to the suitability of a vehicle where the measurements 
are below the above dimensions. 
 

8. There shall be no obstructions or features in the vehicle (e.g. prominent transmission tunnels, door furniture, 
vehicle controls, etc) which in the opinion of the Authority materially interferes with the comfort of any 
passenger. 
 

Page 156



83 

9. 
 
10. 

The vehicle shall have an adequate heating and ventilation system for the comfort of all passengers. 
 
The vehicle shall be equipped with either: 
 

(a) A spare wheel of full or space save design above the legal tread requirement and the tools to change 
a wheel, or 

(b) An emergency puncture repair kit (with compressor/inflation pack) or 
(c) Run flat tyres or 
(d) Provide evidence of a contract with a mobile tyre replacement specialist. 

 
In the event of a space – saver tyre, run flat tyres (when punctured) or puncture repair kit being used, it is only 
to complete a fare and must comply and be maintained in accordance with the manufactures’ 
recommendations. Any such defective wheel should be replaced before taking another fare to ensure 
passenger safety. 

  
 PASSENGER SAFETY 

 
11. Glass shall have a minimum light transmittance of 75% for the front windscreen, 70% for the front side windows 

and 34% for all other vehicle window glass.  If tinted windows are fitted as standard at the time of manufacture 
of the vehicle there will be no minimum light transmission to the windows to the rear of the B pillar. 
 
Licensing Officers are able to exercise their discretion as to the suitability of a vehicle where the light 
transmittance of the windows is below 34% where tint has not been fitted as standard. This discretion however 
does not apply to the front windscreen or the front side windows.    
 

12. The vehicle shall have at least 4 doors and open sufficiently wide so as to allow safe and easy access and 
egress. Each passenger, other than a front seated passenger, shall have access to at least two doors. 
 

13. 
 
 

Every passenger seat shall be either forward or rear facing and shall be fitted with an approved (lap & diagonal) 
seat belt. 
 

 LUGGAGE CAPACITY 
 

14. The vehicle shall have capacity to convey an appropriate quantity of luggage.  
  

 
 

Section B - Specification for Private Hire Vehicles 
 
15. The vehicle must not be black in colour or a colour which closely resembles black in the opinion of the Licensing 

Officer. 
 

16. If the Private Hire vehicle is fitted with a meter, it must be properly tested and sealed. 

17. Private Hire vehicles must not have a roof sign. 
  

 
 

Section C - Specification for Hackney Carriages 
 
18. Hackney Carriage vehicles must be black in colour. 

 
19. Hackney Carriage vehicles must have fitted on the roof, an internally illuminated TAXI top sign meeting a 

specification in relation to size and colour approved by the Authority and relevant to the type of vehicle. 
 

20. Hackney Carriage vehicles must be fitted with a taximeter, properly tested and sealed, and calibrated to enable 
testing in accordance with the Authority’s current Hackney Carriage Fare Table. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



84 

Section D - Specification for New and Replacement Wheelchair Accessible Hackney Carriages Only 
 
 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 

 
21. The vehicle must comply fully with the requirements of the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 

1986 (or any successor legislation) as well as all general policies and specifications of the Authority which 
relate to hackney carriage vehicles. 
 

22. The vehicle must comply fully with Sections A and C of the preceding ‘General Specification for all Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles’. 
 

 PASSENGER SAFETY AND COMFORT 
 

23. The vehicle must be capable of accommodating one or more wheelchairs in either a forward or rear facing 
position allowing adequate space to ensure the safety and comfort of the wheelchair user, and without 
interfering with the safety and comfort of any other passengers. 
 

24. The design of the vehicle must allow safe access and egress of passengers including elderly and disabled 
passengers. 
 

25. Wheelchair access to the vehicle must be from the nearside or rear of the vehicle. The door and doorway must 
be constructed as to permit an unrestricted opening across the doorway of at least 75cm. 
 

26. The clear height of the doorway must not be less than 1.2 metres. 
 

27. Grab handles must be placed at one or more passenger door entrances as appropriate, to assist the elderly 
and disabled. 
 

28. The vertical distance between the highest part of the floor and the roof in the wheelchair passenger area must 
be no less than 1.3 metres. 
 

29. Approved anchorages must be provided for the wheelchair and chair bound disabled person. These 
anchorages must be either chassis or floor linked and capable of withstanding approved dynamic or static 
tests. Restraints for the wheelchair and occupant must be independent of each other. 
 

30. Suitable means of wheelchair access must be fitted to the vehicle. Ramps must be of suitable design to ensure 
that they do not slip or tilt when in use and they provide a suitable gradient when in use. Tail-lifts must be of 
an approved type. 
 

31. 
 
 

If any of the seating within the vehicle has to be removed or adjusted in any way to accommodate one or more 
wheelchairs, the following conditions will also apply:  
 

   The removal/adjustment must be able to be carried out quickly and easily so that in the opinion of the 
Authority there is minimal inconvenience caused to any hirer of the vehicle by the ‘conversion’ 

  Where one or more seats require removal to accommodate one or more wheelchairs there must be 
adequate space on the vehicle for the secure storage of any removed seats. 

  Where one or more seats are either removed or they become unusable when the vehicle has been 
‘converted’ for wheelchair use there must be at least one further useable passenger seat. 

 
 

  

Page 158



85 

Appendix B 
Conditions attached to a Hackney Carriage Proprietors Licence and Private Hire Vehicle Proprietors Licence 
 
 
The following conditions are attached to the grant/renewal of the following vehicle licence: 
 
Plate Number: 
Registration Number: 
Name of licensee(s) including part proprietors: 
 
Failure to comply with the conditions may lead to action being taken against your licence.  
 
STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 

1. Maintenance of Vehicle 
 

 The vehicle, all of its fittings and any attached equipment shall at all times when the vehicle is in use or available 
for hire, be kept in a clean, safe, tidy and efficient state, and must also comply with all relevant statutory 
provisions including in particular those contained in the Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Regulations 
1986. 
 

2. Alteration of Vehicle 
 

 No material alteration or change to the vehicle, its fittings or any attached equipment shall be made without  
the prior approval of the Authority. 
 

3. Identification Plate 
 

 The licence plate supplied by the Authority and identifying the vehicle as a hackney carriage/private hire vehicle 
shall be securely fixed externally on or about the off side area of the rear bodywork or bumper of the vehicle in 
a conspicuous position and in such a manner as to be easily removed if necessary by an authorised Officer of 
the Authority or a constable. The plate must be maintained in a satisfactory condition and be legible. 
 

4. Interior Identification Marking 
 

 A sign supplied by the Authority indicating the licence number and the number of passengers the vehicle is 
licensed to carry, shall be displayed inside the vehicle in a prominent position on the inside of the windscreen 
so as to be clearly visible to passengers. The sign must be maintained in a satisfactory condition and be legible. 
 

5. Door Decals 
 

 There shall be attached centrally to each front door of the vehicle the appropriate hackney carriage or private 
hire vehicle decals supplied by the Authority. The decals must be securely affixed or in the case of Hackney 
Carriage Vehicle permanently affixed to the vehicle and these must be maintained in a satisfactory condition 
and be legible. 

  
6. Safety Equipment 
  
 Where a ramp or ramps are used, they must be fitted/carried safely in the vehicle at all times. The ramps must 

be identified with the vehicle registration number. 
  
7. Signs, Notices, Etc 
  
 No signs, notices, advertisements, video or digital display etc or other markings shall be displayed on, in or from 

the vehicle subject to the following exceptions: 
  
   Any sign, notice or other marking required to be displayed by legislation or any condition attached to this 

licence 
   Advertising on the rear doors, rear wings and boot area of the vehicle (of two-dimensional insignia type) 

approved by the Authority 
   Advertising along the top 8 cm strip of the windscreen of the vehicle provided that it is not illuminated and it 

bears only the name and/or telephone number in block letters of the firm operating the vehicle. 
 

Page 159



86 

 Signs, notices, advertisements, video or digital display etc must not be of a content that the Licensing Officer 
deems to be offensive or abusive. 
 
A sign must be affixed to the inside of the vehicle indicating that smoking is prohibited in the vehicle. 

  
8. Change of Address 

 
 The proprietor shall notify the Authority in writing within seven days of any change of address during the period 

of the licence. 
 

9. Convictions, Cautions, Fixed Penalty, Community Resolutions or On-going Investigations 
 

 The proprietor shall notify the Authority in writing within seven days if he/she is convicted of any offence or if 
he has been charged with an offence. He/she should also inform the Authority in writing within seven days of 
having received a caution, fixed penalty or community resolution and if released by the police on bail or under 
investigation.  
 

10. Deposit of Drivers Licence 
 

 If the proprietor permits or employs any other person to drive the vehicle as a hackney carriage/private hire 
vehicle, the proprietor shall retain the person’s hackney carriage/private hire drivers licence until such time as 
the driver ceases to be permitted or employed to drive the vehicle. 
 

11. Transfer of Interest 
 

 The proprietor shall notify the Authority in writing, giving the name and the address of the new proprietor, within 
14 days if he transfers his interest in the vehicle to another person. 
 

12. Accident Notification 
 

 The proprietor shall notify the Authority as soon as is practicable, or in any case within 72 hours of any accident 
which results in damage to the vehicle. 

  
13. Additional Charges 

 
 The proprietor shall pay the Authority any reasonable additional charges to be determined by the Authority for: 

A) the replacement of any lost, damaged or stolen plate, decal or sign provided by the Authority (and which is 
required to be attached or displayed on or in the vehicle as a condition of this licence); 
B) any vehicle test appointment for which the proprietor fails to present the vehicle for testing or which is 
cancelled by the proprietor without giving at least 48 hours notice to the Authority. 

  
14. Insurance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
15. 

All vehicles must have a current valid policy of insurance at all times appropriate to the vehicle. 
 
If a vehicle is off the road and uninsured the proprietor must advise the Licensing Section in writing immediately 
or in any event within 72 hours. 
 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
 
All proprietors must read the Authority’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and act in 
accordance with the Policy as it applies to them 
 

 
 
Additional Conditions/departure from standard conditions 
 
As required 
 
Stamped/dated  

Page 160



87 

Appendix C 
 
Vehicle Testing Arrangements – Components to be Inspected 
 
Body / Vehicle Structure  
Free from excessive corrosion or damage in specific areas.  No sharp edges likely to cause injury.   
 
Speedometer/Odometer 
Condition and operation. 
 
Fuel System 
No leaks. Security and condition of pipes/hoses.  Fuel cap fastens and seals securely. 
 
Exhaust Emissions 
Vehicle meets the requirements for exhaust emissions, dependent on the age and fuel type of the vehicle. 
 
Exhaust System 
Secure.  Complete. Catalyst missing where one was fitted as standard.  Without serious leaks and is not too noisy.  
 
Seat Belts 
All the seat belts fitted are checked for type, condition, operation and security.  All mandatory seat belts must be in 
place.  Check of the Malfunction Indicator Lamp (MIL) for air bags and seat belt pre tensioners and load limiters. 
 
Seats 
Driver’s seat for adjustment.  All seats for security and seat backs can be secured in the upright position. 
 
Doors 
Latch securely in closed position.  Front doors should open from the inside and outside the vehicle.  Rear doors should 
open from outside the vehicle.  Hinges and catches for security and condition. 
 
Mirrors 
Minimum number required, condition and security.  Indirect vision devices. 
 
Load Security 
Boot or tailgate can be secured in the closed position. 
 
Brakes 
Condition including inappropriate repairs or modifications, operation and performance (efficiency test).  Note the 
removal of the road wheels and trims are not part of the test.  Anti-lock Braking System (ABS) and Electronic Stability 
Control (ESC) where fitted.  Check of the dashboard Malfunction Indicator Lamp (MIL) for ABS, ESC, electronic park 
brake and brake fluid warning. 
 
Tyres and Wheels (including spare) 
Condition, security, tyre size/type and tread depth. Note: vehicles first used on or after 1st January 2012 – check of the 
MIL for Tyre Pressure Monitoring System (TPMS). 
 
Registration Plates 
Condition, security, colour, characters correctly formed and spaced. 
 
Lights 
Condition, operation including High Intensity Discharge (HID) and Light Emitting Diode (LED) headlamps for cleaning, 
self-levelling and security. Headlamp aim. Main beam warning light. 
 
Bonnet 
Securely latches in the closed position. 
 
Wipers / Washers 
Operate to give the driver a clear view ahead. 
 
Windscreen 
Condition and driver’s view of the road. 
 
Horn 
Correct operation and of suitable type. 

Page 161



88 

 
Steering and Suspension 
Condition, steering oil level, operation, a check for inappropriate repairs or modification including corrosion to power 
steering pipes or hoses.  Operation of steering lock mechanism.  Check of MIL for electronic power steering and 
steering lock. 
 
Towbars (if fitted) 
Security/condition/inappropriate repairs or modification.  Correct operation of 13 pin electrical socket. 
 
Vehicle Identification Number 
Present on vehicles first used on or after 1st August 1980.  A single VIN is displayed except on multistage build vehicles 
(e.g. van conversion, BMW/ Alpina). 
 
Electrical 
Visible electrical wiring and battery 
 
Vehicle Interior 
Clean. 
 
Vehicle Exterior 
Uniform colour.  
 
Glass  
Windscreen - minimum 75% light transmittance. 
Front side windows - minimum 70% light transmittance 
If tinted windows are fitted as standard there will be no minimum light transmission to the rear of the B pillar. 
All other windows – minimum 34% light transmittance 
 
Meter (if fitted) 
Must be of an approved type and sealed. 
 
Spare Wheel 
The vehicle shall be equipped with either: 
 

(a) A spare wheel of full or space save design above the legal tread requirement and the tools to change a wheel, 
or 

(b) An emergency puncture repair kit (to include compressor/inflator) or 
(c) Run flat tyres or 
(d) Provide evidence of a contract with a mobile tyre replacement specialist. 

 
Wheel-brace & Jack (only if spare wheel present) 
Present.  Correct operation. 
 
Luggage Accommodation 
Compartment clean, empty. 
 
Seats & Interior Trim 
Clean, free from rips or tears. 
 
Floor Covering 
Clean. No obstructions. 
 
Licence Plate (Annual and Interim Tests Only) 
Present.  Securely attached to vehicle.  Correct location on vehicle. In satisfactory condition and information legible 
 
NTC Windscreen Disc 
Present.  Securely attached to windscreen. In satisfactory condition, information legible. 
 
NTC Door Signs 
Present.  Fitted correctly. In satisfactory condition, information legible. 
 
NTC Emergency/ Information Signs (Minibuses/PCV’s) 
Present. In satisfactory condition, information legible. 
 

Page 162



89 

For Hire Sign (hackney carriage only) 
Present. Works in conjunction with meter and roof-sign. 
 
Roof Sign (Hackney carriages only) 
Present. Correct type and size for type of vehicle. Correct colours. Lettering correct size. 
 
Advertising - bodywork 
Approved.  Present only on rear doors & boot area of vehicle unless approved. 
 
Advertising - glass 
Approved.  Present only on top edge of windscreen. 
 
NTC Fare Table (hackney carriage only) (Dashboard/partition/Rear Windows) 
Present. In satisfactory condition. Most recent issue. 
 
Byelaws (hackney carriage only) 
Present.  Satisfactory condition and legible 
 
Interior Door Locks (Purpose built hackney carriage only) 
Work in conjunction with foot-brake. 
 
Ramps (if present) 
Present. Stored securely. Adequate locking device must be fitted to ensure the ramps do not slip or tilt when in use.  
 
Wheelchair Anchorages (if applicable) 
Must be of an approved type (chassis or floor linked and capable of withstanding approved dynamic or static tests).  
 
Tail-Lifts (if present) 
Must have valid LOLER Certificate.  Tail lift must not prevent the rear door(s) from being opened and must be easily 
moved if the power supply fails. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163



90 

Appendix D 
Standard ‘Exemption Notice’ Conditions 
Executive Hire Vehicles 

 
General Conditions 
 

1. The Proprietor shall notify the Authority immediately in writing if there is any material change in the nature of the 
use of the vehicle. 
 

2. The Proprietor shall ensure that the private hire vehicle licence identification disc issued by the Authority is 
displayed within the nearside of the front windscreen at all times. 
 

3. The ‘Exemption Notice’ issued by the Director of Public Health in respect of the licensed private hire vehicle shall 
be carried within the vehicle at all times, and presented for inspection at the request of an Authorised Officer of 
the Authority, a Police Constable or the hirer. 
 

4. Other than the Authority’s Licence Identification Disc; the proprietor shall not display in, on or from the vehicle 
any advertisement, sign, logo or insignia advertising the operating company or promoting the vehicles’ status as 
a licensed private hire vehicle, without the prior written approval of the Director of Public Health. 
 

5. The Private Hire Vehicle proprietors licence identification plate and decals issued by the Authority shall not be 
affixed to the vehicle, and shall not be displayed in, on or from the vehicle at any time. 
 

6. The Private Hire Vehicle proprietors licence identification plate issued by the Authority shall be carried in the 
luggage compartment of the vehicle at all times and produced for inspection at the request of an Authorised 
Officer of the Authority, a Police Constable or the hirer. 
 

7. No taximeter shall be displayed within the vehicle at any time. 
 

8. No table of fares/tariff card shall be displayed in the vehicle at any time. 
 

9. A tariff of charges shall be deposited with the Authority and shall be carried within the vehicle at all times. 
 

10. The Proprietor shall not change the body colour(s) which were present when the vehicle was first licensed without 
the prior written consent of the Director of Public Health. 
 

11. The Proprietor shall ensure that the driver of the vehicle does not wear the private hire drivers licence 
identification badge issued by the Authority or display that badge in, on or from the vehicle at any time. 
 

12. The Proprietor shall ensure that the private hire drivers identification badge issued by the Authority shall be carried 
within the vehicle at all times and produced for inspection at the request of an Authorised Officer of the Authority, 
a Police Constable or the hirer. 

  
13. The Proprietor shall ensure that the driver of the vehicle shall be appropriately dressed in a chauffeur’s uniform 

or business suit when the vehicle is hired. 
 

14. The Proprietor shall ensure that the hirer shall be afforded the facility to settle accounts and/or tender direct 
payment by credit card, debit card, cheque or cash. 
 

 
Additional Conditions 
 
Any executive hire vehicle wishing to take advantage of the exemption limiting the window tint (less than 34% light 
transmittance) should not be engaged in any contract or provision of vehicle for the carriage of school children or based 
around the carriage of unaccompanied children/young persons (under age 18 years). The driver must not act as the 
accompanying adult. Further, the Operator must, unless such a vehicle has been specifically requested, inform a hirer 
that such a vehicle with tinted windows will be supplied. 

Page 164



91 

Appendix E  
 
Private Hire Driver Licence Conditions of Licence 
 
The following conditions are attached to the grant of the following driver licence: 
 
Name of licensee: 
Licence Number: 
 
Failure to comply with the conditions may lead to action being taken against your licence.  
 

1. Conduct of Driver 
 

 The Driver shall:- 
 
1. Afford all reasonable assistance with passenger’s luggage 
2. At all times comply with the Authority dress code and behave in a civil and orderly manner 
3. Take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety of passengers conveyed in, entering or alighting from the 

vehicle driven by him/her 
4. Not without the express consent of the hirer, drink or eat in the vehicle. 
5. Not without express consent of the hirer, play any radio or sound reproducing instrument or equipment in  

the vehicle he/she is driving to be a source of nuisance or annoyance to any person, whether inside or outside 
the vehicle 

6. Drivers are issued with two badges, one to be worn around the neck. At all times when acting in accordance 
with this licence a badge licensed to him/her must be displayed in such a position and manner as to be plainly 
and distinctly visible to passengers. 

 
The Driver shall not smoke in the vehicle at any time, including when the vehicle is not available for hire. 
  

2. Passengers 
 

 1. The driver shall not convey or permit to be conveyed in a private hire vehicle a greater number of persons 
than that prescribed in the licence for the vehicle. 

2. The driver shall not allow there to be conveyed in the front of a private hire vehicle beside him/her: 
 
(a) Any child below the age of three years, or 
(b) more than one person. 
 

3. Lost Property 
 

 If any identifiable property is left in a private hire vehicle by any person who may have been conveyed therein is 
found by or handed to the driver, he/her shall take it as soon as possible in any event within twenty four hours, if 
not sooner claimed by or on behalf of its owner to a convenient police station and leave it in the custody of the 
Officer on his/her giving a receipt for it. 
 

4. Written Receipts 
 

 The driver shall if requested by the hirer of a private hire vehicle provide him/her with a written receipt for the fare 
paid. 
 

5. Animals 
 

 The driver shall not convey in a private hire vehicle any animal belonging to or in the custody of himself or the 
proprietor or operator of the vehicle whilst the vehicle is hired and he/she shall ensure that any animal belonging 
to or in the custody of any passengers is conveyed in the rear of the vehicle. 
 
This does not apply to a disabled person’s guide, hearing or assistance dog which must be carried in a private 
hire vehicle or hackney carriage vehicle without any additional charge, unless the driver holds a Certificate of 
Exemption on medical grounds issued under the Equality Act 2010. 
 
 
 
 

Page 165



92 

6. Prompt Attendance 
 

 The driver of a private hire vehicle shall, if he/she is aware that the vehicle has been hired to be in attendance at 
an appointed time and place or he/she has otherwise been instructed by the operators or proprietor of the vehicle 
to be in attendance at an appointed time and place, punctually attend at the appointed time and place, unless 
delayed or prevented by sufficient cause. 

  
7. Deposit of Licence 
  

If the driver is permitted or employed to drive a private hire vehicle of which the proprietor is someone, other than 
himself, he/she shall before commencing to drive that vehicle deposit this licence with that proprietor for retention 
by him until such time as the driver ceases to be permitted or employed to drive the vehicle or any other vehicle. 
 

8. Change of Address 
 

 The driver shall notify the Licensing Office in writing of his/her address during the period of the licence within 
seven days of such change taking place. 

  
9. Medical Fitness 

 
 The driver must inform the Licensing Office immediately if he/she suffers from a medical condition or disability or 

a condition or disability previously notified worsens that may alter his/her ability to drive a vehicle. 
 
A driver who receives medical treatment or medical consultation shall confirm with their medical attendant 
whether they are at that time fit to undertake the duties of a private hire vehicle driver. Where any medical 
attendant specifies that a driver should not drive for a determinate or indeterminate period that driver shall notify 
the Authority immediately in writing of such medical opinion. 
 
The requirement will not apply to any temporary incapacity or treatment for the duration of which the driver does 
not intend to drive a private hire vehicle. 
 

10. Convictions, Cautions, Fixed Penalty, Community Resolutions or On-going Investigations 
 

 The driver shall within seven days disclose to the Authority in writing details of any conviction (including all 
motoring offences), caution, fixed penalty or community resolution received during the period of the licence. The 
driver shall also notify the Authority in writing within seven days if he/she has been charged with an offence or 
has been released by the police on bail or under investigation. 
 

11. People who have spent time overseas 
  
 Existing licensed drivers must notify the Authority in writing when they intend to leave the country for an extended 

period of 3 months or more. They must also notify the Authority on their return and complete a statutory 
declaration on the form provided by the Authority.  

  
12. Return of Badges 
  
 The driver shall upon the expiry, revocation or suspension of this licence forthwith return to the Authority the 

driver’s badges issued by the Licensing Office when granting this licence. 
  
13. Taxi Meter 
  
 If a private hire vehicle is fitted with a taxi meter or other Authority approved device used to calculate the fare, 

the driver shall not cause the fare recorded thereon to be cancelled or concealed until the hirer has had a 
reasonable opportunity of examining it and has paid the fare (unless credit is to be given). 

  
14. Fare to Be Demanded 

 
 The driver shall not demand from any hirer of a private hire vehicle, fare in excess of any previously agreed for 

that hiring between the hirer and operator, or if the vehicle is fitted with a taxi meter and there has been no 
previous agreement as to the fare, the fare shown on the face of the taxi meter. 

  
15. No smoking Policy 
  
 Smoking in a smoke-free place is prohibited under the Health Act 2006 by both the driver and passengers. 

Page 166



93 

  
 In this context a ‘smoke-free place’ includes a licensed hackney carriage and private hire vehicle as well as a 

private hire operator’s premises. 
 
Smoking also includes the use of e-cigarettes. 
 

16 Renewal of Licence 
 
 The driver must apply to renew a private hire driver’s licence in the four weeks preceding the expiry date of the licence.  
 
17. Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles 
 
 All drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles must: 
 (i) Be fully conversant with the correct method of operation of all ramps, lifts and wheelchair restraints fitted to the 
 vehicle. 
 (ii) Before any movement of the vehicle takes place ensure that all wheelchairs are firmly secured to the vehicle using 
 an approved restraining system and the brakes of the wheelchair have been applied. 
 (iii) Ensure that any wheelchairs, equipment and passengers are carried in such a manner that no danger is likely to 
 be caused to those passengers or to anyone else, in accordance with Regulation 100 of the (Construction and Use) 
 Regulations 1986. 
 
18. Responsibility Towards Authority Employees 
 
 Drivers are expected to be polite and courteous at all times and to comply with any reasonable request made by a 
 Licensing or Civil Enforcement Officer or Testing Mechanic. Verbal or physical abuse will not be tolerated. 
 
19. Subscription to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Update Service 
 
 All drivers will be required to subscribe to the DBS update service. 
 
20. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
 
 All drivers must read the Authority’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and act in accordance with 
 the Policy as it applies to them.  
 

 
 

Page 167



94 

Appendix F 
Code of Good Conduct For Licensed Drivers 
 
In order to promote its licensing objectives as regards hackney carriage and private hire licensing, the Authority has adopted 
the following Code of Good Conduct, which should be read in conjunction with the other statutory and policy requirements set 
out in this document. 
 

1. Responsibility to the Trade 
  
 Licensees shall endeavour to promote the image of the Hackney Carriage and Private hire trade by: 
  
 (a) complying with this Code of Good Conduct; 

(b) complying with all the Conditions of their Licence and the Authority’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy; Byelaws 

(c) behaving in a professional manner at all times. 
  
2. Responsibility to Clients 
  
 Licensees shall: 
  
 (a) maintain their vehicles in a safe and satisfactory condition at all times; 

(b) keep their vehicles clean and suitable for hire to the public at all times; 
(c) attend punctually when undertaking a pre-booked hiring; 
(d) assist, where necessary, passengers into and out of vehicles; 
(e) offer passengers reasonable assistance with luggage. 
 

3. Responsibility to Residents 
  
 To avoid nuisance to residents when picking up or waiting for a fare, a driver shall: 
  
 (a) only use the vehicle horn in accordance with the law; 

(b) keep the volume of radio/cassette/cd player and VHF/digital radios to a minimum; 
(c) switch off the engine if required to wait; 
(d) take whatever additional action is necessary to avoid disturbance to residents in the neighbourhood. 
 

 At hackney carriage stands and other places where hackney carriages ply for hire by forming queues, drivers 
shall, in addition to the requirements above: 

  
 (a) stand in an orderly manner and proceed along the stand in order and promptly; 

(b) remain in the vehicle. 
  
 At private hire offices a licensee shall: 
  
 (a) not allow their radio/cassette/cd players or VHF/digital radios to cause disturbance to residents of the 

neighbourhood; 
(b) take whatever additional action is necessary to avoid disturbance to residents of the neighbourhood which 

might arise from the conduct of their business. 
  
4. General 
  
 Drivers shall: 
  
 (a) pay attention to personal hygiene and dress in accordance with the Dress Code; 

(b) be polite, helpful and respectful to passengers; 
(c) drive with care and due consideration for other road users and pedestrians and in particular shall not use a 

hand held mobile phone whilst driving; 
(d) obey all Traffic Regulation Orders and directions at all time; 
(e) not smoke in the vehicle at any time (this includes e-cigarettes); 
(f) not consume alcohol immediately before or at any time whilst driving or being in charge of a hackney carriage 

or private hire vehicle; 
(g) not drive while having misused legal or illegal drugs; 
(h) fulfill their responsibility to ensure compliance with legislation regarding the length of working hours. 

  
PLEASE NOTE:  ANY AMOUNT OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS CAN AFFECT A DRIVER’S JUDGEMENT. THE  
AUTHORITY WILL TAKE A VERY SERIOUS VIEW OF ANY DRIVER BEING FOUND TO HAVE CONSUMED  
ANY ALCOHOL OR HAVING MISUSED ANY DRUGS WHILST IN CHARGE OF A LICENSED VEHICLE. 

Page 168



95 

Appendix G 
 
Drivers Dress Code 
 

The purpose of a driver’s dress code is to seek a standard of dress that promotes a positive image of the 
hackney carriage and private hire trade in North Tyneside, to enhance a professional image of licensed 
drivers and ensure that public and driver safety is not compromised. 
 
The dress code is not a condition of licence and will not be enforced as such, however the Licensing Authority 
encourages drivers to comply with the requirements. 
 
Acceptable Standards of Dress 
 
Tops 

 
  Shirts, blouses, T-Shirts or sweat tops should cover the shoulders and be capable of being worn inside trousers 

or shorts. 
  Shirts or blouses may be worn with a tie or open necked. 
 
Footwear 
 
   Footwear for all drivers shall fit around the heel of the foot. 
 
Unacceptable Standard of Dress 
 
The following are deemed unacceptable: 
 
    Clothing not kept in a clean condition, free from holes and rips. 
    Words or graphics on any clothing that is of an offensive or suggestive nature or which might offend. 
    Sportswear (e.g. football/rugby kits, track suits, beach wear etc). 
    Sandals with no heel straps, flip flops or any other form of footwear not secured around the heel. 
    Drivers not having either the top or bottom half of their bodies suitably clothed. 

 
 

Page 169



96 

Appendix H 
 
Private Hire Operators Licence 
Conditions of Licence  
 
1. RECORDS 

 
(i) The records required to be kept by the operator under section 56(2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1976 must be kept in a suitable book, the pages of which are numbered consecutively, or other 
durable recording format and the operator shall enter or cause to be entered therein before the commencement 
of each journey, the following particulars of every booking of a private hire vehicle invited or accepted by him, 
including where a booking is sub-contracted (whether the vehicle that is used is licensed under section 48 of 
the 1976 Act, or is licensed as a hackney carriage under section 37 of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847): 
 
• the name of the hirer/passenger;  
• The date and time of the hiring;  
• The agreed date and time of the pick-up 
• the pick-up point;  
• the destination;  
• the name or unique callsign of the driver allocated to the booking;  
• the driver’s licence number;  
• the vehicle registration number of the vehicle;  
• the name of any individual that responded to the booking request;  
• the name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle 
• Remarks (including details of any booking sub-contracted to another private hire operator) 

  
(ii) The operator shall also keep records of the particulars of all vehicles operated or used by him (whether licensed 

under section 48 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 or under section 37 of the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847, which particulars shall include details of the proprietors, registration numbers, licence 
number and drivers of such vehicles, together with any radio call sign used. 

  
(iv) The operator shall keep records of all desk clerks employed by him, including their name, date of birth and 

home address. A daily record must be kept of the time worked by each clerk. 
  
(v) 
 
(vi) 
 
 
(vii) 
 
 
viii 
 
 
ix) 
 
 
 
x) 
 

The desk clerk shall sign the booking sheet at the start of each duty, or, in the case of computerised booking 
systems, log on at the start of each duty. 
 
All records kept by the operator shall be preserved for a period of not less than ONE year following the date of 
the last entry. 
 
The Operator must maintain and keep up to date a register of all staff who take bookings and/or dispatch 
vehicles to fulfil bookings.  
 
The Operator must have a clear policy that sets out the criteria to be applied when employing members of staff 
responsible for the booking and/or dispatch of vehicles who have previous convictions. 
 
The Operator must maintain a register confirming that they have had sight of a Basic Disclosure and Barring 
Service check on all individuals employed as booking and dispatch staff and that this is compatible with their 
policy on employing those with previous convictions.   
  
The Operator must ensure that a Basic Disclosure and Barring Service check has been conducted on any 
individual added to the register of staff.   
 

xi) All records which are required to be kept under the conditions of licence must be made available upon 
request to an Authorised Officer of the Authority or a constable. 
 

xii) 
 

The Operator must not dispatch a driver who is a licensed Passenger Carrying Vehicle driver and use a Public 
Service Vehicle (such as a minibus) to fulfil a booking without the informed consent of the person making the 
booking. The Operator must be able to evidence that such consent was given by the passenger prior to the 
picking up of the passenger. 

  
 
 

Page 170



97 

2. STANDARD OF SERVICE 
 

 The operator shall provide a prompt, efficient and reliable service to members of the public at all reasonable 
times and for this purpose shall in particular: 
 

 a) Ensure that when a private hire vehicle has been hired to be in attendance at an appointed time and place, 
the vehicle shall, unless delayed or prevented by sufficient cause, punctually attend at that appointed time and 
place. 

 b) Keep clean, adequately heated, ventilated and lit any premises which the operator provides and to which the 
public have access, whether for the purpose of booking or waiting. 

 c) Ensure that any waiting area provided by the operator has adequate seating facilities. 
 d) Ensure that any telephone facilities and radio equipment provided are maintained in a sound condition and 

that any defects are repaired promptly. 
  
3. COMPLAINTS 

 
 The operator shall notify the Authority in writing, within seven days, of any complaints concerning a contract for 

hire or purported contract for hire relating to or arising from his business and of the action (if any) which the 
operator has taken or proposes to take in respect thereof. 

  
4. CHANGE OF ADDRESS 

 
 The operator shall notify the Authority in writing of any change of his/her home address during the period of the 

licence within seven days of such change taking place. 
  
5. CONVICTIONS, CAUTIONS, COMMUNITY RESOLUTION OR ON-GOING INVESTIGATIONS 

 
 The operator shall within seven days disclose to the Authority in writing details of any conviction, caution or 

community resolution imposed on him/her (or, if the operator is a Company, of any its Directors) during the 
period of the licence.  
 
The operator shall within seven days disclose to the Authority in writing of any on-going police (or other 
authority) investigation of him (or, if the operator is a Company, of any its Directors). 
 

6. OPERATORS LICENCE 
 

 Operators shall operate wholly from those premises specified in the licence and situated within the boundaries 
of the Borough of North Tyneside. 
 
The Operator shall display the Operator’s Licence issued by the Local Authority in a conspicuous position at 
the licensed premises. 

  
7. SPECIAL CONDITIONS RELATING TO PORTACABINS 
  
 
 
 
 
 

(i) The operator will provide and maintain hot and cold running water and wash hand basin facilities, which 
will be permanently connected to the main sewage system. 

(ii) The operator will provide and maintain toilet facilities which are to be permanently connected to the 
main sewerage system. 

8. HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY 
 
Operators should read the Authority’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy and act in 
accordance with Policy as it applies to them. 
 

9. RENEWAL of LICENCE 
 
The Operator must apply to renew a licence in the four weeks preceding the expiry date of the licence. 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 171



98 

Appendix I 
Metropolitan Borough of North Tyneside 

 
BYELAWS 

 
Metropolitan Borough of North Tyneside Byelaws made under Section 68 of The Town Police Clauses Act 1847, 
and Section 171 of The Public Health Act 1875 by the Authority of the Borough of North Tyneside, with respect 
to hackney carriages in the Borough of North Tyneside dated 4th March 1977 (all previous versions of these 
repealed) 

 
 

INTERPRETATION 
 

1. Throughout these byelaws “the Authority” means the Authority of the Borough of North Tyneside and “the 
district” means the Borough of North Tyneside. 

  
 PROVISIONS REGULATING THE MANNER IN WHICH THE NUMBER OF EACH HACKNEY CARRAIGE 

CORRESPONDING WITH THE NUMBER OF ITS LICENCE SHALL BE DISPLAYED 
  
2. (a) The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall cause the number of the licence granted to him in respect of 

the carriage to be legibly painted or marked inside of the carriage and on plates affixed to the outside of the 
carriage. 

  
 (b)   A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall:- 
  
 (i) Not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer any such number to be concealed from public view while 

the carriage is standing or plying for hire 
 (ii) Not cause or permit the carriage to stand or ply for hire with any such painting marking or plate so 

defaced that any figure or material particular is illegible. 
  
 PROVISIONS REGULATING HOW HACKNEY CARRAIGES ARE TO BE FURNISHED OR PROVIDED 
  
3. Every proprietor of a hackney carriage shall:- 
  
 (a) provide sufficient means by which any person in the carriage may communicate with the driver 

(b) cause any roof or covering to be kept water tight 
(c) provide any necessary windows and a means of opening and closing not less than one window on 

each side 
(d) cause the seats to be properly cushioned or covered 
(e) cause the floor to be provided with a proper carpet mat or other suitable covering 
(f) cause the fittings and furniture generally to be kept in a clean condition well maintained and in every 

way fit for public service 
(g) provide means for securing luggage if the carriage is so constructed to carry luggage 
(h) provide for an efficient fire extinguisher which shall be carried in such a position as to be readily 

available for use 
(i) in cases of motor hackney carriage provide at least two doors for the use of persons conveyed in 

such carriage and a separate means of ingress and egress for the driver. 
  
4. Every proprietor of a motor hackney carriage shall cause the same to be provided with a taximeter so 

constructed attached and maintained as to comply with the following requirements that is to say: - 
  
 (a) If the taxi meter is fitted with a flag or other device bearing the words “FOR HIRE” 
  
 (i) the words “FOR HIRE” shall be exhibited on each side of the flag of the flag or other device in plain 

letters at least one and a half inches in height and the flag or other device shall be capable of being 
locked in a position in which the words are horizontal and legible 

 (ii) when the flag or the other device is so locked the machinery of the taximeter shall not be in action 
and the means of bringing it into action shall be by moving the flag or other device so that the 
words are not conveniently legible 
 
 

   

Page 172



99 

 (b)   If the taximeter is not fitted with a flag or other device bearing the works “FOR HIRE” 
   
 (i) the taximeter is not fitted with a key or other device the turning of which will bring the machinery of 

the taximeter into action and cause the word “HIRED” or other indication that the vehicle has been 
hired to appear on the face of the taximeter 

 (ii) such key or device shall be capable of being locked in such a position that the machinery of the 
taximeter is not in action and no fare is recorded on the face of the taximeter 

   
 (c)    when the machinery of the taximeter is in action there shall be recorded on the face of the taximeter in 

figures clearly legible and free from ambiguity a fare not exceeding the rate of fare which the proprietor 
or driver is entitled to demand and take in pursuance of the byelaw in that behalf for the hire of the 
carriage by distance 

 (d)   the word “FARE” shall be printed on the face of the taximeter in plain letters so as clearly to apply to the 
fare record thereon 

 (e)   the taximeter shall be so placed that all letters and figures on the face thereof may be at all times plainly 
visible to any person being conveyed in the carriage and for the purpose the letters and figures shall be 
capable of being suitably illuminated during any period of hiring 

 (f)    the taximeter and all fittings thereof shall be affixed to the carriage with seals or other appliances that it 
shall not be practicable for any person to tamper with them except by breaking damaging to permanently 
displacing the seals of other appliances 

  
5. Every proprietor of a motor hackney carriage provided with a taximeter not fitted with a flag or other device 

bearing the words “FOR HIRE” shall cause the carriage to be provided with a sign so constructed as to 
comply with the following requirements that is to say:- 

  
 (a) the sign shall bear the words “FOR HIRE” in plain letters at least one and a half inches in height 
 (b) the sign shall be capable of being so operated that it indicates clearly and conveniently to persons 

outside the vehicle whether or not the vehicle is for hire 
  
 PROVISION REGULATING THE CONDUCT OF THE PROPRIETORS AND DRIVERS OF HACKNEY 

CARRAIGES PLYING WITHIN THE DISTRICT IN THEIR SEVERAL EMPLOYMENTS AND DETERMINING 
WHETHER SUCH DRIVERS SHALL WEAR ANY AND WHAT BADGES 

  
6. Every driver of a motor hackney carriage shall:- 
  
 (a) if the taximeter is fitted with a flag or other device bearing the words “FOR HIRE” 
   
  (i) when standing or plying for hire keep such flag or other device locked in the position in which the 

words are horizontal and legible 
  (ii) as soon as the carriage is hired by distance and before commencing the journey bring the 

machinery of the taximeter into action by moving the flag or other device so that the words are 
not conveniently legible and keep the machinery of the taximeter in action until the termination of 
hiring 

   
 (b) if the taximeter is not fitted with a flag or other device bearing the words “FOR HIRE” 
   
  (i) when standing or plying for hire keep the taximeter locked in the position in which no fare is 

recorded on the face of the taximeter and operate the sign provided in pursuance of byelaw 5 so 
that the words “FOR HIRE” are clearly and conveniently legible by persons outside the carriage 

  (ii) as soon as the carriage is hired whether by distance or by time or at any time when the carriage 
is not available operate the said sing so that the words “FOR HIRE” are not conveniently legible 
by persons outside the carriage 

  (iii) as soon as the carriage is hired by distance and before commencing the journey, bring the 
machinery of the taximeter into action by moving the key or other device fitted for the purpose so 
that the words “HIRED” or other indication that the vehicle has been hired is legible on the face 
of the taximeter, and the machinery of the taximeter in action until the termination of the hiring 

    
 (c) cause the dial of the taximeter to be properly illuminated throughout any part of the hiring which is during 

the hours of darkness as defined for the purposes of the Road Traffic Act 1972 and also at any other 
time at the request of the hirer 

  

Page 173



100 

7. A proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not tamper with or permit any person to tamper with any 
taximeter with which the carriage is provided, with the fittings thereof, or with the seals affixed thereto 

  
8. The driver of a hackney carriage shall, when plying for hire in the street and not actually hired:- 
   
 (a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the hackney carriage stands appointed by the Authority under 

the provisions of Section 63 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 for his 
particular class of vehicle; 

 (b) if a stand, at the time of his arrival, is occupied by the full number of carriages authorised to occupy it, 
proceed to another stand; 

 (c) on arriving at the stand in Front Street, Tynemouth (at eastern end of the parking area in the centre of 
the carriageway opposite the junction with Hotspur Street) if the same is not already occupied by the 
full number of carriages authorised to occupy it, station the carriage obliquely to the line of the 
carriageway in the direction indicated by white lines painted upon the carriageway and on one of the 
vacant spaces indicated by such white lines; and 

 (d) on arriving at the stand other than one referred to in paragraph (c) above:- 
   
  (i) if the stand is not already occupied by the full number of carriages authorised to occupy it, station 

the carriage or carriages on the stand and so as to face the same direction; and 
  (ii) from time to time when any other carriages immediately in front is driven off or moved forward 

causing his carriage to be moved forward so as to fill the place previously occupied by the 
carriage driven off or moved forward 

  
9. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage who has agreed or has been hired to be in attendance with the 

carriage at an appointed time and place shall, unless delayed or prevented by some sufficient cause, 
punctually attend with such carriage at such appointed time and place. 

  
10. If a badge has been provided by the Authority and delivered to the driver of a hackney carriage, either with 

the licence granted to him by the Authority or afterwards, he shall when standing, plying for hire and when 
hired, wear that badge in such position and manner ad to be plainly and distinctly visible.  

  
11. Every driver of a hackney carriage so constructed as to carry luggage shall when requested by any person 

hiring or seeking to hire the vehicle:- 
  
 (a) convey a reasonable quantity of luggage   
 (b) afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading 
 (c) afford reasonable assistance in removing it to or from the entrance to any house, station or place, at 

which he may take up or set down such a person 
   
12. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall at all times when standing, plying for hire and when hired, 

conduct himself in an orderly manner, and shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of 
persons conveyed in or entering or alighting from the vehicle. 

  
13. Every proprietor of a hackney carriage who shall knowingly convey in the carriage the dead body of any 

person shall immediately thereafter, notify the fact to the Chief Environmental Health Officer of the Authority. 
  
14. A driver or proprietor of a hackney carriage, when standing or plying for hire, shall not, by calling out or 

otherwise, importune any persons to hire such carriage and shall not make use of the services of any other 
person for this purpose. 

  
15. A proprietor of a hackney carriage shall not convey or permit to convey in such carriage any greater number 

of persons than the number of persons specified by the Authority which number shall be legible marked or 
painted on the plates required by Byelaw 2(a). For the purpose of this byelaw two children each under the 
age of 12 years may be regarded as one person. 

  
16. Every driver of a hackney carriage shall at all times when standing, plying or driving for hire when required 

by any police constable or any person hiring such carriage produce a copy of these byelaws for the perusal 
and inspection of such constable or person. 
 

17. The driver of a hackney carriage shall not at anytime when driving for hire, smoke tobacco or any like 
substance without the permission of the person hiring and being conveyed in such carriage. 
 

Page 174



101 

  
  
 PROVISION FOR SECURING THE DUE PUBLICATION OF FARES 
  
18. (a) The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall be entitled to demand and take for the hire of the 

carriage the rate or fare prescribed by the Authority, the rate or fare being calculated by distance unless 
the hirer expresses at the commencement of the hiring his desire to engage by time. 

 (b) Provided always that where a hackney carriage furnished with a taximeter shall be hired by distance 
the proprietor or driver thereof shall not be entitled to demand or take a fare greater than that recorded 
on the face of the taximeter save for any extra charges authorised by the Authority which it may not be 
possible to record on the face of the taximeter. 

 (c) The proprietor of a hackney carriage shall:- 
    
  (i) cause a statement of the fares from time to time fixed by the Authority under the provisions of 

Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1976 to be painted or 
marked on the inside of the carriage, or on a place fixed thereto in clearly distinguishable letters 
and figures; and 

  (ii) renew such letters and figures as often as is necessary to keep them clearly visible 
    
 (d) The proprietor of a hackney carriage bearing a statement of fares in accordance with this byelaw shall 

not wilfully or negligently cause or suffer the letters or figures in the statement to be concealed or 
rendered illegible at any time while the carriage is plying or being used for hire. 

   
 PROVISIONS SECURING THE SAFE CUSTODY AND REDELIVERY OF ANY PROPERTY 

ACCIDENTALLY LEFT IN HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE MADE IN 
RESPECT THEREOF 

  
19. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall immediately after termination of any hiring or as soon as 

practicable thereafter and before the next hiring, carefully search the carriage for any property that may have 
been accidentally left therein. 

  
20. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall, if any property accidentally left therein by any person 

who may have been conveyed in the carriage be found by or handed to him 
   
 (a) carry it within twenty four hours, if not sooner claimed by or on behalf of its owner, to the office of the 

Superintendent of Police at North Shields, Wallsend or Whitley Bay and leave it in the custody of the 
officer in charge on his giving a receipt for it, 

 (b) be entitled to receive from any person to whom the property shall be re-delivered an amount equal to 
five pence in the pound of its estimated value (or the fare for the distance from the place of finding to 
the nearest office of the Superintendent of Police referred to in Byelaw 22(a) whichever is the greater) 
but not more than five pounds. 

   
 SPECIAL PROVISIONS IN RELATION TO HACKNEY CARRIAGES DRAWN BY ANIMALS 
  
21. The driver of a hackney carriage drawn by any animal or animals shall, while standing, ply or driving for hire, 

cause every part of the harness of the animal or animals drawing the carriage to be kept in order, so that the 
animal or animals shall be properly and securely attached to the carriage, and under due control. 

  
22. The proprietor or driver of a horse-drawn hackney carriage shall not, in any street, feed or allow to be fed any 

horse harnessed or otherwise attached to such carriage, except with food contained in a proper bag or other 
receptacles suspended from the head of such horse or from the centre pole of the carriage, or which is held 
in and delivered with the hand of the person feeding such horse. 

  
23. The proprietor or driver of a hackney carriage shall not while standing, plying or driving for hire, drive or 

allow to be driven, or harness or allowed to be harnessed to the carriage any animal in such condition as to 
expose any person conveyed or being in such carriage, or any person traversing any street, to risk of injury. 

  
24. The distance to which the driver of a hackney carriage drawn by any animal or animals may be compelled 

to take passengers shall be any distance along the sea front between Feathers Caravan Site, Whitley Bay 
to the North, and the Haven, Tynemouth to the south, provided that, on journeys from south to north, this 
shall include such deviations from the Sea Front Highway along Park Avenue and Park Road, Whitley Bay 
as are required by the Whitley Bay one way circulatory System. 

Page 175



102 

  
25. The following provisions shall not apply in respect of horse drawn hackney carriages:- 
  
 Byelaws 3(a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (g) and (i), 4, 5, 6, 7 and 12. 
  
26. Every person who shall offend against any of these byelaws shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine 

not exceeding fifty pounds in the case of a continuing offence to a further fine not exceeding five pounds for 
each day during which the offence continues after conviction therefore. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 176



103 

Appendix J 
 PASSENGER GUIDANCE 

 
The Authority is responsible for licensing hackney carriages, private hire vehicles, their drivers and private 
hire operators within the Borough of North Tyneside. The primary concern of the Authority is the safety of the 
public. 
 
Vehicles 
 
The Authority licences two types of vehicle: Hackney Carriages – also known as taxis or cabs and Private 
Hire Vehicles. 
 
Either vehicle must only be driven by drivers who are also licensed by North Tyneside Council.  Before a 
vehicle is licensed the vehicle must be of an approved type and must meet certain, minimum specifications.  
It undergoes a thorough inspection at the Authority’s Test Station at Killingworth (which includes an MOT) 
and must be appropriately insured.  Vehicles over four years of age undergo an additional safety check every 
6 months.  
 
Hackney Carriages 
 
Hackney Carriages licensed by North Tyneside Council can be flagged down in the street (only within the 
North Tyneside district) and they can also wait on one of the many official taxi ranks in the Borough.  They 
can also be pre-booked.   
 
Hackney carriages must: 

  be black in colour, 
  display a white licence plate on the rear of the vehicle showing the licence number, description of the 

vehicle including the registration number, maximum number of passengers that can be carried and 
contact details to make a complaint, 

  be fitted with a roof-sign which must illuminated when available to hire, 
  be fitted with an operating taximeter which must be sealed and must be used during each hiring to 

record the fare, 
  not charge more than the fare displayed on the meter, 
  display the Authority’s maximum Hackney Carriage fare tariff in a prominent position in the vehicle, 
  display a white decal on each front door showing the licence number, 
  display a disc in the top left-hand corner of the windscreen showing the licence number, the maximum 

number of passengers that can be carried and contact details to make a complaint, 

Private Hire Vehicles 
 
Private Hire Vehicles can only be pre-booked in advance via an Operator (they cannot be flagged down or 
wait in the street or wait on a rank).  They are not subject to the Council’s maximum fare tariff and the cost 
should therefore be agreed before the start of your journey.   
 
Private Hire Vehicles must: 

  not be black in colour, or any colour resembling black, 
  display a yellow licence plate on the rear of the vehicle showing the licence number, description of 

the vehicle including the registration number, maximum number of passengers that can be carried 
and contact details to make a complaint. 

  not be fitted with a roofsign of any description, 
  display a yellow decal on each front door showing the licence number. 
  display a disc in the top left-hand corner of the windscreen showing the licence number, the maximum 

number of passengers that can be carried and contact details to make a complaint. 
 

Page 177



104 

 Private Hire Operators  
 
These are licensed by the Authority to make provision for the invitation or acceptance of private hire bookings. 
Before a licence is issued an operator must undergo a criminal record check and provide a business plan 
setting how he/she intends to operate.  
 
It is the responsibility of an operator to ensure that all vehicles and drivers working from the office are licensed. 
Operators are therefore required to maintain and make available for inspection various records relating to the 
operation of their business including lists of vehicles and drivers operated by them.   
 
Drivers 
 
The Authority issues two types of driver’s licence depending on the type of vehicle the driver wishes to drive: 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire.  The criteria and qualifications for each are virtually identical. 
 
Before a licence is issued an applicant must prove to the Authority that he/she is a ‘fit and proper’ person.  
This is done by: 
 

  proving they have held a full UK or EEA driving licence for at least a year, 
  undergoing a criminal record check, 
  providing a Group 2 medical (which is the same standard as for bus and lorry drivers), 
  pass a knowledge/locality test, 
  prove a right to live and work in the UK, 
  undergo training on preventing Child and Adult Exploitation, 

 
Once an applicant has proven they are ‘fit and proper’ the Authority will issue a licence for up to 3 years.  Two 
identity badges are also issued to the driver showing their photograph and the expiry date of the licence.  One 
badge must be worn at all times when the driver is working in a position that is clearly visible to passengers; 
the other badge must be displayed on the dashboard of the vehicle. 
 
Enforcement 
 
The Authority employs Licensing Officers to undertake enforcement work and this includes investigating 
complaints and carrying out spot check inspections of vehicles both during the day and out of hours when 
the late night economy is active. Where non-compliance with conditions of licence or legislation is noted 
officers will follow this up with appropriate action. This may be by verbal advice or a warning, the issue of a 
notice requiring a vehicle defect to be remedied, suspension of a vehicle licence and in some cases 
prosecution of the driver and/or proprietor/operator.      
 
Complaints 
 
Using taxis and private hire vehicles is a safe form of transport and the vast majority of journeys take place 
without incident.  If you do want to make a complaint about the conduct of a driver or the condition of a vehicle 
contact the Licensing Office by telephone (0191 6432165), by email at taxi.licensing@northtyneside.gov.uk 
or online via the Authority’s website at www.northtyneside.gov.uk    To assist us please make a note of the 
licence/plate number of the vehicle, the name or description of the driver and the date, time and place of the 
incident.   
 
Refusals 
 
A driver can refuse a fare with a reasonable excuse, for example a risk of physical violence, passengers who 
are abusive, racist, sexist, foul mouthed, extremely drunk, refuse to stop smoking, likely to vomit or have 
vomited over themselves etc. 
 
Assistance dogs 
 
A driver can only refuse to carry an assistance dog if he/she has a medical exemption certificate issued by 
the Authority.  This must be shown on request. 
 
Overcharging 
 
It is an offence for a driver to charge a person with a disability, for example a wheelchair-user, more for a 
journey than any other comparable booking. 

Page 178

mailto:taxi.licensing@northtyneside.gov.uk
http://www.northtyneside.gov.uk/


105 

 
 
 
Staying safe 
 

  If possible, pre-book your return journey before going out. 
  Let a third party know the details of your journey. 
  Check the vehicle has a rear licence plate and door decals, otherwise do not get in 

the vehicle. 
  Make a note of the licence number displayed on the plate, decal and windscreen 

disc.  
  Ask to see the driver’s badge, make a note of his/her name and number.  
  Do not get in the vehicle if the driver is unable to show you a badge or if it has 

expired. 
  If you are on your own, sit in the back behind the driver. 

 
  

 
 

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Schedule of Responses to Taxi Licensing Consultation 

 
Reference Respondent Comments  Response 
 
001  
 
 

Driver  Request not bring into force age standards due to 
risk drivers going into debt. 
 

 Policy amended to defer age 
standards by 2 years 

002 Vehicle Proprietor   Operator has fleet of approximately 14 wheelchair 
accessible vehicles. Request defer age standards 
due to costs associated with the purchase new 
vehicles.  

 Policy amended to defer age 
standards by 2 years 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

003 North Tyneside 
Hackney Carriage 
Association. 

Comments raised re ID badges, Age standards,  
language proficiency, byelaws, advertising, 
offences, fees and renewals. 
 
 

 Policy amended to defer age 
standards by 2 years. Other 
comments noted and to be considered 
at future reviews of Policy. 
 

004 Vehicle Proprietor  Operator with fleet vehicles. Request not bring into 
force age standards due to costs associated with 
replacement vehicles. 

 Policy amended to defer age 
standards by 2 years 
 

005 Vehicle Proprietor  Issues with age policy and financial implications.   Policy amended to defer age 
standards by 2 years 
 

006 Operator Comprehensive response with suggested   Policy amended to defer age 

P
age 181



 
Schedule of Responses to Taxi Licensing Consultation 

amendments. In particular defer Age Standards, 
door signs, updated references, offence periods, 
advertisements, tinted windows, CCTV, tax 
conditionality, criminal checks on staff.   
 
 
 

standards by 2 years. Other 
comments noted and Policy amended 
as appropriate. All other issues will be 
discussed with Operator for 
consideration at future reviews of 
Policy. 
 

P
age 182



Using the space below, please provide any comments you have regarding the amendments to North Tyneside's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy.

Too many taxis operating in the borough that come from and are licensed by other neighbouring
authorities.
I agree with these amendments
Approve

Absolutely in favour of all measures to ensure that all those associated with hackney and private hire trade
are fit and proper people and regularly reviewed.
due to pandemic vehicle age policy should be delayed
I thought these regulations were already in place

Think they are appropriate ammendments and I would of thought all taxi drivers should have a dbs

no dual driver badges
No to Dual Badges

Phoenix Taxis supports the amendments to the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy. We will support
any policy amendments that improve safety measures for passengers across the region and we are
particularly happy to see the new DBS regulations on operators and booking staff. We are broadly in
support of the policy changes on new and renewal vehicle licenses though we would recommend the policy
goes further as follows:  •    restrict new licenses to vehicles up to a maximum of 3 years old and renewal
licenses up to a maximum of 7 years old.  •    One additional year on new and renewal licenses (4 years and
8 years) for larger vehicles and wheelchair access vehicles.  The proposal to exempt fully electric and zero
emission vehicles is a positive step towards decarbonisation of the region’s taxi fleet. However, we believe
that more support is necessary for electric vehicle owners and would propose that the authority further
promotes the use of zero emission vehicles by installing taxi only charging points throughout the local
authority area. This would have the additional benefit of reducing conflict between public and taxi driver
owners of electric vehicles over charge point availability. There would be an opportunity to recover some of
the costs by charging drivers to charge, though we would recommend offering a reduced rate to taxi
drivers to further encourage electric vehicle take up amongst the region’s drivers.
no dual badges
dual badges not to be allowed
Delay vehicular age policy start date
Age policy on vehicles to be delayed

driver dual badges not to be allowed

It is better for the taxi trade
The age policy will destroy the trade. The price of fuel, insurance maintenance etc is sky high with many
drivers struggling now or leaving the trade. Second hand car prices are sky high. I don't understand what a
vehicles age has to do with anything, if its a euro 6 engine and well maintained why replace. Just another
financial hit on the driver.
How can Newcastle plated cars sit at a northtyneside office and pick up without a job on there screen ie
Blueline office
No comment 

Page 183



By making vehicle proprietors have D B S your going to make harder and more expensive for drivers to rent
cars also having desk staff doing D B S make no sense as they have no face to face contact with the public
i dissagree in section 23 of the age limit on cars to be used on private and hackney use. As all cars have
euro marks on the date of them when made a well maintained car that passes the test is suitable for use
should be able to used as a private hire/ hackney use

Apart from the changes to the age of vehicles I’ve no objections 
Good

the 8 year age limit to vehicles will stop me from purchasing a new wheelchair converted vehicle as the
cost is not a viable option against renting, my only option would be to go to a council without the age limit
and apply for my licence with them.
i agree with all.
Agree with the policy and any new amendments A
Cancel vehicles age till 10 year old
DBS is important and think the amendments are good. 

dual driver badges not allowed
No comments 
It’s a good thing 
No to dual bages
time period for not granting driver licence requires revisiting,each case must be decided on its own merits.
no dual driver badges
None
No

i am completely  disagree

i am completely disagree

Page 184



4 and 8yr rule for cars is not financially viable. No sooner will we have paid off finance on one vehicle will
have to buy another one. Don't see a problem with any age vehicle
Taxi licencing,  My name is Simon Armstrong and I am director of Shiremoor MOT Centre Limited and S & J Taxi Hire Limited. I currently run a fleet of around 60 private hire vehicles licensed through North Tyneside Council only.  As you know, the vehicles get one full test plus one interim test per year through yourselves. All of our vehicles go through a full service every 10,000 miles to make sure they are kept to a very high standard. Most of our fleet currently do not meet the current vehicle age policy which means after April 1st 2022, every car we replace will need to be under 4 years old. This, for us as a company to potentially replace all of our fleet to be under 4 years old when licenced and to be taken off at 8 years old would be impossible with this current climate. The Coronavirus pandemic wiped us of all our business savings just to keep the company going. We went from 90 vehicles paying £100 per week to 60 vehicles paying just £50 per week – just to allow the drivers to be able to afford to keep going.  We are now fresh out of the pandemic and then we are hit with this! I understand that an age limit would be good for us but I think the 4 and 8 year rule is unachievable with what we have currently been through, me as a company owner but also the other single vehicle proprietors.  It’s a trade that is on its knees at the moment.  Another factor to take into consideration is the Newcastle city centre Clean Air Zone (CAZ). All of our cars are diesel. A diesel private hire vehicle can drive into the CAZ if it is newer than 65 reg (September 2015) as it is Euro 6 compatible from this time. On cars registered from September 2015 to 2018 have the same Euro 6 status, so are both the same specification as far as emissions goes.  With this being the case, could it not be possible to amend the under 4 year rule to coincide with CAZ and make it Euro 6 only rule and vehicles come off at 10 years old? This will be much more achievable for us as a company, needing to replace nearly all of our fleet in the coming months if this CAZ does come into force in Newcastle City Centre.  No movement on this policy could be jeopardising to all of our drivers as not being able to afford replacing all our vehicles in time which could unfortunley make 10’s of North Tyneside private hire drivers being unemployed!  We have been trading as a taxi hire firm for over 20 years and have never been through tough times like this before.  If the vehicle age limit is to be reviewed and the review is after April 1st when the age limit comes in, should this not be postponed until the review has taken place? For example, if I was to purchase 5 18 reg vehicles at the cost of approximately £10,000 each and this gets reviewed on the 14th April for example and is postponed or amended, all of the 18 reg vehicles at that time have been an unnecessary costly purchase.  As for the other points on the email received from yourselves, I agree to all. I am a vehicle proprietor and don’t mind dong DBS Checks.  I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for giving me the opportunity to give my opinion on these matters. 
it would seem that some of the penalties are a bit heavy
stop the age policy on cars
Why not enforce what is already in place

protection of drivers is lacking in that policy.
dual drivers badge not allowed

proposed punishments are a bit severe

I will be needing to change my current vehicle sometime in the next 6-12 months. There is no way I can
afford to buy a vehicle less than 4 years old at this time. Therefore this new ruling will force me into
unemployment, which is just outrageous really. I go out to work daily to try and work hard and earn an
honest living and keep a roof over my head and I can’t have this taken away from me
agree with all changes to be adopted
passenger guidance does not state that a private hire vehicle is not insured if it is used by a passenger
without pre-booking.

Dual badges should not be issued

Page 185



Using the space below, please outline any final comments you may have on North Tyneside's Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy, including any aspects that come into force from April 2022.
Need for a more robust checking / validating of drivers credentials.  Enhanced DBS checks
should be mandatory given taxis are more often used by vulnerable people who are unable
to access public transport networks.

Approve

An observation - hackney & private hire operators should ensure their vehicles managed
appropriately and are not kept of stored in places which block, obstruct emergency vehicles
or other road users including pedestrians, cyclists, wheel chair users and other vehicles.
dual driver license badges must not be allowed
There is a need for strict regulations
Defer the vehicle age policy
postpone the age policy
Pleases I've had an ability to give my apinuon. 
vehicle age should be postponed
Do not agree with vehicle age section,delay the start by 3 years.
get rid of vehicle age policy 
Defer  age policy

There will be considerable disagreement to the above changes amongst the region’s drivers,
who will likely respond to say that the do not make enough money to upgrade their vehicles
and that their cars pass the licensing tests every year and are in great condition. We would
like to emphasise that the trade has objected to improvements in emission standards on
every possible occasion in every authority in which we operate. We would recommend
licensing authority staff visit the taxi ranks of the region during winter which will show the
outcome of repeated driver objections; large numbers of old, polluting vehicles with their
engines idling.
vehicle age policy requires delaying
delay age of vehicle policy
No dual driver badges to be allowed
Dual badges for private hire and hackney drivers
unless there is huge grants to upgrade cars available age policy should be cancelled or
delayed.
If a car is kept in top condition and passes it’s taxi test it should be allowed to continue
carrying passengers we have all had a very hard time with covid and to now be forced to buy
new cars it’s going to ruin the trade as if it hasn’t been hit hard enough

Scrap the age limit 

No comment 

Page 186



Find it ridiculous that forcing drivers to buy cars under 4 years old considering we are just
coming out of pandemic and earnings have been badly affected I've been owner driver for
over 30 years and car has never failed a taxi test the majority of drivers change their cars
every 4/5 years so why is there need to bring in age limit on cars and put drivers in debt.
According the council we have lost a 3rd of the fleet due to covid19 you will lose a lot more
continuing with these new rules maybe should look at other local councils who delayed thes
plan for few years

try finding a black car for hackney use is very hard indeed this policy needs to be looked at as
black cars are more expensive to buy eve when new
the age limit on vehicles does concern me because i feel its going to cause drivers to leave
the trade or if not, push them into debt, which in todays climate, is not good. the 4 and 8
year limits are going to prove too much of an expense for a lot of people. (me included). the
way modern cars last i think (for eg), that having to spend approx £12000 on a 4yr old car
then have to change it even though it’s fine, is too much debt to take on. I feel that if a car
passes all the criteria and is below the emissions limit for the clean air zones, that should be
fine and drivers not pushed into debt.

i under stand some of the reasoning for the 8 year old policy, but as any vehicle older than 4
years has 2 tests then it does not make sence that i could purchase and licence a 67 plate cat
b writeoff mondeo with 100k+ miles on it, but could not buy a 17 plate 5 series bmw ex
company car with 40k+ on it, this policy will only benifit the large companyswho rent vehicles
out to drivers. it will leave any driver in a position that they will either have to rent or be in
perment debt as most finance taken on cars is for a 5 year period so buy a 3 year old car on 5
year finance then have to repeat it when its paid for i belive this will cause a lot of drivers to
find other employment and leave the trade.
i agree with all.
Agree with all current and any new aspects of the policy. 
Tight up dress code
DBS checks to be completed online 
CANCEL THE AGE POLICY
age policy of vehicles must be postponed
No comments 
It’s positive
To defur car age

age policy to be delayed.
None
No
cancel age policy for vehicles

i am completely disagree with the vehicles age section. if my car passes a emission test  why i
am not allowed to put any age off car as a taxi. how can you say my car is dangerous for
environment . if you go head with  this policy many driver including they family will suffer
you are putting this policy from 1 off April  but you are expect to driver can answer and reply
to you till 8 off April. i urge north tyne side council taxi licensing office they can look at this
policy again and again . thankyou

Page 187



As long as a vehicle passes council testing and isn't falling apart apart with torn interior and
bumps, so is still presentable to the customer, I for one keep my cars in mint condition. I
understand the need to get the battered cars off the road that are 15+ years old but newer
cars are more economical and in good condition mostly.all this new car rule will do is make
more drivers leave and no new starting ones because who wants finance permanently
especially with rising costs to do the job and cost of living.
Taxi licencing,  My name is Simon Armstrong and I am director of Shiremoor MOT Centre Limited and S & J Taxi Hire Limited. I currently run a fleet of around 60 private hire vehicles licensed through North Tyneside Council only.  As you know, the vehicles get one full test plus one interim test per year through yourselves. All of our vehicles go through a full service every 10,000 miles to make sure they are kept to a very high standard. Most of our fleet currently do not meet the current vehicle age policy which means after April 1st 2022, every car we replace will need to be under 4 years old. This, for us as a company to potentially replace all of our fleet to be under 4 years old when licenced and to be taken off at 8 years old would be impossible with this current climate. The Coronavirus pandemic wiped us of all our business savings just to keep the company going. We went from 90 vehicles paying £100 per week to 60 vehicles paying just £50 per week – just to allow the drivers to be able to afford to keep going.  We are now fresh out of the pandemic and then we are hit with this! I understand that an age limit would be good for us but I think the 4 and 8 year rule is unachievable with what we have currently been through, me as a company owner but also the other single vehicle proprietors.  It’s a trade that is on its knees at the moment.  Another factor to take into consideration is the Newcastle city centre Clean Air Zone (CAZ). All of our cars are diesel. A diesel private hire vehicle can drive into the CAZ if it is newer than 65 reg (September 2015) as it is Euro 6 compatible from this time. On cars registered from September 2015 to 2018 have the same Euro 6 status, so are both the same specification as far as emissions goes.  With this being the case, could it not be possible to amend the under 4 year rule to coincide with CAZ and make it Euro 6 only rule and vehicles come off at 10 years old? This will be much more achievable for us as a company, needing to replace nearly all of our fleet in the coming months if this CAZ does come into force in Newcastle City Centre.  No movement on this policy could be jeopardising to all of our drivers as not being able to afford replacing all our vehicles in time which could unfortunley make 10’s of North Tyneside private hire drivers being unemployed!  We have been trading as a taxi hire firm for over 20 years and have never been through tough times like this before.  If the vehicle age limit is to be reviewed and the review is after April 1st when the age limit comes in, should this not be postponed until the review has taken place? For example, if I was to purchase 5 18 reg vehicles at the cost of approximately £10,000 each and this gets reviewed on the 14th April for example and is postponed or amended, all of the 18 reg vehicles at that time have been an unnecessary costly purchase.  As for the other points on the email received from yourselves, I agree to all. I am a vehicle proprietor and don’t mind dong DBS Checks.  I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for giving me the opportunity to give my opinion on these matters. 
cancel vehicle age policy
stop the age policy on cars   and there is no such thing as a Private taxi driver
vehicle age policy requires revisiting
stop vehicle age requirement
if vehicle passes mot it should be licenced regardless of age.
cancel vehicle age policy
stop the vehicle age policy
policy on vehicle age should be postponed 

I think I’ve covered in my previous answer about the April 2022 policy. I simply do not have
upwards of £10,000 to buy a car less than 4 years old, so I’ll be out of a job when my current
car runs it’s course. The car I currently drive is just over 7 years old and is a low emission
vehicle with zero road tax, so there are vehicles older than 4 years which are kinder to the
environment than others. Surely this should be taken into account. I just can’t comprehend
the fact I’ll be forced out of work because I can’t afford to purchase a nearly new car
agree with all policy changes

delay age policy and do not issue duel driver badges
cancel vehicle age policy
Stop the vehicle age policy

Page 188



Which of the following best describes you?

Resident
Resident
Resident

Resident
Resident
Resident
Hackney carriage driver
Operator
Resident
Private taxi driver
Resident
Operator
Hackney carriage driver

Operator
Operator
Hackney carriage driver
Hackney carriage driver
Resident

Resident

Operator

Private taxi driver

Private taxi driver
Private taxi driver

Page 189



Private taxi driver

Hackney carriage driver

Private taxi driver
Private taxi driver

Private taxi driver
Private taxi driver
Private taxi driver
Hackney carriage driver
Private taxi driver
Operator
Hackney carriage driver
Private taxi driver
Private taxi driver
Hackney carriage driver

Hackney carriage driver
Hackney carriage driver
Hackney carriage driver
Hackney carriage driver

Private taxi driver

Hackney carriage driver

Page 190



Private taxi driver
Operator
Resident
Hackney carriage driver
Resident
Operator
Resident
Operator
Private taxi driver
Hackney carriage driver

Private taxi driver
Resident

Resident
Private taxi driver
Operator

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



 
North Tyneside Council 
Report to Cabinet 
Date: 23 May 2022 
 
Title: North Shields Cultural Quarter – North of Tyne Combined 
Authority Culture and Creative Zones Acceptance of Grant 
 
 
Portfolio(s): 

 
Deputy Mayor and  
Cabinet Member 
responsible for Culture, 
Sport and Leisure 
 

 
Cabinet Member(s): 
 

 
Councillor Carl 
Johnson and 
Councillor Sarah 
Day 
 

Report from Service 
Area:  

 
Regeneration and Economic Development  
 

Responsible Officer:  John Sparkes, Director of Regeneration 
and Economic Development 
 

Tel: (0191)643 6091 

Wards affected: 
 

Riverside, Preston and Tynemouth 
 

 

 
PART 1 
 
1.1 Executive Summary: 
 

North of Tyne Combined Authority (NTCA) approved investment of £1.7m of Culture 
and Creative Zones funding for North Tyneside Council at its Cabinet Meeting on 22nd 
March 2022.  
 
Funding has been approved to support the development of a Cultural and Creative 
Zone (CCZ) in North Shields which will be known as North Shields Cultural Quarter.  
 
The North Shields Cultural Quarter will be located in and around Howard Street and 
Saville Street, in the heart of North Shields, creating a ‘cultural corridor’ and stronger 
connections between the town centre and the Fish Quay. The heart of the Cultural 
Quarter will be the cluster of buildings at the crossroads of Howard Street and Saville 
Street including The Exchange, the Globe Gallery, and the Business Centre, and will 
include the North Shields Customer First Centre.  
 
Investment in a Cultural and Creative Zone provides the opportunity to stimulate the 
economy in North Shields town centre, this ‘cultural corridor’ will play a pivotal role in 
reinvigorating the place and creating social and economic benefits for the people who 
live, work and visit there - building social inclusion and helping to create a sense of 
pride.  
 
The project will fund the internal building works within the Exchange building, to deliver 
affordable and fit for purpose spaces and installation of digital infrastructure across the 
CCZ area (in the Exchange, Business Centre, Globe Gallery and the Customer First 

Page 193

Agenda Item 9



Centre). These will be ‘quick wins’ delivered in the first 18 months and it is anticipated 
that the majority of the outputs will be delivered from 2023/24 onwards.  
 
The project is broken down into the following 5 work packages;   

  WP1: Place 
  WP2: Support 
  WP3: Skills 
  WP4: Promotion 
  WP5: Community Engagement 

 
Once the internal works are completed on The Exchange the Authority will undertake 
an expression of interest (EOI) process to identify an operator to manage the building 
going forward. 
  
The opportunity to create a place-based approach to investing in the development, 
sustainability and growth of the culture and creative sector has been articulated in both 
‘Our North Tyneside Plan’ and the Ambition for North Shields and the Fish Quay. The 
focus of the proposal is predominantly within the music, performance and visual arts 
sub-sector to meet the following key requirements;  

 
• Work and performance space - which is accessible, bespoke, affordable and 

fit for purpose 
• Shared facilities and resources – including rehearsal space, making space, 

social and networking space, exhibition space, digital equipment, green screen 
and editing facilities, dark room, printing and framing facilities. 

• Skills development opportunities – skills needs focused particularly on the 
skills needs of the music, performance and visual arts sub sector (e.g 
musicians, music producers, theatre producers, dance and theatrical studies, 
painting, sculpting, photography and supporting skilled technicians).  

• Greater Diversity – of the people working within the sector, of the product, of 
participants, of audiences. There should be better access and greater cultural 
democracy. 

• New approach to money – Including a recognition that artists are 
professionals and should be treated and rewarded appropriately; would benefit 
from start-up and pre-start up support, Research and development investment, 
small grants and commissions; appropriate investment for the expected returns; 
support to develop their practice; access to finance- including loans. 

• Exemplary communication and promotion – Develop comprehensive, 
inclusive networks locally, regionally, nationally and internationally promote key 
assets and programmes; project a contemporary profile; ensure consultation 
and co-creation; develop consistent long-term relationships. 

• The environment of the Zone is important – the streetscape, the signage, the 
permeability, the navigability, the traffic. The historic buildings need to be turned 
from liabilities to assets; the street needs creative animation; environmental 
sustainability is paramount. 

• Professional development opportunities would be welcomed – including 
lectures, workshops, talks, seminars, career development and progression 
guidance, mentoring, critical friends, skills sharing, skill swaps and job 
shadowing. 

 
1.2 Recommendation(s): 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

Page 194



(1)  Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development to accept the 
£1,695,000 grant funding from the North of Tyne Combined Authority in relation to 
Culture and Creative Zones funding for the North Shields Cultural Quarter; 
 

(2) Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development in consultation 
with the Assistant Chief Executive and Director of Resources to enter into the 
Grant Funding Agreement and any other documentation as required to facilitate 
recommendation (1); and 

 
(3) Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Economic Development to procure any 

goods, works or services to deliver the outcomes set out in paragraph 1.1. above. 
 

1.3 Forward Plan: 
 

Twenty eight days notice of this report has been given and it first appeared on the 
Forward Plan that was published on 25th March 2022. 

 
1.4 Council Plan and Policy Framework  
 

This report relates to the following priority in the 2021-2025 Our North Tyneside Plan: 
 
A thriving North Tyneside 
 
We will support the regeneration of North Shields town centre, developing a Cultural 
Quarter as set out in the North Shields Masterplan which clearly identifies the 
opportunities creating a cultural zone will have on the local area.  This will not only 
support the local economy and the visitor offer in the town centre, encouraging people 
to stay longer and spend more, but also the health and wellbeing of residents.   
 
North Tyneside's Cultural Quarter will use the Exchange building and surrounding 
areas to develop a critical mass of cultural and creative space as a focal point for 
sector development.  The Exchange Building is already an established music, arts 
and leisure venue and will act as an anchor for the re-alignment of the area and 
several other complementary units including the former Globe Gallery.  
 
This area will play a pivotal role in reinvigorating the place and creating social and 
economic benefits for the people who live, work and visit there - building social 
inclusion and helping to create a sense of pride. 

 
1.5 Information: 

 
1.5.1 Background 
 
1.5.2 NTCA issued its Culture and Creative Zones prospectus on 11th August 2021, 

taking inspiration from other UK and international cities ‘Culture and Creative Zones’. 
These zones aim to bring together the right mix of advice, guidance and expertise to 
work alongside the region’s creative and cultural businesses and organisations.  
 

1.5.3 Each Zone will be developed to reflect the challenges and opportunities of its locality – 
with Local Authorities and the culture and creative sector working together. 
  

1.5.4 North Tyneside Council was invited to develop and co-produce a designated Zone 
which seeks to deliver services to support the growth of the cultural and creative 
industries in the North of Tyne area.   

Page 195



 
1.5.5 The bid for funding was developed by colleagues in Regeneration and Economic 

Development in partnership with the Head of Culture and cultural and creative 
stakeholders. The activity proposed meets the key objectives, outcomes and criteria 
set out in the bid document. 
 

1.5.6 The project is broken down into 5 work packages as set out below: 
 
WP1: Place - The aim is to support the provision of permanent, affordable and 
accessible creative work and collaborative space. The catalytic investment in the CCZ 
is the renovation of the Exchange (internal works) which is an already established 
music, arts and leisure venue that will act as an anchor for the re-alignment of the area 
and several other complementary units including the former Globe Gallery, and the 
Business Centre that sit within the Howard Street/ Saville Street intersection. The CCZ 
will also complement existing activity and investment at the Fish Quay and 
Northumberland Square Conservation Area. 
 
WP2: Support - Building upon the North of Tyne Culture and Creative Investment 
Programme, delivered by Creative England, the focus will be split between the 
development and delivery of business support activity that is best delivered from within 
the zone. This work package will include bespoke business support for Cultural and 
Creative businesses aligned with specific sector requirements; incubator courses; a 
Cultural Quarter Grant scheme to support cultural and creative businesses to grow 
and leverage additional funding; and also networking and peer to peer support for 
businesses in the sector. 
 
WP3: Skills - the zone will foster relationships with key skills providers based locally 
and nationally, including the successful bidders for the North of Tyne Skills for Growth 
programme. Through the zone, there will be an opportunity to highlight specific skills 
challenges within the industry, and help facilitate appropriate skills delivery, talent 
development and create clear pathways into the sector. Specific skills interventions 
will include: 
  
  a Cultural Quarter Bursary Scheme to provide access to training for those 

facing financial barriers to accessing skills courses or talent development;  
  targeted, bespoke interventions with TyneMet college to develop pathways to 

employment to help young and vulnerable people into jobs within the cultural 
and creative sector;  

  and community engagement activity to support adults to learn new skills, build 
confidence and engage in the sector which will lead to new employment 
opportunities. 

 
WP4: Promotion- the goal is to establish the North Shields Cultural Quarter as a 
destination, visitor attraction and great place to work, visit and learn. A programme of 
activity to promote the zone will be developed which will link into the overarching 
promotion of the North of Tyne CCZs. The development and delivery of events and 
festivals will also be a key role for the CCZ, helping to attract new visitors to the town 
and region, and growing the cultural engagement with the Authority’s local audiences. 
 
WP5: Community Engagement - The CCZ will engage with the community by 
welcoming them into the Cultural quarter but also by delivering within local community 
settings to achieve the greatest level of engagement. The aim is to develop and 
deliver activities that directly link into local schools and communities; raising inclusion, 
participation, and aspirations. 

Page 196



 
1.5.7 The support available through the CCZ will not be exclusive only to people and 

businesses physically located within the zone geography. As well as providing 
workspace in a defined geographic area of North Shields, the zone will also provide an 
‘access point’ through which people and businesses working in the culture and 
creative sector anywhere in the North of Tyne area can access collaboration 
opportunities, business support, skills development, and other advice and support as 
required. The CCZ will: 
 

• Provide an access point to business support and skills programmes that exist 
already 

• Work with NTCA and existing programme deliverers to refine and shape the 
content of existing programmes 

• Provide a focal point for the development and delivery of new collaborative 
projects to address business support and skills needs in the longer-term 

 
1.6 Decision options: 
 

The following decision options are available for consideration by Cabinet: 
 
Option 1 
To approve the recommendation set out in paragraph 1.2 of this report 
 
Option 2 
To approve and/or reject some or all of the recommendations set out at paragraphs 1.2 
(1) (2) of this report. 
 
Option 1 is the recommended option. 

 
1.7 Reasons for recommended option: 
 

Option 1 is recommended for the following reasons: 
 
Accepting this funding will enable the establishment of North Shields Cultural Quarter, 
in line with the North Shields Masterplan aspiration and Our North Tyneside Plan. 

 
1.8 Appendices: 

 
None. 

 
1.9 Contact officers: 
 

Paul Dowling, Head of Regeneration & Transport Service Manager, Tel: 643 6428 
Graham Sword, Senior Manager - Regeneration, Tel: 643 6421 
Steve Bishop, Head of Culture, Tel: 643 7410 
Amar Hassan, Principal Accountant, Investment (Capital) and Revenue, Tel: 643 5747 
 

1.10 Background information: 
 

The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of 
this report and are available at the office of the author: 

 
(1)  North Shields Town Centre and Fish Quay Masterplan; Cabinet, 25th January 

2021 
Page 197



 
(2) North Of Tyne Combined Authority North Shields Cultural Quarter Business Case, 

January 2022  
 
 
PART 2 – COMPLIANCE WITH PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING 
 
2.1 Finance and other resources 
 

As stated in section 1.2 above, £1.7m of funding has been secured from the North of 
Tyne Combined Authority Culture and Creative Zones Fund to support the 
development of North Shields Cultural Quarter. Once the Grant Funding Agreement is 
signed work will begin on the work packages set out in paragraph 1.1 above.  

 
Funding is a mixture of Capital and Revenue as set out below;  

 
Project Grant Funding Match funding Total Project Cost 

The Exchange External Costs (CAP) 0 0   
The Exchange Internal Costs (CAP) 300,000 216,000 516,000 

Digital Infrastructure (CAP) 500,000 0 500,000 
CAP Total 800,000 216,000 1,016,000 

Business Support – Incubators (REV) 250,000 0 250,000 
Mentoring (REV) 15,000 0 15,000 

Skills Support (REV) 85,000 0 85,000 
Grant scheme (REV) 200,000 0 200,000 

Branding and Marketing (REV) 145,000 0 145,000 
Events Programme (REV) 200,000 0 200,000 

REV Total 895,000 0 895,000 

Total 1,695,000 216,000 1,911,000 

 
Capital match funding is made up of £120,000 from Our Ambition and £96,000 from 
Heritage Action Zone (Total £216,000 match) which has been secured through the 
Gateway process with a Gateway 0, 1 and 2 approved through IPB.  

 
2.2 Legal 
 
2.2.1   Procurement 
 

Internal work on The Exchange Building has already been procured through NTC 
procurement processes.  
 
Once the project Grant Funding Agreement is signed the revenue elements of the 
project will be procured through NTC procurement processes in order to ensure best 
value and avoid the provision of any unlawful subsidy. 

 
 
 
 

Page 198



2.2.2 Third Party Grant Funding 
 

Funding will only be provided to third party applicants who can declare that the funding 
constitutes part of their special drawing rights for the preceding three year period and, 
accordingly, is exempt from being considered an unlawful subsidy. 

 
2.3 Consultation/community engagement 
 
2.3.1  Internal Consultation 
  

Lead Cabinet Members have been briefed and finance, legal and procurement 
have provided advice on this project and the background to this report. 

 
2.3.2  External Consultation/Engagement  
 

Key cultural and creative stakeholders have been engaged in the development of the 
business case submitted to NTCA for appraisal. Further engagement will take place 
over the next six months as work packages are refined. 
 

2.4 Human rights 
 
2.4.1 There are no Human Rights issues arising from this report. 
 
2.5 Equalities and diversity 
 
2.5.1 There are no direct equality and diversity issues arising from this report. As the North 

Shields Cultural Quarter work progresses inclusive design principles will be central to 
the development of the proposals. In practical terms this will mean taking into 
consideration the needs of all protected characteristics, addressing physical access 
where feasible but also ensuring appropriate hearing assistance systems and signage 
are in place, taking into account recommendations from the AccessABLE report. 

 
2.6 Risk management 
 
2.6.1 A risk register will be developed for each of the work packages and will be reviewed 

monthly by the relevant delivery teams. 
 
2.7 Crime and disorder 
 
2.7.1 There are no crime and disorder issues arising from this report. As the North Shields 

Cultural Quarter work progresses, consideration of crime, fear of crime and anti-social 
behaviour will be incorporated into the development of the proposals. 

 
2.8 Environment and sustainability 
 
2.8.1 An Environmental Impact Assessment is underway and will be shared with NTCA in 

due course. 
 

 

Page 199



 
PART 3 - SIGN OFF 
 

  Chief Executive  
 
 

  Director(s) of Service  
 
 

  Mayor/Cabinet Member(s) 
 
 

  Chief Finance Officer  
 
 

  Monitoring Officer 
 
 

  Assistant Chief Executive 

X

X

X

X

X

X

Page 200


	Agenda
	5 The Home Care Scrutiny Study Group
	North Tyneside Council
	Report to Cabinet
	Date: 23 May 2022
	PART 1

	The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this report and are available at the office of the author:
	2.7 Crime and disorder
	PART 3
	Home Care Study Group-Scrutiny Report Appendix 1

	6 Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs Sub-Group
	North Tyneside Council
	Report to Cabinet
	Date: 23 May 2022
	PART 1

	The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this report and are available at the office of the author:
	2.7 Crime and disorder
	PART 3
	Green Skills for Retrofit Jobs Sub-Group-Scrutiny Report Appendix 1
	Economic Prosperity Sub-Committee Report
	April 2022


	7 Land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton
	North Tyneside Council
	Report to Cabinet
	Date: 23 May 2022
	PART 1

	The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this report and are available at the office of the author:
	2.7 	Crime and disorder
	PART 3 - SIGN OFF
	Land at Newsteads Drive, Monkseaton Site Plan- Appendix 1

	8 Review of the North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy
	North Tyneside Council
	Report to Cabinet
	PART 1

	Review of North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy-Appendix 1
	Chapter								                      Page
	Appendices
	Appendix A
	Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle specifications
	Section A - General specification for all vehicles
	Appendix B
	Conditions attached to a Hackney Carriage Proprietors Licence and Private Hire Vehicle Proprietors Licence
	STANDARD CONDITIONS


	Additional Conditions/departure from standard conditions
	Appendix C

	Vehicle Testing Arrangements – Components to be Inspected
	Appendix D
	Standard ‘Exemption Notice’ Conditions
	Executive Hire Vehicles
	General Conditions
	Additional Conditions
	Private Hire Driver Licence Conditions of Licence


	Appendix F
	Code of Good Conduct For Licensed Drivers
	Appendix G
	Drivers Dress Code

	Appendix H
	Private Hire Operators Licence
	Conditions of Licence

	Metropolitan Borough of North Tyneside Byelaws made under Section 68 of The Town Police Clauses Act 1847, and Section 171 of The Public Health Act 1875 by the Authority of the Borough of North Tyneside, with respect to hackney carriages in the Borough of North Tyneside dated 4th March 1977 (all previous versions of these repealed)

	Review of North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (email responses)-Appendix 2
	Review of North Tyneside Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (online responses)-Appendix 2

	9 North Shields Cultural Quarter - North of Tyne Combined Authority Culture and Creative Zones Acceptance of Grant
	North Tyneside Council
	Report to Cabinet
	Date: 23 May 2022
	PART 1

	The following background papers/information have been used in the compilation of this report and are available at the office of the author:
	2.7 Crime and disorder
	PART 3 - SIGN OFF




